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Scaling Success as One

The path to the summit can be a challenging, strategic ascent. It involves
taking stock of what lies ahead. It’s pedaling on with a winning mindset.
It’s carrying over past teachings into new landscapes that bear the
promise of a better future.

For JG Summit, this journey is a collective endeavor. By building upon its
lineage of excellence, the company takes the lead towards unparalleled
opportunities, delivering success for the benefit of all.

This is the company’s calling, its reason to be. John Gokongwei, Jr’s
legacy is the starting point. The journey ahead is now the defining climb
- and JG Summit is rising to that next level ascent.
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“| often wonder what ever happened to my
first bike. The bike that was my companion
during those first years when my family
had lost everything and | sold wares at
the market every morning. That bike
reminds me that success can be achieved
through hard work, frugality, integrity,
responsiveness to change, and most of all,
boldness to dream.”

John Gokongwei, Jr.
1926 - 2019

From offering the first branded snack foods, presenting a wide array of value for
money lifestyle choices, including affordable and reliable air transportation options,
John L. Gokongwei Jr. had devoted much of his entrepreneurial career into making
the lives of countless Filipinos better when he founded JG Summit Holdings Inc. and
propelled its success to become one of the country’s biggest and highly diversified
business conglomerates in the country today.
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“Gifted with an entrepreneurial savvy
at the tender age of 13 when he
started selling garlic-cooked peanuts,

the self-made industrialist went on to
build a diversified, multi-billion-peso
business empire”

A pioneering entrepreneur, industrialist, and philanthropist, Mr. John, as he is fondly
called, was the quintessential business tycoon. His life and times has been hailed as
one of the most iconic stories of business successes - a story of an entrepreneur’s
immense contribution to the nation through hard work, creativity, and passion.

His penultimate rise to success has served as a role model for the many aspiring
entrepreneurs in the country.

Gifted with an entrepreneurial savvy at the tender age of 13 when he started selling
garlic-cooked peanuts, the self-made industrialist went on to build a diversified,
multi-billion-peso business empire consisting of companies that quickly became
major players in their respective industries.

Mr. John, built JG Summit, from a modest trading business into one of the
Philippines’ biggest companies with a year-end 2019 market capitalization of
USS$11.4 billion with significant interests in air transportation, telecommunications,
banking, food, power, property and hospitality, and petrochemicals.
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Industrialist Challenger

He has been called by many business leaders as an
“industrialist challenger” and a “disruptor” primarily
because of his being unafraid to venture into highly
competitive industries, dipping his hands into untested
waters and nurturing them no matter how long it takes

to achieve profitability. Mr. John has been hailed for
challenging the incumbent by setting up businesses against
market Goliaths in capital-intensive industries such as
airline, telecoms, power and petrochemicals.

In 1954 he founded Universal Robina Corporation (URC),
which started out from cornstarch manufacturing, and later
on introduced the first locally-manufactured instant coffee
brand Blend 45. He then ventured into poultry and later

to meat products and animal feeds from his own Robina
Farms, even as URC led the savory snack market with its
pioneering Jack ‘N Jill brand products that are continuously
being patronized and loved by generations upon generation
of Filipinos today.

“Mr. John has been
hailed for challenging
the incumbent by

setting up businesses
against market Goliaths
in capital-intensive
industries”

During the turbulent economic times of the early 1980s,
he forayed into his first mall development, putting up
Robinsons Ermita in Manila which thereafter spawned
into a chain of malls, supermarkets and department
stores nationwide, further expanding his businesses’
consumer appeal to include lifestyle, entertainment and
dining options. He also created the first modern mixed-
use complex in the Philippines, the Robinsons Galleria
located at the historic crossroads of EDSA and Ortigas.
Built on a land considered sacred for having witnessed a
crucial turning point in the nation’s history where people
from all walks of life gathered into what has become the
first People Power Revolution, Mr. John donated that
corner spot to the Catholic Church where The Shrine of
Our Lady of EDSA now stands.

In the early 1990s he entered the airline business, a
field dominated then by Philippine Airlines. Mr. John
launched Cebu Air, Inc. (CEB) which pioneered the budget
airline model in the country by focusing on operational
efficiencies and breakthrough marketing. This helped
change the game and revolutionized the way people
travel with his budget friendly air fares and incredibly
affordable promo fares to numerous domestic and
international destinations, making travelling on a plane
available almost literally to everyJuan. Today, CEB is the
biggest player in the local airline industry and has been
the catalyst of the nation’s aviation industry’s growth.

“Mr. John continued on,
this time to help people
manage their finances,
expand their businesses
and achieve their
dreams of having their
own homes”

Likewise, his investment in JG Summit Petrochemicals
Group shows his clear commitment to growing the
Philippines as an industrial power. To date, JG Summit
Petrochemical Corporation is the first and largest
integrated polyethylene (PE) and polypropylene (PP)
resin manufacturer in the Philippines while JG Summit
Olefins Corporation operates the country’s first and only
naphtha cracker plant, both located in Batangas.

Meanwhile, as the Robinsons brand was further
expanded to now include Robinsons Land and Robinsons
Bank, Mr. John continued on, this time to help people
manage their finances, expand their businesses and
achieve their dreams of having their own homes, as
they work hard for their families and persevere to make
their lives better.

Nation-builder

Mr. John has been hailed as a visionary for planning
decades ahead, such as when he planted the seeds for
overseas diversification long even before the creation
of unified economic blocs such as ASEAN.

His overseas expansion of URC has enabled JG
Summit Holdings to become one of the few Filipino
conglomerates that was able to plant the Philippine
flag in the region making it the first Philippine
Multinational Corporation (MNC). Today, URC is
recognized as one of the largest food manufacturers
in Asia with market leadership in certain categories
like biscuits in Thailand and beverages in Vietnam. It
has presence in thirteen countries in the ASEAN and
Oceania regions, generating close to USS$2.6 billion in
annual sales in 2019.

Now employing close to some 75,000 people in

the country and all across the region, made the
Gokongwei Group (composed of JG Summit Holdings,
Robinsons Retail Holdings and Summit Media Group)
as one of the biggest, if not the biggest employers, in
the Philippines today.
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Philanthropist

Amongst Filipino business tycoons, Mr. John also blazed a
trail in local philanthropy when during his 80th birthday,
he announced the donation of half of all his personal
holdings to establish the Gokongwei Brothers Foundation
(GBF), the philanthropic arm of the Group which is focused
on providing Science, Technology, Engineering, and
Mathematics (STEM) education and scholarships for the
underprivileged.

“He firmly believed that

education is the best way
to lift the country”

Mr. John considered education as an investment for one’s
future and he has put a premium on it. Even though he
had to work at an early age to support his family, school
was still a big thing for the former elementary and high
school valedictorian of University of San Carlos in Cebu
City. He firmly believed that education is the best way to
lift the country, and that a quality education that one could
get is what will enable one to compete in this world.

Today, GBF supports close to 400 scholars a year, most
notably in the technical-vocational field. It has put up

a Php100-million Technical Training Center in Calamba,
Laguna to serve as the new home of its flagship Iskolar

ni Juan Tech-Voc program. Furthermore, the foundation
was among the first to establish large-scale educational
philanthropy in the Philippines through the Ateneo’s

John Gokongwei School of Management, as well as De

La Salle’s John Gokongwei School of Engineering and the
John Gokongwei Innovation Center, among others. Xavier
School, in recognition of his invaluable contribution to the
institution, has named its Junior High School Building as
the Gokongwei Junior High School Building in his honor.
Immaculate Conception Academy likewise has named one
of its buildings at its Greenhills, San Juan campus as the
Dona Juanita ML Gokongwei Building, in honor of his late
beloved mother.

Leader and
Inspiration

For his leadership in making the Gokongwei
Group of companies a force for nation
building, the Management Association of
the Philippines (MAP) in 2017 bestowed on
Mr. John the prestigious MAP’s Man of the
Year award in recognition of his business
acumen and management qualities, steering
the Gokongwei Group into remarkable
growth through his foresight and
exceptional ability to launch new ventures
and transform existing ones to better adapt
to challenging times and an unpredictable
future.

“As the journey of his long and

fulfilled life found meaning
in providing the thousands
of Filipinos who have been

helped provide for their families

through gainful employment in
the conglomerate, Mr. John has
certainly made life better for

every Filipino.”
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MAP’s Man of the Year award is a
prestigious award that the premier
organization confers on individuals in
the business community or government
for attaining unquestioned distinction
in the practice of management and for
contributing to the country’s progress.

In that same year he was also conferred
with the Legacy Award from the ASEAN
Business Advisory Council (BAC) for

his key role in the growth of micro,
small, and medium enterprises in the
Philippines and Southeast Asia.

The award recognizes iconic
entrepreneurs who have served

as inspiration in advancing
entrepreneurship, which is key towards
achieving genuine inclusive growth

and sustained prosperity in ASEAN.

It is given to businessmen who have
passionately committed themselves to
growth and excellence while significantly
contributing positive impact to the
ASEAN Community.

Just as the journey of his long and
fulfilled life found meaning in providing
the thousands of Filipinos who have
been helped provide for their families
through gainful employment in the
conglomerate, Mr. John has certainly
made life better for every Filipino.

We honor him for his countless
achievements and are eternally grateful
for everything that he has done for

the company and for his numerous
contributions to the nation. His
exemplary life will truly serve as an
inspiration to several entrepreneurs and
businessmen for his pioneering ideas,
his strong work ethic, his passion and
perseverance.

Today, the Gokongwei Group is a multi-
billion-dollar enterprise that is a pillar
of the Philippine economy; a stable,
progressive, and dynamic conglomerate
that Mr. John painstakingly built for the
people he loved — his family, his 75,000
strong employees, and the Filipino
people —to make everyJuan’s life better!

Thank you, Mr. John!
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Strong financial performance on the back of favorable
macro environment and consumer sentiment
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Continuous Shareholder value creation

2nd Largest Philippine
conglomerate in terms of
market capitalization with

P 578.8

billion
as of December 27, 2019

Top performing stock
in PSEi with a share
price return of

45%

over the year ended
December 27, 2019

Diversified portfolio with market leading
businesses in their respective industries

Our strategic business units (SBU)

lRUni\gersal
Robina

7

ROBINSONS LAND
CORPORATION

&

JG SUMMIT

PETROCHEMICALS
GROUP

One of the fastest growing
commercial banks in the
Philippines

ROBINSONSBANK

A Commercial Bank

One of the leading
snackfoods and beverage
players in ASEAN and
Oceania

#1 air transportation
carrier in the Philippines

A leading mixed-use
property developer in
the Philippines

Largest and the only fully
integrated Petrochemical
complex in the Philippines

Stable dividends
paid year-on-year

with 2019 at

P0.33

per share

Net Income contribution
per business unit

Universal Robina
Corporation

Cebu Air, Inc.

Robinsons Land
Corporation

JG Summit
Petrochemicals Group

Robinsons Bank
Corporation

Others

*Others include minority
investments and
other businesses
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January

JG Summit Holdings, Inc. (JGS),
together with its subsidiaries
namely Cebu Air, Inc. (CEB),
Robinsons Land Corporation
(RLC), as well as its affiliate,
Robinsons Retail Holdings, Inc.
(RRHI), launched Data Analytics
Ventures, Inc. (DAVI) to build

a leading digital lifestyle
rewards program and create a
robust data infrastructure and
analytics business to support
the group.

Universal Robina Corporation
(URC) commerecially launched
two new variants of Great Taste
White namely White Caramel
and White Crema as well as
relaunched Original White for
its loyal consumers.

March

Robinsons Bank Corporation
(RBank) and JCB International
Co., Ltd. forged a new
partnership for JCB’s merchant-
acquiring and card-issuing
business.

RLC sold 100% of residential
condominium units in Phase
1 of its Chengdu Ban Bian Jie
project in China.

URC celebrated its 25th

PSE Listing Anniversary.
Furthermore, its Sugar and
Renewables subsidiary,
SONEDCO opened a new sugar
mill, bringing our total milling
capacity to 40,000 tons of sugar
cane a day.

CEB launched direct Cebu-
Shanghai commercial service.

May

JGS launched Digital Equity
Ventures (DEV), our venture
capital arm for Southeast
Asian digital start-ups, whose
technologies can be applied
and tested within the JGS
ecosystem.

February

The consortium which
includes JGS, Filinvest
Development Corporation,
Philippine Airport Ground
Support Solutions Inc. and
Changi Airports Philippines
(1) Pte. Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Changi Airports
International established
and incorporated Luzon
International Premiere
Airport Development
Corporation (LIPAD), a
special purpose entity

for the operations and

maintenance of Clark
International Airport.

April

JGS began its series of
long-term strategic planning
sessions to update our
purpose and core values,
and to determine the
5-year ambition, goals

and strategies of the
conglomerate and its
businesses.

RLC launched Dusit Thani
Mactan Cebu, its first
foray into the luxury resort
market.

URC announced its
long-term sustainability
commitments in line

with the United Nations
Sustainability Goals
objectives with targets

on Natural Resources
(energy and water), People
(employees, communities)
and Products.

June

RBank launched
IPONsurance®, an interest-
earning savings account
that comes with free life
insurance coverage, and GO!
Salary Loan Online Channel
which provides access to
an online application to a
multipurpose personal loan
facility for employees of
accredited companies.

MAY SAVINGS KA NA,
MAY INSURANCE KA PA!

WITH F RE E LIFE INSURANCE COVERAGE

HIGHER LIFE INSURANCE COVERAGE VERSUS OTHERS
HIGH AGE LIMIT FOR LIFE INSURANCE COVERAGE

LOWER MAINTAINING BALANCE VERSUS OTHERS

. 637-CARE (2273) S www sobinsonsbonk.comph Il Robinsansbank

S

July

TopBreed, the companion
animal product line of URC’s
Agro-Industrial Group, earned
its second “Brand of the Year”
award at the Animalis Edition
of the World Branding Awards,
presented in Vienna, Austria.

RLC opened Robinsons Galleria
South in San Pedro, Laguna.

JopBreed & 3 |
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August

LIPAD officially took over the
operations and management
of the Clark International
Airport.

RBank issued a Php5 billion
2-year corporate bond at
5.125% interest rate. The
company was also awarded
as the fastest growing
commercial bank in the
Philippines by the Global
Business Outlook Awards.

CEB bagged two merit
awards at the 17th
Philippine Quill awards

for its programs Enabling
Filipino’s dreams to take
flight and Juan Effect:
Inspiring a generation of
environmentally responsible
Filipino travelers, under the
category of Communication
Management: Corporate
Social Responsibility.

September

RLC officially inaugurated
Bridgetowne, our first
destination estate development,
and opened Summit Hotel
Greenbhills, the company’s sixth
property under the Summit
Hotels brand. RLC also topped
the Best Strategic CSR in the
Philippines category in the 9th
Annual Corporate Institutional
Investor Poll conducted by
Alpha Southeast Asia Magazine.

October

JG Summit Petrochemicals
Group (Petrochem) started
its two-month complex-
wide shut down for its
turnaround maintenance,
expansion project tie-ins,
and reliability improvement
initiatives.

RLC, in partnership with
Shang Properties, launched
Aurelia Residences that is
set to redefine urban luxury
living.
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November

CEB launched Clark-Guangzhou
route and direct Puerto Princesa-
Hong Kong flights.

URC Vietnam was announced as
one of the Top 100 Sustainable
Businesses in Vietnam, honored
by the Vietnam Business Council
for Sustainable Development in
collaboration with the Vietnam
Chamber of Commerce and
Industry. In addition, URC’s
Flour division partnered with
the Department of Education to
further the reach of its innovative
learning enhancement program,
Flourish Pilipinas.

RBank issued another corporate
bond amounting to Php5 billion at
4.30% interest rate. Moreover, its
Simplé Savings® emerged as the
Best Financial Inclusion Program at
the 3rd Bank Marketing Awards.

December

JGS entered into a joint
venture with DHL Supply
Chain, the global market
leader for contract logistics
solutions, to provide the
best-in-class transport

and distribution solutions
for Philippine-based and
international businesses in the
country under the company
DHL Summit Solutions, Inc.

CEB has joined the
International Air
Transportation Association,

the trade association for the
global airline industry.

RBank, together with our
sister company, RRHI,
introduced the new
Robinsons Cashback Card,
allowing cardholders to
earn rebates of up to 3% for
various retail purchases.

URC and Intersnack, a
champion in the savory
snacks market across Europe,
completed Intersnack’s
acquisition of a 40% stake

in URC Oceania through a
combination of cash and
shares in the Australia-based
Yarra Valley Snacks.

CEB signed a Purchase
Agreement with Airbus SAS
for the order of sixteen (16)
A330-900 aircrafts.
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First, | am happy to note that after a very challenging 2018, the JG
Summit Group once again emerged stronger and ended 2019 with
strong operating results. This strong performance has also been

well accepted by the capital markets with a sharp recovery in our

share price and consequently made our stock the top performer in

the Philippine Stock Exchange for 2019. The company'’s resiliency is
driven by the diversity of our portfolio and the disciplined approach on
how we deployed capital over the past years as well as our prudence

in spending. Over the past year, our profitability and margins grew
faster than revenues amidst the backdrop of economic slowdown in
both regional and global fronts. We saw uncertainties in trade policies
and weaker investment growth dragging the expansion in the global
economy. Closer to our home market, the delayed approval of the 2019
government budget, the public spending ban prior to the May elections,
as well as the slower rate of increase in private investments and exports,
resulted in a year-on-year deceleration in the Philippine economic
growth. Nonetheless, lower inflation due to steady prices of food and
energy, better labor market environment and stable level of remittances
helped in the recovery of our country’s private consumption growth,
benefiting JGS’ consumer-facing businesses.
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In particular, the easing inflation, receding
interest rates, improving liquidity and favorable
consumer sentiment in the Philippines enabled
the strong revenue growth from our Food,
Airline, Real Estate and Banking businesses to
outweigh the negative impact of the US-China
trade tensions to our Petrochemical business.
Beyond better customer perception and
profitability, we are pleased with the increasing
investor confidence in the company as JGS
ended 2019 with the highest share price return
among the top 30 companies in the Philippine
Stock Exchange.

“Our governance structure has evolved as we have
shifted greater decision-making and accountability to

the Strategic Business Units”

Since handing over the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) role to
Lance Gokongwei last 2018, | have sustained my support as

the Chairman of JG Summit by providing oversight, guidance
and advice on the long-term growth strategies including digital
transformation, innovation, expansion, mergers & acquisitions
and capital allocation. For instance, | have been extending
strategic counsel to JG Summit Petrochemicals Group (JGSPG)
to ensure the success of its expansion projects that will allow
us to move further downstream with new derivatives, and
diversify into value-added polymers. At the Board level, we made
some changes in the composition of the Board Committees

in 2019 to align with the best corporate governance practices
in the country. | have passed on my chairmanship of the
Corporate Governance and Board Risk Oversight Committees
to independent directors, Mr. Jose Pardo and Mr. Renato De
Guzman, respectively. Mr. Antonio Go, likewise an independent
director, remains the chairman of our Audit Committee. Apart
from appointing independent directors as Board Committee
chairpersons, we have ensured that they constitute majority of
each of the Board Committees.

In 2019, | also supported Lance as he embarked on an enterprise
transformation journey where we revisited the conglomerate’s
purpose, core values, overall vision and strategy, and defined

the role of JG Summit as a parent company. Our governance
structure has evolved as we have shifted greater decision-making
and accountability to the Strategic Business Units (SBU) after

the appointment of Chief Executive Officers and Chief Financial
Officers. This has enabled JGS’ Executive Committee to focus

on capital allocation in new verticals, group-wide strategy

and portfolio roles as well as the selection and leadership
development of top executives while observing balance between
family and professional managers to ensure stewardship in the
organization. Furthermore, from an operational and tactical
annual business plan, the group’s strategy planning is now
multi-year with clear vision on where to play and how to win.

In line with this, we have begun embedding

a group-wide, inclusive and collaborative
strategic planning framework across JGS.
Long-term ambitions have been crafted in
2019 and we will monitor the group’s progress
moving forward. We are also re-imagining the
Corporate Center as an entity that enables the
SBUs in their business growth.

The series of strategic planning sessions we
have undergone surfaced various synergistic
opportunities within our ecosystem. We have
entered into new businesses and partnerships
in 2019 that will play an important role in
generating additional value through revenue
or cost efficiencies and productivity moving
forward. We incorporated Data Analytics
Ventures, Inc. to build a leading digital lifestyle
rewards program and create a robust data
infrastructure and analytics business to support
the group; Digital Equity Ventures (DEV) which
is JGS’ venture capital arm for Southeast Asian
digital start-ups, whose technologies can be
applied and tested within the JGS ecosystem;
and Luzon International Premiere Airport
Development Corporation which has started
to operate and maintain Clark International
Airport last August 2019. We have also formed
DHL Summit Solutions, Inc. (DSSI), a joint
venture with DHL Supply Chain, to provide

the best-in-class transport and distribution
solutions for Philippine-based and international
businesses in the country.

ANNUAL REPORT
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Outlook and

Prospects for
2020

The coming years are going to be exciting as we witness
the journey of bringing JGS to new heights. | remember
when Mr. John Gokongwei, Jr. entrusted the stewardship of
the business to me as Chairman & CEO in early 2000s. JGS
shifted into the age of globalization with Universal Robina
Corporation’s (URC) push into multiple ASEAN markets
and Cebu Air, Inc.s (CEB) regional approach, and the age
of acquisitions and partnerships with strategic alliances
and joint ventures with strong players in their respective
industries. And now, | passed on the baton to Lance
Gokongwei as CEO. | am confident about JGS’ future under
his leadership as we all chart a new chapter for the group.

5-year roadmaps have been put in place where we have

defined the visions and goals of each of the businesses, and
2020 is the first year of realizing these. In general, we aim to
strengthen our positions in our respective industries as well

as grow sustainably. We will also continue to develop our
emerging businesses & accelerate digitalization and new
ways of working that will further unlock the value of the

ecosystem synergies within the group.

Nonetheless, we will remain cautious of potential risks
that could impact each of our businesses. We believe that
the intense competition will continue to linger especially
in URC while the potential approval of the proposed
Corporate Income Tax and Incentive Rationalization Act
(CITIRA) may affect office and warehouse demand for
RLC. In addition, the volatility in commodity prices could
swing both CEB and JGSPG’s profitability. Hence, we will
maintain our focus on our core capabilities to protect
and strengthen our competitive advantage, and we will
undertake a more active risk management for the group.
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In the global environment, one of the risks that remain
apparent is the trade dispute between the US and China
which could further impact worldwide trade dynamics.
There are also geopolitical tensions and economic policy
uncertainties that could influence the overall investor
sentiment. On top of that, the new coronavirus disease
(COVID-19) outbreak has become a global pandemic and has
already disrupted many businesses around the world. Given
the uncertainties, we, at JGS, are currently assessing the
multifarious risks and corresponding impacts of the outbreak
and the rapid spread of the virus on our overall financial
condition and the operations of our subsidiaries. We remain
focused on our key priorities in response to this situation
such as protecting our employees’ health and safety;
supporting our customers & communities; and strengthening
our business continuity plan amidst a difficult backdrop.

With the disruption, we expect that the Philippines’
macroeconomic environment will be challenged in 2020.
Economic growth will decelerate especially in the first half
of the year as the country’s quarantine measures would
negatively impact the domestic demand and key industries
like tourism and trade. On the other hand, we believe

that the Philippines will recover in 2021 driven by strong
government spending and infrastructure investments.

In addition, with the stable inflation rate, and proactive
economic fiscal and monetary policies from the government,
public spending & private consumption is expected to pivot
back the economy back to its growth trajectory. This is
valuable for JG Summit as we are exposed to approximately
80% of the average Filipino’s spending and a clear proxy of
the Philippine economy.

While we acknowledge the risks that can affect our
businesses in 2020, we are confident that the diversity of our
portfolio, JGS’ strong leadership team and our disciplined
financial management will help sustain the conglomerate’s
growth and profitability.

In closing, | would like to express my gratitude to our board
of directors, management, and JGS employees for getting

us to where we are now, and to you, our shareholders for
the trust and support over the years. | look forward to your
continued confidence in JGS as we embark on the next phase
of transformation and growth.
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2019 Performance

We are delighted to share with you our solid 2019
performance. Coming from a very challenging 2018, we
saw a strong recovery as JG Summit (JGS) posted significant
profit expansion for the period.

JGS' overall topline increased by 3% year-on-year (YoY) to
Php301.8 billion for the full year ended December 2019
driven by: (1) robust passenger volumes, better yields and
higher ancillary revenues in our airline business, (2) wider
net interest margins (NIM) and trading gains in our banking
unit; as well as (3) our Php3.0 billion share in United
Industrial Corporation Limited’s (UIC) gain arising from its
acquisition of additional shares in Marina Centre Holdings
and Marina Mandarin Hotel. These were tempered by
slower growth in our international branded consumer
foods (BCF) and agro-industrial and commodities (AIC)
divisions; as well as lower sales volume and average selling
prices in our petrochemicals business.

Core net income after tax amounted to Php25.3 billion,
up 13% YoY due to margin improvements in our airline,
banking and food subsidiaries. Including the impact of
mark-to-market and forex gains totaling Php1.5 billion,
plus our share in UIC’s gain on acquisition and JG Summit
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Petrochemical Group’s (JGSPG) impairment loss reversal,
net income grew faster at 63% YoY to Php31.3 billion in
2019.

JGS' balance sheet as of end-December 2019 remains
healthy with gearing and net debt-to-equity ratios at

0.67 and 0.52, respectively. At the Parent level, net debt
amounted to Php76.0 billion after settling Php24.5 billion
of maturing debt last August 2019 through a combination
of cash, short term and long term debts. With this, the
blended cost of the parent’s long-term debts stood at 4.7%
with an average remaining term of 3.3 years. Furthermore,
we continue to receive stable stream of dividends which
totaled Php16.5 billion mainly coming from Universal
Robina Corporation (URC), Manila Electric Company (MER),
and Cebu Air Inc. (CEB). Lastly, the group had Php72.1
billion of capital expenditures in 2019 with majority being
spent for CEB’s aircraft acquisitions, aircraft engine and
various non-flight equipment, as well as JGSPG’s expansion
projects.
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“Coming from a very challenging 2018, we saw a strong
recovery as JGS posted significant profit expansion for

the period... 2019 has truly been a turning point for JG
Summit with all the transformation initiatives to bring

JGS to the next summit.”

Key performances and highlights
of our subsidiaries are as follows:

On URC, our transformation initiatives on better supply
fulfillment and wider distribution coverage in BCF
Philippines have started to generate encouraging results
across all our categories. These programs, together with
higher flour volumes and the strong Animal Nutrition &
Health (ANH) performance in AIC, drove URC'’s revenues
to Php134.2 billion, a 5% growth YoY. This was moderated
by softer results in our Thailand, Oceania and Vietnam
markets. The transformation projects in our domestic BCF
business and the recovery in Vietnam likewise resulted in
better operating margins. Hence, URC’s net income grew
by 6% YoY to Php9.8 billion.

URC continues to reinvest in brand building and
distribution in its Branded Consumer Foods (BCF)
Philippines to strengthen its brand portfolio and sustain
its robust topline growth. Our key strategies are focused
on growing the core and expanding for more. On growing
the core, we have pushed for strong trade executions
with proactive advertising across all channels and regions
to support product launches. In expanding for more, we
continue to develop products based on the latest global
consumer trends on new flavors and formats across

the region. In line with this, URC has rolled out the new
innovation process management across its business

units which requires a more in-depth understanding of
consumer insights as input to brand renovation and new
product launches. Some of the successful launches in 2019

were the two new white coffee variants namely Great Taste
White Caramel and Great Taste White Crema, as well as
the reinvigorated version of the original Great Taste White.
Lastly, we also announced our long-term sustainability
commitments in line with the United Nations Sustainability
Goals objectives on Natural Resources (energy and water),
People (employees, communities) and Products.

“We have implemented a
more active treasury risk
management to mitigate

their impact to our
profitability.”

On CEB, the sustained double-digit growth in passenger
volume, higher average fares, and increased ancillary
revenue per passenger, boosted its revenues by 14% YoY
to Php84.8 billion in 2019. We saw a significant recovery in
CEB’s net income, which surged 133% to Php9.1 billion in
2019, driven by effective cost management, deployment
of larger and more fuel-efficient planes, coupled with
favorable oil and currency environment for the year.
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CEB’s operations remain to be solid with on-time
performance ending the year at 71% and seat load factor
at 86%. We continue to protect our stronghold in Manila
airport while adding new routes in Clark and making Cebu
a transit hub to other islands in the country. To accelerate
the replacement of our existing A320 and A330 CEOs in

to a more fuel-efficient and more eco-friendly fleet, we
have signed a purchase agreement with Airbus SAS for the
order of 16 A330-900 aircrafts. Furthermore, given our
strategy to expand our Cargo business, we have converted
two Cebgo ATR 72-500s into cargo planes with our first ATR
freighter beginning operations in September 2019. Lastly,
given our exposure to fuel prices and foreign exchange
rates, we have implemented a more active treasury risk
management to mitigate its impact to our profitability.

“We have officially
unveiled our first
destination estate named
Bridgetowne, which will

have residential units, BPO
& Grade-A office buildings,
a lifestyle center and a
five-star hotel.”

RLC also delivered strong results with revenues ending
the year at Php30.2 billion, a 3% increase vs SPLY. We saw
stable growth & cinema ticket sales in our existing malls,
rental escalation & higher renewal rates in our previously
built offices, better occupancy rates in our current

hotels, plus fresh contribution from our newly opened
properties. All these resulted in double-digit topline growth
across our investments portfolio. In addition, there was
strong demand for residential units from both local and
foreign buyers. However, our Industrial and Integrated
Developments (IID) division experienced a decline from a
higher base last year, when we booked revenues from the
sale of land to our joint venture with Shang Properties,
Inc. RLC’s net income rose 6% YoY to Php8.7 billion in
2019, slightly ahead of revenue growth despite higher
depreciation expense mainly from newly opened hotels,
and higher interest expense.
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On our Commercial Centers Division, we
successfully opened our 52nd mall named
Robinsons Galleria South which is San
Pedro, Laguna’s first world-class full service
mall. We also opened the first phase of the
expansion of our Robinsons Starmills mall
in Pampanga, and began the construction
of two new malls and two mall expansions
that will come online in 2020. On our
Offices division, we have geared up for the
completion of three new offices namely
Cybergate Magnolia, Giga Tower, and our
second build-to-suit office development

in Luisita, Tarlac. On our Hotels & Resorts
division, we have opened Dusit Thani
Mactan Cebu Resort, our five-star luxury
resort located on Mactan Island in Cebu;
and Summit Hotel Greenhills in San Juan
City which is easily accessible by business
and leisure travelers in the Metro. On our
Residential division, we launched the first
of the four towers of Sync Residences
which caters to young professionals and
early nesters. In addition, we have officially
launched Aurelia Residences in partnership
with Shang Properties which is our foray

to premium condominiums. On our China
business, we have successfully sold 100%
of the condominium units in Cheng Du,
China for the phase 1 project. And on our
mixed-use developments, we have officially
unveiled our first destination estate named
Bridgetowne, which will have residential
units, BPO & Grade-A office buildings, a
lifestyle center and a five-star hotel.

“Expansion will allow
us to move further

downstream with new
derivatives”

Moving to JGSPG, its revenues declined

by 31% YoY to Php29.1 billion in FY19. The
weakened market conditions brought about
by protracted US-China trade tensions

and the overall slowdown in the global
economy, has led to tepid petrochemicals
demand causing our volumes and average

selling prices to drop. We also had lower
utilization rates considering the entire
complex was shut down for a scheduled
turnaround maintenance in 4Q19, which
we also used as an opportunity to execute
project tie-in activities related to our
capacity and downstream expansion plans.
Full year EBITDA declined by 84% YoY to
Php538.7 million as average selling prices
fell faster than raw material costs. However,
anticipating better EBITDA generation
capability after the completion of the
turnaround maintenance and the expansion
projects, we reversed an impairment loss
booked in 2004, when JGSPG’s operations
were only limited to polymer plants. This
more than offset higher financing costs,
leading JGSPG to end 2019 with a net
income of Php970.6 million.

JGSPG has successfully executed the bulk
of its expansion projects in 2019. This
expansion will allow us to move further
downstream with new derivatives namely
Butadiene and Raffinate-1 from Mixed C4,
as well as Benzene, Toluene and Mixed
Xylenes from Pygas. In addition, from basic
polymers, we can diversify into value-
added polymers with our polypropylene
expansion and new bimodal polyethylene
plant by 2020. Since 2019 was a scheduled
turnaround maintenance year where

the entire complex shuts down for two
months, we have implemented reliability
initiatives to maximize run rates as well as
expansion product tie-ins. The organization
has also been preparing for the expanded
operations and upcoming products in
preparation for the commissioning of the
developments in 2020.
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“RBank was awarded as the
fastest growing commercial bank
in the Philippines by the Global
Business Outlook Awards”

Lastly, RBank’s revenues totaled Php8.1 billion, a

32% increase YoY on the back of a 17% loan portfolio
expansion, mostly led by consumer loans. In addition,
we booked a substantial trading gains from treasury
business activities for the period. Net income rose faster
at 126% growth to Php719.4 million as NIMs continue to
widen. The shift towards consumer loans lifted average
loan yields while favorable policies from the central bank
helped manage funding costs.

RBank was awarded as the fastest growing commercial
bank in the Philippines by the Global Business Outlook
Awards, and the best commercial bank in the Philippines
by the International Banker 2019 Banking Awards in
recognition of the bank’s significant expansion as well

as its introduction of innovative products in the market.
We have strengthened our cards business by increasing
the number of users, frequency and utilization through
digital marketing initiatives and merchant acquisitions,
among others. We also introduced “Iponsurance” which
is an insurance bundle with high life insurance coverage
and low maintaining balance. Furthermore, we continue
to expand our branch network to widen our reach.

We launched three hybrid branches which incorporate
traditional banking with digital banking platforms to
simplify the customer journey. Meanwhile, we have
diversified our funding sources in 2019 to support our
growth. We issued a Php5.0 billion two-year corporate
bond last August 2019 which was 4x oversubscribed, and
raised another Php5.0 billion in Nov 2019 to complete our
Php10.0-billion bond program.

In addition to the robust performances of most of our
businesses, we have strengthened JGS’ role as a parent
with our enterprise transformation initiatives which
commenced in 2019. Our transformation journey will be
discussed in the succeeding sections.
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My fi rst yea r as In 2019, we also lost our founder, Mr. John Gokongwei, Jr., who, along with his

o brothers, built the foundation of JGS and brought the company to where it is today.
JGS’ Pre5|dent Through his vision, the company has significantly expanded its portfolio, and has
become one of the largest and most diversified conglomerates in the Philippines.
a nd CEO After assuming the President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) role last May 2018,
a new challenge of steering the direction for JGS under my leadership has begun.
2019 was my first full year in this role. It was the beginning of a new chapter for the
group, a new route to embark on, and a new summit to conquer.

Prior to my appointment, an elaborate
organizational and governance
transformation journey started a few
years ago to ensure continued success.
We have implemented a number of
organizational changes on the Strategic
Business Units (SBUs) and on the parent
company to shift decision-making

and accountability on the growth

and development of each SBU while
safeguarding the group’s assets with
robust risk management and internal
control system. These initiatives have
allowed me to have greater focus in
crafting the overall strategy of the group,
maximizing synergies across the JGS
ecosystem, and determining the next
growth pillars of the organization.

With these strategic foundations in
place, we continued the transformation
journey in 2019. With a more inclusive
and iterative process in crafting our long-
term ambition, we began deliberating on
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the future of JGS. Building on the work
we’ve done in the previous year when
we identified key strategic thrusts for
the organization, we have gathered
feedback and inputs from key leaders
across the group, including members of
the Gokongwei family. We revisited our
Purpose, Values and described the JGS
Leader, all of which are foundational
elements that will enable us to achieve
our 5-year Ambition and Goals. We
also launched a long-term strategic
planning process using the Objectives,
Goals, Strategies and Measures
(OGSM) model allowing us to develop
and document the 5-year business
strategy of JGS and our subsidiaries.
And lastly, we have embarked on an
enterprise transformation initiative

to strengthen the organizational
alignment, collaboration and execution
among the parent and SBUs towards a
common, long-term ambition.

“It was the beginning of a new
chapter for the group, a new
route to embark on, and a new
summit to conquer.”

We recognized the need for JGS’
planning cycle to shift from a tactical
annual budget and operating plan to
a more long-term strategic roadmap
where there is clear alignment among
the Group’s ambitions, as well as the
roles of the corporate center (CC) and
each SBU in the portfolio. The use of
the OGSM across all SBUs has allowed
us to build upon the wins of previous
transformation initiatives, and has
provided us a common language for
strategic planning.

JGS’ OGSM framework begins with a
purpose, an inspiring articulation of the
company’s reason for being and the role
it plays in the lives of its stakeholders;
the vision for the next 3-5 years; the
financial and non-financial goals, the
strategic choices we make about where
to compete, and the strategies we

will employ to win. In 2019, we have
redefined JGS’ purpose and values;
stated our 5-year ambitions, goals, and
key strategic directions; enabled the
SBUs to craft their own 5-year strategies
as guided by the parent company’s
ambitions and their cascaded portfolio
roles within the conglomerate; as well
as emerged the need to revisit the
parenting strategy, the role of the CC
and how it can be a strong enabler for
the SBUs.

Our purpose was crafted after much
reflection on what has brought about
the success of our company in the
last 65 years, and what we see as the
reason for being for this company.
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OGSM as our new Strategic
Planning Framework

JG Summit’s purpose is to have

an unrelenting commitment to
provide our customers with better
choices, creating shared success
with our stakeholders. We have a
passionate, highly determined and
resilient attitude towards enabling
possibilities, creating new and
disruptive business models, product
offerings and innovations. We put our
customers first, who are individuals,
families or groups whose lives we
aspire to make better by providing
innovative products and services that
are more affordable, accessible, and
convenient

We believe that we will only truly
succeed if our stakeholders succeed
with us. We will continue to provide
stable livelihood to our employees,
nurturing work environment

and opportunities for career and
professional growth, enabling

them to provide for and raise their
families well; enable the growth and
progress of the communities where
we operate, through the livelihood
we create and the development of
the local economy; bring along our
business partners and enable them to
create value for their own businesses;
and provide our shareholders with
wealth, financial freedom, and the
opportunity to elevate their lifestyles
in meaningful ways.
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“JG Summit’s purpose is
to have an unrelenting
commitment to provide
our customers with

better choices, creating
shared success with our
stakeholders.”

With our purpose in mind, we have set our ambition
and goals in the next five years. Our vision is to solidify
JG Summit’s position among the largest conglomerates
in the Philippines. We will deliver this through a strong
entrepreneurial mindset acting with agility, courage and
grit. We will act with stewardship having a long-term
strategic view, always acting with integrity, respect and
humility. Our 5-year goals are a mix of financial and non-
financial targets which include doubling core net income
and market capitalization, generating a Return-on-Equity
(ROE) above cost of equity, achieving a satisfactory score
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for sustainability, delivering high levels of
employee engagement, and improving
internal customer net promoter score.

To realize our long-term ambition and
targets, it is imperative that we make
deliberate and disciplined choices on where
to compete and define a clear portfolio
strategy. We will drive the full potential of
our core businesses in food, air transport,
real estate and petrochemicals, leverage
our ecosystem synergies as we venture

into infrastructure, technology and logistics,
identify new plays and grow our banking
unit, and maximize the value of our core
investments in power, real estate and
telecommunications. We will make these
happen by building a leadership that creates
conditions for employee engagement

and high performance; harnessing digital
technology to maximize core growth and
productivity, and generate value through
ecosystem synergies; embedding a strong
focus on customers and employees
through enhanced employee and customer
experience; and accelerating the definition
of sustainability philosophy, policy, programs
and practices that are integrated into all
businesses and stakeholder engagements
across the group.

JGS’ Role as a Parent and

ANNUAL REPORT

our Enterprise Transformation

Initiative

“We will make sure that JGS and
its subsidiaries’ ambitions happen

by embarking on an enterprise
transformation initiative.”

After we established the total corporate strategy, we

have worked on determining the right parenting strategy
and consequently the role and structure of the center

as well as the right governance model. Based on the
OGSMs presented by our subsidiaries, we believe that
JGS can add more value to the group by driving cross-BU
synergies though scalable cost and expenses, possible
revenue synergies and sharing of data and talent; making
available new, unique, and expensive competencies across
the organization; providing access to capital markets

and resourcing; and challenging business strategies and
financial targets through healthy dialogues. With these,
we have defined our key parenting roles which include
providing strategic guidance and allocating capital to

our subsidiaries and new investments; developing our
leadership and succession plans, and ensuring portability
of talents within the organization; and managing the
conglomerate’s reputation which encompasses our group-
wide sustainability strategy.

We will make sure that JGS and its subsidiaries’ ambitions
happen by embarking on an enterprise transformation
initiative. Our approach to transformation spans

the delivery of our Purpose and 5-year OGSM, the
development of leaders who will bring us to our desired
destination, the demonstration of our core values of
Integrity, Stewardship and Entrepreneurial Spirit, and

the commitment to support and enable individual and
personal change.

2019 has truly been a turning point for JG Summit with
all the transformation initiatives to bring JGS to the next
summit. However, with the coronavirus disease becoming

a global pandemic early in 2020, we believe
that we are now living in a very extraordinary
period where communities’ lives and
businesses have been heavily disrupted.
While we cannot predict the future, it is
incumbent upon all of us to start assessing,
and more importantly, preparing for the
most plausible scenarios we might face
moving forward. |, together with Mr. James
and our SBU and CCU leaders, have put
scenario planning and business continuity
plan on top of our agenda. In the midst of all
the uncertainty around us, one thing | know
is certain: JGS will rise up to the challenge as
we have always done so, and that we will be
able to weather this passing storm together.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank
all our stakeholders- our shareholders, our
board of directors, and our customers for
your continued trust and support in the
organization. To my colleagues in JGS, there
is no better group of people that | would like
to be working with me, to be by my side in
these challenging times. | hope that all of you
will continue to accompany us in this new
and remarkable journey in the succeeding
years. You are the reason that makes me
supremely confident that we will only
emerge stronger, more united, and more
prepared forge ahead.
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JGS’ OGSM model

} JG Summit has an unrelenting commitment to provide our customers with better choices, creating shared success with our stakeholders.

Unrelenting Our Better Shared Our Employees Communities  Business Shareholders
. . We provide stable We enable the Partners We provide the
Commitment Customers Choices Success Stakeholders livelihood, nurturing  growth and i our quest for ownere= iy ot
A passionate, highly The individuals, families Providing innovative We only truly work environrpfent progress of the growth, we bring the public — with
determined and resilient or groups whose lives we products and services succeed if others and opportunities communities where  51ong our partners  Wealth, financial
attitutde towards enabling aspire to make better. that are more affordable, succeed with us. for career and we operate, through 314 enable them  freedom, and
possibilities, creating new accessible, and convenient. professional the livelihood we to create value the opportunity
and disruptive business growth, enabling create and the for their own to elevate their
models, product offerings them to provide development of the  psinesses. lifestyles in
and innovations for and raise their local economy. meaningful ways.
families well.
i e Entrepreneurial Mindset m‘ m
We strive for growth with a resilient, passionate and . .
agile mindset with focus on living out our purpose to Financial
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provide our customers with better choices.

Stewardship

We are fully responsible for the resources entrusted to
us, be they financial, environmental, and people. We
make sure that they are managed well and cared for,
all with sustainability at the forefront.

Integrity

We will act with honor in all our undertakings and with
all our stakeholders, upholding the principle of always

doing the right thing because it is the right thing to do,
even when no one else is watching.

By 2024, JG
Summit will
solidify its
position among
the largest
conglomerates in
the Philippines

Double core net income and market
capitalization®, and generate ROEs
above cost of equity.

Non-Financial

Achieve a satisfactory score for
sustainability, deliver high levels of
employee engagement, and improve
internal customer net promoter score

*assumes P/E is constant

Build leadership that creates conditions for employee engagement & high performance

Harness digital technology to maximize core growth and productivity, and generate value through ecosystem synergies

How to Win

Embed a strong focus on customers and employees through enhanced employee and customer experience

Accelerate the definition of sustainability philosophy, policy, programs and practices that are integrated into all
businesses and stakeholder engagements across the group.
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Core Businesses

Core Businesses are our highly-independent majority-owned businesses that

are market leaders in their respective sectors. These include Universal Robina
Corporation (URC), Cebu Air, Inc. (CEB), Robinsons Land Corporation (RLC), and
JG Summit Petrochemicals Group (JGSPG). We will strengthen and drive the full
potential of these core businesses, to ensure consistent generation of reasonable
growth and returns.

Growth Businesses

Growth Businesses could be the game-changers for JGS in the long-term but

may require additional investments in the next few years. Only Robinsons

Bank (RBank) currently falls into this category considering its scale and profit
contribution. We aim to fuel and accelerate its expansion, with the aspiration that
it will eventually become part of our core businesses. We will also be on the look-
out for potential new verticals that could boost the growth of the group further.

Ecosystem Plays

Ecosystem Plays are emerging investments that can capitalize on the JGS
ecosystem and thus help augment growth, improve the efficiency of the other
businesses, and capture value within the group. We will leverage on the synergies
available within our extensive network of businesses through our forays into
infrastructure, technology, and logistics. These include Luzon International
Premiere Airport Development Corporation (LIPAD), JG Digital Equity Ventures,

Inc. (JGDEV), Data Analytics Ventures, Inc. (DAVI) and DHL Summit Solutions, Inc.
JG Summit Holdings, Inc. (JGS) is one of the largest and highly diversified (DSSI).

Filipino conglomerates, engaged primarily in businesses that serve a growing
middle class with rising disposable incomes in the Philippines, South East
Asia and Oceania. With a strong entrepreneurial culture, we have built a vast
and growing ecosystem which cultivates various synergistic opportunities
across the group.

Core investments

As we strive towards the realization of our long-term ambition and targets,
it is imperative that we make deliberate and disciplined choices on where
to play and define a clear and dynamic portfolio strategy. Thus, we have
carefully determined the role of each of our businesses and divided our
investment portfolio into four categories:

Core investments are our minority-owned businesses which have been stable
sources of dividends and are highly-liquid. These refer to our minority stakes

in Manila Electric Company (MER), Global Business Power Corporation (GBPC),
United Industrial Corporation Limited (UIC), and PLDT, Inc. (PLDT). We will
maximize the value of these core investments through their steady stream of
cash flows and capital appreciation, or by strategically recycling capital into our
subsidiaries and joint ventures when necessary.
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Food and Beverage Air Transportation Real Estate Petrochemicals
o
° J
Universal 7
Robina cebu pacific ROBINSONS LAND
CORPORATION GROUP

One of the leading snack foods and One of the fastest growing and most One of the Philippines’ leading real estate A pioneer in the Philippine petrochemical
beverage players in the ASEAN and profitable low-cost carriers in the world companies and most reputable developers industry with the largest and only fully-
Oceania regions of mixed-use properties integrated facility in the country

JGS’ Effective Ownership

55.3% 67.8% 61.0% 100.0%
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Banking & Infrastructure Technology Technology Logistics
Financial Services

ROBINSONSE A NK LIPAD Fd- Y-DAV| Losrz.

/1
A CommerCiOI Bank Luzon International Premier Airport Development Corporation in partnership Wlth !!
JGDEV G SUMMIT
HOLDINGS, INC.
One of the fastest-growing and most innovative A consortium that will operate and JGS’ venture capital arm that JGS’ data analytics firm that A joint venture with DHL Supply
commercial banks in the Philippines manage Clark International Airport invests and develops digital develops a digital lifestyle Chain to deliver world-class
for the next 25 years start-ups in Southeast Asia rewards program and new domestic transport and integrated
data monetization models logistics park operations

JGS’ Effective
Ownership

60.0% 33.0% 100.0% 45.2% 50.0%
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Power Distribution

M,

The largest private sector
electric distribution utility
company in the Philippines

Power Generation

GLOBAL BUSINESS POWER

The leading independent power

producer in the Visayas region and

Mindoro Island

JGS’ Effective Ownership

29.6%

RAR

30.0%

Real Estate

UNITED INDUSTRIAL
CORPORATION LIMITED

A major real estate developer
in Singapore and a diversified
property investor overseas

37.0%
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Communications

PLDT

The leading telecommunications
and digital services provider in the

Philippines

11.3%*

*)G Summit’s current effective ownership vs
8.0% as of December 31, 2019
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JG Summit Holdings, Inc.

Universal Robina Corporation

Cebu Air, Inc.

Robinsons Land Corporation

JG Summit Petrochemicals Group

Robinsons Bank Corporation
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Robina

“2019 was an important pivot year and this sets a solid base in our
glide path back to sustainable growth and profitability. We are happy
that we have accelerated the growth of our Philippine market and
have brought our core branded foods business back on track. Our
transformation journey continues in full throttle as we take on the
new challenges in 2020 and beyond.”

- Irwin C. Lee, President and
Chief Executive Officer
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Universal Robina Corporation (URC) is one of the largest branded consumer food and beverage
companies in the Philippines, and has a significant presence in the ASEAN and Oceania markets.
The company is also into food ingredients and allied agro-industrial products locally. URC is among
the Philippines’ pioneers in the industry, and has been in operations for over 60 years since John
Gokongwei, Jr. established a cornstarch manufacturing plant in Pasig in 1954.

2019 Financial Performance and Key Developments

P134.2 billion, + 5% P15.0 billion, + 12%

Net Sales Operating Income

Operating income (including hogs market
valuation) grew faster at 12% to Php15 billion,
improving overall margins by 72 basis points
year-on-year (YoY).

URC posted strong results for the full year of
2019 with net sales amounting to Php134.2
billion, a growth of 5% versus same period
last year (SPLY).

Key performances of our business units are as follows:

P62.4 billion, + 8%
BCF Philippines

P42.2 billion, - 2%

BCF International

P28.3 billion, + 12%

Agro-Industrial &
Commodities

BCF Philippines: Domestic BCF International: Revenues Agro-Industrial &

revenues excluding packaging fell 2% in peso terms to Commodities (AIC): Sales
division rose 8% to Php62.4 Php42.2 billion as it was held amounted to Php28.3 billion,
billion, while operating income  back by foreign exchange a 12% increase versus
pivoted back to growth of 12%  translation. On a constant SPLY while operating margins
versus SPLY. This was driven by  currency basis, underlying were flat YoY. The strong

the successful turnaround of sales were up 2% as growth growth in Animal Nutrition &
Great Taste coffee, acceleration in Oceania and Vietnam Health (animal feeds and pet

of Jack n’ Jill snacks and was tempered by Thailand. food) lifted Agro-Industrial
noodles, recovery of C2 ready-  Despite topline challenges, Group’s sales by 12%. The
to-drink tea, and contributions  operating income increased Commodities Foods Group’s

from our joint venture by 8% to Php4.0 billion revenues also rose at the
businesses with Danone and driven by better price-cost same pace.

Vitasoy. These were supported  mix from key markets.

by better execution of our key

transformation programs in

distribution and supply chain.

P1 0,1 b| 1| ion y + 7% Net income amounted to Php10.1 billion, 7% higher versus SPLY,
driven by the growth in operating income and moderated by finance
URC Net Income costs, other expenses, and adverse foreign exchange impacts.
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“URC’s financial
position remains

strong with
cash of Php20.5

billion and
gearing ratio of
0.45 as at year-
end 2019.”

Meanwhile, URC’s financial position
remains strong with cash of Php20.5
billion and gearing ratio of 0.45 as at
year-end 2019. The Php22 billion net
debt mainly pertains to the remaining
debt at URC Oceania.

In terms of commercial developments in
2019, we were able to fix the challenges
in coffee through our relaunch. Our
distribution and trade executions,
supported by active campaigns,
resulted in growth across all regions
and channels. On our salty snacks
category, we have begun expanding
beyond the mainstream segment by
launching Piattos Party Pack, which is

in the affordable premium segment,
and a 3-peso Mr. Chips, which is our
participation in the value segment.

We are now looking into nurturing our
wellness portfolio with Nice & Natural,
one of our brands in Griffin’s in New
Zealand. In beverage, we reintroduced
Refresh as we participate more
deliberately in the water category, which
is among the fastest-growing Ready-to-
Drink segments. With a new modern
look and angle into sustainability, we aim
to attract the younger demographics,
particularly the Gen Zs, who support
brands that have a social purpose.

Lastly, we sold 40% of our consolidated
businesses in Oceania to the Europe-
based Intersnack Group. Leveraging on
URC and Intersnack’s know-how will yield
best practices in manufacturing, supply
chain and sustainability, setting the
groundwork for an even larger and more
efficient Oceania operations.

“Our ambition is to be the leading food & beverage

sustainable enterprise from the Philippines.”

5-Year OGSM

After adopting the OGSM framework when Mr. Irwin Lee became the company’s
CEO in 2018, we have revisited and refined URC’s 5-year OGSM in 2019. Our
ambition is to be the leading food & beverage sustainable enterprise from the
Philippines.

We use the term “sustainable” intentionally in a couple of dimensions. First,

our strategies should drive “sustainable, profitable growth.” While businesses
will have ups and downs, our where-to-play and how-to-win choices must

enable stable profit and cash flow growth, ultimately improving shareholder
value creation. Second, our strategies should support “sustainable consumption
and development.” This means embracing business practices that protect and
enhance our natural and people resources. This will ensure that our business, our
people, our consumer base, and the communities in which we live and operate
will continue to thrive in a sustainable future.

To achieve our long-term ambition, we have made strategic choices on where
we shall play in the succeeding years. We have classified these as Grow the Core
and Expand for More, and these will be our guiding platforms to continuously

re-excite the trade and consumers. On
Grow the Core, our focus is protecting
our categories consistently through
reinvestments and continuous consumer
in-sighting. We will continue to revisit
our proposition, communication, and
our products to make sure they remain
relevant and competitive amidst
changing consumer trends. The Expand
for More is our thrust to develop
adjacencies in snacks and beverages to
provide value to new consumers and
address growing trends in wellness,
indulgence, functionality, convenience,
and other consumer demands in the
near future.

These where-to-play choices are further supported by the
following four strategic areas on how-to-win in the coming years.

People and Planet Friendly Culture

We have a strong foundation of good people and a positive, supportive culture. We will enhance

this with talent development, digitalization, and simplification initiatives to further empower our
people, expand collaboration, and build next-generation leadership. This people development pillar,
together with natural resources management and product portfolio improvement, comprise the three
materiality focus areas in our sustainability program. We have recently completed our baselining
exercise and set targets aligned with the 2030 United Nations Sustainable Development Goals.

Products and Brands People Love

URC has a proud history of game-changing technology-driven innovations. We will complement this

with a more consumer-centric focus to increase product initiative success rate and brand building
investments. We are rolling out an Innovation Process Management system, where robust customer-
centric discovery and in-sighting processes drive new product development and renovations of

existing brands without compromising entrepreneurial speed and agility.

Product Supply Chain Transformation

We have significant opportunities to drive productivity, cost efficiencies and service responsiveness
in our end-to-end product supply chain. We will adopt best practices to eliminate waste and optimize
conversion and logistics costs. This transformation will entail leveraging our scale better in sales and
operations planning, lean manufacturing excellence and supply network optimization.

Preferred Partner of Choice

Given the scale, scope, and strength of our brand portfolio, we should aim to consistently be the
partner of choice to our customers and suppliers. We will achieve this by systematically engaging our
trade partners in joint business planning, growth expansion, digital innovation, and capability building.
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“For 2020, we will continue to reinvest
in brand building through innovation
and enhance our distribution further
as we anticipate a stronger fightback
from the competition.”
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Future Business Outlook

For 2020, we will continue to reinvest in brand building through Lastly, our transformation programs will continue
innovation and enhance our distribution further as we anticipate as we further scale LEAN manufacturing across

a stronger fightback from the competition. We are expecting URC our facilities in the Philippines, start executing our
to sustain topline growth while moderately improving operating Supply Network Design, launch big bets across
margins. Having seen good growth in our domestic operations in the region, and continue to widen our direct
2019, we set our focus to our international business as we continue distribution.

recovering Vietnam while addressing key challenges in Thailand.

Commercially, we are excited with our portfolio line-up this year Visit URC’s 2019 digital annual report for more

as we continue to strengthen our core while expanding into new information.

adjacencies across markets where we operate.
https://www.urc.com.ph/annualreport2019
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ROBINSONS LAND
CORPORATION

YOUR DREAMS, OUR FOUNDATION.

“Robinsons Land remains steadfast in its commitment to deliver
value to stakeholders as it seeks to be one of the fastest growing
developers in the Philippines in terms of profit. The company
will achieve this by offering well-designed, innovative, and
high-quality developments that all stakeholders can be proud

of; developing sustainable real estate projects; and building

landmark destination estates.”
- Frederick D. Go, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Robinsons Land Corporation (RLC), incorporated in 1980, is the real estate arm of JG Summit. It is one of
the leading mixed-use property developers in the Philippines with a proven track record of over 30 years in
the industry. RLC has a diversified portfolio with core businesses in lifestyle malls, offices, hotels, integrated
townships, industrial buildings, and residential developments.

2019 Financial Performance and
Key Developments

P30.6 billion, +3% P17.2 billion, +5%
Revenues EBITDA

P12.3 billion, +3%  P8.7 billion, +6%

EBIT Net Income

RLC capped 2019 with consolidated revenues of Php30.6 billion, registering a 3% year-on-year growth
driven by the strong performance of recurring-income businesses under its investment portfolio.
Composed of malls, offices, hotels, and industrial facilities, the investment portfolio contributed 69% of
total revenues, while the balance came from the sale of residential units and land parcels that form part
of the development portfolio. EBITDA increased steadily by 5% to Php17.2 billion, while EBIT landed at
Php12.3 billion for a marginal growth of 3%. The year ended with a 6% rise in consolidated net income to
Php8.7 billion from Php8.2 billion in 2018.
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2019 was a year of delivering strategic expansion opportunities across the
company’s core business segments.

RLC further strengthened its mall portfolio with the opening of Robinsons
Galleria South and the expansion of Robinsons Magnolia to end the year with
52 lifestyle centers nationwide spanning across 1.57 million square meters
(sgm) of gross leasable area. Robinsons Galleria South is the third lifestyle
center under the premium Galleria brand and the first full-service mall in San
Pedro, Laguna. Exuding a sense of grandeur with a whimsical vibe, the mall
quickly established itself as a must-visit destination in the province. Meanwhile,
Robinsons Magnolia opened a new expansion wing featuring a well-curated
mix of retail and dining outlets, a redesigned green park with public art
installations, cutting-edge movie theaters, a family amusement center, and a
chapel.

2019 was also marked by the completion of three new office developments
namely Cybergate Magnolia within the Magnolia Complex in Quezon City, Giga
Tower within the Bridgetowne estate in Quezon City, and RLC’s second build-
to-suit office property in Luisita, Tarlac. These prime office projects increased
total net leasable space to 592,000 sqm. RLC’s office developments continue to
receive strong interest from various locators due to their ideal location, large
floor plates, world-class engineering designs, efficient and reliable facilities, and
sustainable green building features.

The Company likewise made great strides towards its vision of building one
of the best and biggest multi-branded hotel portfolios in the Philippines.
Robinsons Land opened Summit Hotel Greenhills in San Juan, its sixth hotel
under the company-owned Summit brand. Offering modern amenities and
personalized service, the newest lifestyle hotel provides a haven for rest in a
city where work and play converge. On top of this, RLC achieved a defining
milestone with the launch of Dusit Thani Mactan Cebu, its first foray into
the luxury resort market. Located in the picturesque Punta Engafio on the
tip of Mactan Island, the five-star beachfront resort features stunning views,
sophisticated architectural designs, and a signature 100-meter infinity pool.
With these new developments, the hotel business wrapped up 2019 with 20
company-owned hotel properties and 5 franchisees.

RLC further cemented its strong foothold in the residential sector with a
remarkable 31% increase in net pre-sales of residential projects. It successfully
launched four new residential developments — The Sapphire Bloc East Tower,
Galleria Residences Cebu Tower 3, Cirrus, and the S Tower in SYNC. In addition,
the Company launched Aurelia Residences, a joint venture project with Shang
Properties, Inc. that is set to redefine urban luxury living. Featuring a limited
collection of 285 bespoke residences at the heart of Bonifacio Global City,
Aurelia Residences will be a collaborative masterpiece of world-renowned
architects and interior designers. Riding on the momentum of this successful

2019 Key Developments by the Numbers
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2 New Malls 3 Office 2 New Hotels
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collaboration, RLC forged a joint
venture partnership with DMCI Project
Developers, Inc. for the development of
a multi-tower residential project in Las
Pifas.

The industrial facilities portfolio climbed
on the growth momentum as well and
demonstrated strength in generating
revenues as it continues to expand its
geographical footprint. With locations in
Sucat, Muntinlupa, and Laguna, it closed
2019 with 77,000 sqm of total leasable
space.

The Company also achieved

significant progress in its landmark
destination estate developments
namely Bridgetowne and Sierra Valley.
Bridgetowne, RLC’s first destination
estate development, was officially
inaugurated last September 2019. The
highlight of this sprawling community
is an iconic bridge that runs across the
Marikina River and connects two major
cities: Quezon City and Pasig City. The
30-hectare estate will soon herald the
next wave of developments that will
enable Filipinos to embrace the live-
work-play-dream lifestyle in a single
locale. For Sierra Valley, an 18-hectare
destination estate in Cainta and Taytay,
Rizal, land development works have
been completed and interim commercial
locators are in place.

Complementing its efforts on local
businesses in 2019, RLC marked the
successful sell out and completion of
residential condominium units in Phase
1 of its Chengdu Ban Bian Jie project in
China. The Company will continue to
realize earnings from its international
investment in the years to come.

ol v

4 New

2 Destination

Developments Residential Estate
Developments Developments
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5-Year OGSM

RLC is set to embark on the next 5 years with the goal of becoming the fastest growing developer in the country in
terms of profit. It seeks to create value by offering well-designed, innovative, and high-quality property developments
that all stakeholders can be proud of. The Company is committed to consistently deliver on these growth objectives to
be the leading developer of sustainable real estate projects and landmark destination estates.

Resources and efforts will be focused on strengthening existing business formats and expanding the Company’s
footprint. In addition, as a response to evolving customer needs and preferences, RLC will invest in redefining customer
service standards, offering premium property developments, and introducing breakthrough innovations.

On the Human Resources front, RLC is working to cultivate a collaborative and customer-centric company culture that
is deeply committed to excellence. Following a comprehensive organizational review, it has begun improving its talent
pool with the addition of key executives, and the formation of focused teams for land acquisition and construction
management, as well as learning and development. The Company will continue to strengthen the organization in terms
of structure, culture, people resources, and processes to support its growth ambition.

As RLC rolls out its project pipeline in the coming years, the Company shall be guided by the strategic thrusts and
principles at the core of its OGSM, which will be monitored and refined amidst a rapidly-changing and highly-
competitive business environment.

ANNUAL REPORT

Future Business Outlook

“Looking ahead, RLC will continue
to widen its geographical reach
and strengthen its presence in

highly-urbanized communities,
adjacent metro areas, and key
emerging cities nationwide.”

Looking ahead, RLC will continue to widen its
geographical reach and strengthen its presence

in highly-urbanized communities, adjacent metro
areas, and key emerging cities nationwide. As the
company navigates its path towards a sustainable
future, it will take steps to grow its land bank
through strategic property acquisitions. In parallel,
the Company will actively pursue synergistic
opportunities with both public and private
institutions to deliver projects of greater value to its
customers.

With clear focus on driving synergy, sustainability,
and innovation, RLC is optimistic that it will achieve
more milestones and cement its market leadership

in the future.

Visit RLC’s 2019 digital annual report for more
information.

https://www.robinsonsland.com/AR2019/

47



https://www.robinsonsland.com/AR2019/

ANNUAL REPORT

\—‘9‘

<7

cebu pacific

48

“2019 was a remarkable year for CEB as we
improved our operating profit margin to 15%, and
more than doubled our net income from 2018 to
Php9.1 billion. 2019 also marked the arrival of our
next-generation, new engine option (NEO) jets,
which we consider the foundation of our re-fleeting
plan and the heart of our sustainability program.
Macroeconomic factors were also favorable, with
fuel prices down and peso appreciating, ending
our 2019 with a strong balance sheet. 2020

looks to be a different story due to the COVID-19
pandemic effectively removing almost a quarter of
our operations already. With our various ongoing
management initiatives to ensure passenger and
employee safety, operational and financial stability,
we hope to end this year still as one of the most
resilient airlines in the industry.”

- Andrew L. Huang, Chief Finance Officer

Cebu Air, Inc. (CEB), the air transportation arm
of JG Summit, is the Philippines’ leading airline
company and remains a pioneer in creative
pricing strategies. Since its incorporation in
1996, CEB has created an extensive network
with year-round affordable flights to 37 domestic
and 27 international destinations; and has
become one of the fastest-growing low-cost
carriers in the world. The company also offers
air cargo transportation which allows for
seamless movement of goods from key domestic
hubs to CEB international stations and major
consolidator ports in the region.

ANNUAL REPORT

2019 Financial
Performance and
Key Developments

In 2019, CEB entered a recovery phase and
exhibited resiliency from the Philippine aviation
storm of 2018. Passengers flown increased 11%
to 22.5 million versus last year as backed by
stronger underlying demand and solid execution
of revenue initiatives. This drove total revenue to
grow 14% year-on-year (YoY) to Php84.8 billion.
Moreover, passenger growth remained ahead of
seat growth of 9%, resulting in a healthy seat load
factor of 86.4%. Similarly, Revenue Passenger
Kilometer (RPK) increased 15% to 25 billion, ahead
of Available Seat Kilometer (ASK) growth of 13%
to 29 billion, as we expanded internationally.
Macroeconomic drivers were likewise in our favor,
as average Jet fuel price declined 8.9% to $77.24/
bbl, and Philippine Peso strengthened, averaging
Php51.79/USS vs Php52.67/USS in 2018.

These have all contributed to significant growth

in operating profits. 2019 EBITDAR grew 36% to
Php30.3 billion, while EBIT posted Php12.6 billion,
a 79% increase from last year, for an EBIT margin
of 15%. Overall, we are pleased to report that

our net income more than doubled-from Php3.9
billion in 2018 to Php9.1 billion in 2019.

With these, CEB remains one of the most
profitable airlines in the country, and globally.
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“We are pleased to
report that our net
income more than
doubled-from Php3.9

billion in 2018 to
Php941 billion in
2019.”

2019 also marked the arrival of next-generation
jets, capacity leadership in key hubs, and global
industry membership.

New Engine Option (NEO) jets lay the foundation
of the next stage of re-fleeting for CEB. We
welcomed a total of 12 new aircraft—six (6)
Airbus 321NEOQ, five (5) Airbus A320NEO, and

an ATR 72-600. Each new NEO aircraft has an
Ecoplane seal to identify that it is more fuel-
efficient.

In terms of network growth, new destinations
and new routes were opened in 2019. CEB
ended as the capacity leader in Clark and
Palawan, enabling a lot more Juans to fly
conveniently and affordably. The network was
ramped up by 10 new connections across hubs,
the first one being the Manila to Marinduque
route in April. This move allows for faster access
to the island, compared to the eight-hour
journey by land and ferry.

International growth took place as Cebu-
Shanghai flights started operations. CEB also
began flying between Manila and Shenzhen, as
well as between Clark and Guangzhou. These
three routes signify a demand for access to and
from more Chinese destinations.
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CEB further pushed growth in Northern and
Central Luzon with the beginning of operations
to three new routes from the Clark hub namely
Bacolod, lloilo, and Narita, Japan. The Clark-
Narita route is the first from Clark that flies
directly to Tokyo.

To close off the year, two additional routes from
Puerto Princesa were launched — one to and
from Clark and the other is to and from Hong
Kong. These new routes make us the largest
carrier, capacity-wise at Clark International
Airport with a 28% share, and Palawan, counting
both Coron (Busuanga) and Puerto Princesa, at
46% share.

CEB being inducted into the International

Air Transport Association (IATA), the trade
association of the global airline industry was
another milestone for the year to be celebrated.
With this, CEB became one of the more than
290 member-airlines from 117 countries all over
the world. CEB is IATA’s largest member among
Philippine carriers. Our formal membership

is preceded by the airline’s compliance with

the IATA Operational Safety Audit, a globally
recognized evaluation system.

“CEB being inducted
into the International

Air Transport
Association (IATA),

the trade association
of the global airline
industry was another
milestone for the year
to be celebrated.”
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5-Year OGSM

CEB conducted its monthly strategic planning including participation in a series of workshops to establish its
own 5-year strategic plan. 2019 was then concluded with the company’s creation of its goals and objectives
geared toward strong leadership with sustainable profitability.

CEB aims to maintain its strong market leadership status by providing air transport solutions in key regions
throughout the Philippines and in select cities in Asia and beyond. This will be achieved through cost-effective,

efficient processes and high caliber service attuned to the needs of our customers.

Our commercial strategies include:

by opening new hubs, expanding by maximizing capacity in Manila
international footprint, and and driving seats through increased
accelerating growth on ancillary frequency of flights in existing

and cargo businesses; stations.

Future Business Outlook

CEB is targeting to grow its 2020 revenues by 10%. This will be mainly driven
by solid passenger sales performance and accelerated ancillary and cargo
businesses. Initiatives to ensure operational efficiency and sustainability are
also in place — continuous re-fleeting program to maintain young and fuel-
efficient aircraft and digital transformation. These will help maintain a healthy
EBIT margin of 13.5%. However, given the major disruption in the operations
from travel restrictions and quarantines brought by 2019 Novel Coronavirus,
2020 outlook will be re-assessed to consider the effect of this pandemic.

Visit CEB’s 2019 digital annual report for more information.

https://cebupacificaircorporate.com/2019CEBAR/
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JG SUMMIT

PETROCHEMICALS
GROUP

“Global economic uncertainty and ongoing trade tensions which
began in 2018 carried through into the whole of 2019. The
petrochemical business was beset with relatively high crude oil and
raw material prices, whereas prices of petrochemical products fell
sharply in 2019 as demand growth weakened and supply length
increased, with the new start-ups in the Middle East and the US
having started to flood the market. Petrochemical producers reached
the year-end with product markets under pressure from slower
demand and with a subdued outlook for 2020, which has just started
to also be compounded by the worsening health situation in China.
2020 will prove to be a difficult year for the petrochemicals business
but we will carry on and focus on the start-up before end-2020 of the
new value-added businesses.”

- Patrick Henry C. Go, President and
Chief Executive Officer

JG Summit is a pioneer in the petrochemical industry in the Philippines, having two wholly-owned petrochemical
investments operating its fully integrated world-class manufacturing complex in Batangas City, around 120

km south of Manila. These subsidiaries, JG Summit Petrochemical Corporation (JGSPC) and JG Summit Olefins
Corporation (JGSOC), are collectively known as the JG Summit Petrochemicals Group (JGSPG).
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2019 Financial Performance
and Key Developments

In 2019, JGSPG was faced with a severely depressed
petrochemicals market, primarily brought about by the global
economic slowdown caused by the protracted US-China trade
tensions.

Due to dampened market conditions, oversupply especially
for linear low-density polyethylene (LLDPE) and also some
production losses from operational issues, total capacity
utilization for the polymer plants dropped to 63% in 2019,
from 2018’s 69%. Owing to weak polymers demand, 2019
capacity utilization of the upstream cracker facility also had to
be reduced to 67%, from 2018’s 94%.

Despite some optimizations from several successful swing

runs of the polyethylene (PE) reactors, which helped allocate
PE reactor production towards higher-margin high-density
polyethylene (HDPE) grades rather than oversupplied LLDPE
grades, total polymers production dropped 16% to 349 kilotons
(kT) from last year’s 417 kT, in response to lackluster PE and
polypropylene (PP) demand.

Combined revenues of JGSPC and JGSOC for the year dropped
by 31% to Php30.1 billion, while EBITDA was only about a tenth
of last year’s, at Php539 million. This covers net sales volumes
of 649 kT of both export bulk chemicals and polymer products.

We have also successfully executed the bulk of our expansion
projects in 2019. These projects will allow us to move further
downstream with new derivatives namely Butadiene and
Raffinate-1 from Mixed C4, and Benzene, Toluene and Mixed
Xylenes from Pygas; and further diversify into value-added
polymers with our polypropylene expansion and new bimodal
polyethylene plant by 2020. In October 2019, we started

our two-month complex-wide shut down for our plant’s
turnaround maintenance, expansion project tie-ins, and
reliability improvement initiatives.

ANNUAL REPORT

5-Year OGSM

JGSPG has undergone series of strategic
planning sessions in line with JG Summit’s
strategic framework. In addition, we used
JGSPG’s vision and mission statements as
guidance in determining our long-term
ambition, goals, strategies and plans in the
coming years.

With the ongoing complex-wide expansion
well underway, JGSPG is further expanding
the business through relentless innovation
and development of higher-value products,
to then be able to access higher-margin
markets. The company continues to

strive towards operational excellence

and is in constant pursuit of value-adding
opportunities, which are levers towards
sustaining profitable growth. We aim

to accomplish all of these by ensuring

the development of our people, by

always carrying out our operations in a
safe and efficient manner, and by being
environmentally responsible in all aspects of
our enterprise.

We have also set key strategic areas on
where we shall play in order to achieve our
ambition. First is prioritizing our domestic
markets where we will maximize sales to
current and prospective local customers. The
Philippines has a sizeable domestic polymers
and chemicals market that is still very

much reliant on imports and therefore can
benefit greatly from having a reliable local
supplier. We will also serve close-to-home
markets where we can take advantage of the
Philippines’ geographical location vis-a-vis
the South East Asian (SEA) and North East
Asian (NEA) logistics. We could also realize
value from arbitrage plays as the facility has
the capability for loading deep sea cargoes
to serve destinations such as the US and
Europe which can be tapped whenever the
opportunity arises. In addition, we shall
optimize existing assets and investments.
The available facilities allow us for expanding
the product portfolio to include high-
demand, high-margin fuels such as LPG and
jet fuel. Lastly, we will strengthen direct
linkages, i.e., target direct buying and selling
where able. We will optimize direct supply
and distribution channels for maximum
margins.
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Future Business Outlook

In light of the ongoing expansion of the petrochemical complex, key focus
areas for JGSPG in 2020 are the timely, safe and successful execution of
the ongoing projects; and the organizational readiness for the expanded
operations for all functional groups, upcoming new products such as
butadiene, raffinate-1, aromatics, bimodal and metallocene PE, and
upcoming new businesses such as LPG trading, sales and marketing of local
aromatics for chemicals use and gasoline blending.

While the ongoing COVID-19 global health pandemic is expected to
severely impact the first two quarters of 2020, the new downstream
products and upcoming fuel sales are expected to improve overall margins
starting 4Q 2020, as the company starts to shift gears towards serving
higher-value markets. Potential upsides are also carefully being studied,
such as olefins importation to help maximize expanded polymer capacities,
and the possibility of increased LPG sales for fuel use, both of which will
depend on how market demand evolves in the coming months.

By 2021, all expanded and new units are expected be fully commissioned.
To more efficiently support the business’s expanded requirements, JGSPG
is currently augmenting its existing manpower pool with the necessary
additional resources, bringing in more experience into the organization via
aggressive recruitment for all levels including senior management.

* .
-
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ROBINSONS

A Commercial Bank

“2019 is a year of achievements for Robinsons Bank. We received various
commendations from local and international award-giving bodies for the multiple
products and services that we launched. Above all, the Bank was named as the
2019 Best Commercial Bank in the Philippines by International Banker Banking
Awards. It was also this year that our maiden Php10-billion bond issuances were
successfully raised and were 4x oversubscribed. These are testaments that the
Bank is gaining traction in the market and a validation of the public’s trust and
confidence, given our size.

RBank aims to be one of the leading banks in the country. Guided by the
Bank’s vision, our tools and strategies are in place to drive the Bank towards its
goal of becoming significant in the banking industry. The Bank is currently in
expansionary mode, anchored on lending and supported by multiple initiatives
launched to support the growth of our stable fee income sources.

Furthermore, the Bank will leverage the JG Summit ecosystem on its synergies
among the businesses. Likewise, we will continue to deliver unique solutions

to the Philippine market. With all of these, we remain bullish that the Bank will
navigate further and reach higher towards a direction of a universal bank status.

Together with the senior executives and the support of the 1,845 RBankers, | trust
that in Robinsons Bank, the Future is Bright.”

- Elfren Antonio. S. Sarte, President
and Chief Executive Officer

Robinsons Bank Corporation (RBank) is the financial services arm of the JG Summit Group of companies. RBank is one of

the fastest growing commercial banks in the Philippines in terms of capitalization and asset size. As a full-service commercial
bank, RBank has placed customers in the front and center of its business, delivering hallmark value, convenience and

innovation through a wide array of solutions, products, and services -- covering lending (corporate, consumer, mSMEs, and
motorcycle), deposit-taking, foreign exchange, trust and investments, credit cards, cash management services, remittances, and
bancassurance, and building lasting customer relationships along the way. Completing the spectrum of the RBank footprint
across all market segments, RBank, through its subsidiary, Legazpi Savings Bank offers teachers loans, microfinance, and all other
banking services of a savings bank.
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2019 Financial Performance
and Key Developments

After a historic record of breaching the Php100 billion level of
assets back in 2017, RBank continued to deliver strong financial
performance. In 2019, amid a challenging operating environment
characterized by global and domestic headwinds, RBank posted a
127% hike in consolidated net income of Php719 million compared
to Php317 million earned last year. This achievement was backed by
the 17% expansion of gross loans to Php80.2 billion vs same period
last year. The growth in lending activities was driven mainly by the
sustained strong performance of the gross consumer loans jumping
32% to Php30.2 billion. RBank’s total consolidated assets stood at
Php131.1 billion, up by Php9.8 billion compared to 2018 levels.

P131.1 billion, +8%

Total Assets

P719 miillion, +127%

The growth in the bank’s balance sheet is a testament of the success
Net Income

in implementing various strategic initiatives. As a result, there have
been strong improvements in core revenues. Net interest income,
which accounted for 85% of total operating income, rose 19% to
Php4.2 billion, attributed to the upswing in interest-earning assets.

P80.2 billion: +17%

Total non-interest income jumped 30% to Php757 million on the Gross Loans
back of 31% increase in service fees, a steady source of fee-income

due to the launch of multiple products and services. These growths

were supported by hefty trading gains from treasury business

activities. Overall, gross operating income rose by 22% to Php5.0

billion.

Operating expenses increased 15% to Php4.2 billion driven by steady branch and business expansion. Volume-related
operating expenses, which accounted for 68% of the total operating expenses, also grew 15%.

Notwithstanding loan growth, the Bank’s sound credit policies reflected a healthy loan portfolio quality with gross non-
performing loan (NPL) ratio at 1.7% and net NPL ratio at 0.8%. These ratios were better than industry’s 2.0% and 1.0%,
respectively. The Bank’s NPL coverage was at 115.6%.

For 2019, RBank shifted to a more stable fund source. We successfully completed its Php10.0 billion bond issuances in two
tranches. The initial tranche in August was 4x oversubscribed of the book build. The Philippine Rating Services Corporation
(PhilRatings) rated the bond “PRS Aa minus” with a Stable outlook, a notch below the highest rating. The second tranche
issued in November was 4.3x oversubscribed. PhilRatings assigned Robinsons Bank an issuer credit rating of “PRS Aa minus”
with a Stable outlook. The Capital Adequacy Ratio and Tier 1 Capital ratio were 17.5% and 16.6%, respectively, remaining
well above the regulatory minimum requirement.

In addition, new products and services were introduced in 2019.

We kicked off the year with a new partnership with JCB International Co., Ltd. for JCB merchant acquiring and card issuing
business. With the relative advancements of electronic payment, RBank is geared up on offering flexible payment solutions
to complement JCB’s product offerings. RBank and JCB inked an agreement that will allow acceptance of JCB-issued cards
in our Point-of-Sale (POS) machines. By April, the Bank has reprogrammed its POS machines to start accepting JCB cards and
by December, JCB was made available online through Cebu Pacific. This opens our business to millions of JCB cardholders
worldwide.
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MAY SAVINGS KA NA,
MAY INSURANCE KA PA!

In early June, the retail banking group launched IPONsurance®.
This product offers a valuable alternative deposit product -- a
combined savings account with a FREE insurance coverage. For as
low as Php20,000 to open and maintain an account, this product
insurance coverage can go as high as four (4) times the account
average daily balance (ADB) or up to Php4.0 million maximum,
with no medical check-ups or clearances required (subject to
terms and conditions).

Towards the latter part of June, the lending business
introduced Go! Salary Loan online channel. Employees from
accredited companies can request online for a multi-purpose

personal loan and if qualified, will receive approval within
1-2 days. The loan is collateral-free with easy payment terms

Balance Transfer

Get cash® by converling your Robinsons Bank
available credit card limit.

It pays to shop with the new
(@]Robinsons cashback

Wi cf F20,000 sebate par yes. Tar

through salary deduction and is a completely paperless
process, streamlining the company’s Human Resource
processes while supporting JG’s sustainability campaign.

Agency banking enables RBank to extend its services beyond
traditional branches by allowing 3rd-party non-bank agents to
provide basic banking products and services. Agency banking
was piloted in five (5) agent locations in July. Customers can now
perform and transact cash withdrawals and bills payment. In
2020, RBank will be expanding the number of agents as well as
the services that will be offered.

In August, to help increase gross billings, credit card fee
revenue, and promote credit card loyalty, Robinsons Bank
introduced the Balance Transfer (BT) and Convert to Cash
(C2C) features of the Credit Card products. Balance Transfer
is a credit card feature where a cardholder can transfer the
balance from their other credit card/s to their Robinsons
Bank credit card. While the Convert to Cash is a feature
where a cardholder can convert the available balance of
their Robinsons Bank credit card to cash. Both BT and C2C
features may be availed with a one-time fee and paid back in
installment of up to 24 months at 0% interest.

Last October, Robinsons Bank’s credit card business, in
partnership with Robinsons Retail Holdings, Inc. (RRHI), launched
the Robinsons Cashback Credit Card to the market. This product
allows clients to live life lighter and to generate more rewards as
they earn rebates when they shop at any Robinsons store and
other affiliated brands. For a minimum single receipt purchase of
Php3,500, users can earn 3% rebate. If the transaction amount
falls below Php3,500, rebate will be 0.50%.
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In 2019, we have also expanded our market presence, reaching a broader geographic network through 168 operating
branches and 338 ATMs nationwide. RBank also introduced the hybrid branch concept, called 24R Hub. This branch
format provides exceptional customer experience and simplifies the customers’ journey through digital banking

facilities and self-service hubs, along with traditional banking services. Through the digital self-service hub, clients can
do banking transactions such as account opening, online payments, and more through digital touchscreen platforms,
without the hassle of queuing and filling physical forms. The 24R Hub branch also has a Collaborative Hub, which houses
conference areas for face-to-face client transactions. Customers can also do Anytime Banking through the 24/7 ATM
Cash Withdrawal and the Cash-In Deposit ATM. The three hybrid branch concept branches are located in BGC — Rizal
Drive, Adriatico, and Cyberspace Gamma.

2019 was a year of recognition for Robinsons Bank. Award-giving bodies acknowledged the Bank’s efforts in supporting
its clients and stakeholders.

e “2019 Best Commercial Bank” by International Banker Banking Awards

e  “2019 Fastest Growing Commercial Bank in the Philippines” by Global Business Outlook Awards

e  “DOS® Card as the Most Innovative Credit Card Product” by Global Business Outlook Awards

e “Simplé Savings® as the Most Innovative Banking Product” by Global Business Outlook Awards

e “Simplé Savings® as the Best Financial Inclusion Program” by Bank Marketing Association of the Philippines

o  “Highest Percentage of Contactless Transactions for Merchant Acquiring Business” by Visa Philippines

«  “Silver Anvil in the Public Relations Tools (External Publication) category for its 2018 Annual Report,
Simplifying the Customer Journey” by 55th Anvil Awards

e “2019 Project of the Year — RBank’s Treasury IT Solutions Opics Project” by Finastra, the third largest
Financial Technology provider in the world

5-Year OGSM Summary

In 2019, RBank ended its five-year plan Roadmap 2020 where the Bank’s
strategies were defined in three phases: Capacity Building, Core Income
Growth, and Expanded Business Ventures. This initiative led the Bank to
achieving advancements in industry rankings with more than double growth
in assets, loans, and deposits.

In the fourth quarter of 2019, RBank’s new five-year strategic plan Roadmap
2024 was initiated. Guided by the OGSM framework, Robinsons Bank

sets forward its objective to be within the top 10 Philippine banks. In the
next five years, the goal is to grow the assets 4x and this will be delivered
through solid growths in core lending and supported by low-cost deposit-
taking activities. The Bank will continue to grow and strengthen its recurring
income from its core businesses. Likewise, net interest income is expected
to expand on better net interest margins. Despite the growth in the

lending business, the Bank will remain to have sound credit-underwriting
standards to ensure nonperforming loan ratio will be lower than industry
average. The Bank’s coverage ratio will be kept above 100 percent - enough

Future Business Outlook

Guided by Roadmap 2024, the year 2020 for Robinsons Bank is built on

five (5) Big Goals. Embedded in these goals are strategies on how to
continuously expand the business, increase the number of customers, design
of new products and services, plan for geographic expansion, redesign and
restructure of capacity building, and implementation of digital initiatives.

The Bank will follow every step of the execution plan. However, we will
also be agile if there are calls for requirements and solutions which demand
collaborations and adaptations of new plans.

to cover prospective loan losses. On
the non-financial aspects, the Bank will
continue to introduce new products
and services to support growth and
drive the innovation index target by
2024. Moreover, sustainability will be
integrated in the way it does business.

Robinsons Bank will continue to increase
presence in the community it serves and
will focus to grow its business in defined
markets and geographic targets. The
Bank’s business model in achieving its
objectives will be guided by four major
enablers: (1) Customer-centricity, (2)
Channel Strategy, (3) People Strategy &
Winning Culture, and (4) Accelerators.

We are confident that the Bank will be
able to continuously deliver double-
digit growths.
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L1 PAD

Luzon International Premier Airport Development Corporation

Industry: Infrastructure

“We are truly proud of

LIPAD Corporation’s role in
the development of Clark
International Airport. We are
equally excited to work on
the new passenger terminal
soon and offer travelers and
visitors with a fast, efficient
and hassle-free service, and a
new commercial experience.

Under LIPAD, our vision for Clark

International Airport is to be the
country’s premier gateway

by revolutionizing the way we
travel and the way the world
experiences the Philippines.”

— Ms. Bi Yong Chungunco,

LIPAD Corporation’s
Chief Executive Officer
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“Our vision for Clark International Airport is to be the

country’s premier gateway by revolutionizing the way

we travel”

Luzon International Premier Airport Development
(LIPAD) Corporation is a special purpose company
established to manage the operations and
maintenance of Clark International Airport. The
shareholders of LIPAD Corporation are Filinvest
Development Corporation, JG Summit Holdings
Inc., Philippine Airport Ground Support Solutions
Inc. and Changi Airports Philippines (1) Pte. Ltd.,

a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chaxangi Airports
International. LIPAD shareholders bring in vast
experience and expertise in airport operations, air
transportation, and property development.

LIPAD Corporation is JG Summit’s first successful
foray into Philippine infrastructure development
under the Public-Private Partnership arrangement.
Through its investment in Clark Airport, JG Summit
aims to help strengthen the infrastructure capacity
in Northern and Central Luzon for the sustainable
and inclusive economic growth of the region, in
line with the conglomerate’s strong commitment
to nation-building. This venture also provides
potential synergistic value with the group’s
property arm, which holds a significant land bank
in Luzon, and its airline business, which has been
recently adding new routes from Clark, thereby
increasing connectivity to Northern Luzon and
growing its network outside Manila airport.

On August 16, 2019, LIPAD Corporation was formally
awarded the O&M (Operations and Management)
Project of the Clark International Airport. This is the
first Public-Private Partnership awarded under the
Duterte Administration.

The project has 3 components:

e The handover of the existing terminal which
can accommodate up to 4.2 million passengers
annually;

e  Fitting out and operating the new terminal
building that is projected to accommodate up to
8 million passengers annually; and

e The management of the leases of the
surrounding areas for the general aviation
industry, among others.

on air traffic movement

on passengers

on December 31, 2019

After only 4.5 months of managing Clark Airport,
LIPAD Corporation ended the year 2019 with 44%
growth on air traffic movement and 50% growth on
passengers, hitting 4 million passengers on December
31, 2019.

At present, Clark International Airport covers 19
domestic and 14 international destinations serving
686 weekly flights from a total of 18 airlines. LIPAD
Corporation is committed to working towards
expanding this network, connecting Clark to more
domestic and international points.
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Industry: Technology

Launched last May 2019, JG Digital Equity Ventures (JGDEV)
is the corporate venture capital arm of JG Summit Holdings,
Inc. (JGS). The USS50-million fund was created with the goal
of investing in startups in the ASEAN region which will be
strategic to JGS’ ecosystem.

Led by its CEO Jojo Malolos, a pioneer in Fintech and advocate
for financial inclusion, the fund primarily invests in early-stage
startups in key industries operating in the Southeast Asian
region. So far, the fund has made three strategic investments
in data analytics, hospitality, and logistics for its inaugural
year.

As a corporate venture capital (CVC) firm, JGDEV evaluates
investments not just for its financial value, but for its strategic
fit within JGS’ ecosystem. The fund is mandated to invest

in startups that would augment or enhance core business
units either through revenue generation or cost savings. As

a secondary directive, the JGDEV team connects its portfolio
companies to existing business units, thereby accelerating
success through strategic collaboration.

Moving forward, JGDEV envisions itself as the top-of-
mind CVC and paving the way for corporate innovation for
Philippine conglomerates.

“JGDEV evaluates
investments not just for
its financial value, but for

its strategic fit within JGS’
ecosystem.”
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“Success begets success.
We will accelerate
success of JG Digital
Equity Venture’s
investees by using them
to harness the growth
and success of the JGS
business ecosystem. One
of our investments is
Data Analytics Ventures,
Inc. (DAVI). DAVI’s deep
knowledge of customer
data opens up infinite

Food & Beverage

&

Petrochemicals

possibilities and enhanced

business models that will

lead to new and disruptive

ways of engagement,
helping customers to
discover new offers and
experiences that will
enhance their lifestyles.”

-Elmer “Jojo” Malolos, Data
Analytics Ventures,

Inc., and JG Digital Equity
Venture’s CEO.

=
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Industry: Technology

“DAVI’s deep knowledge
of customer data opens
up infinite possibilities
and enhanced business

models that will lead to
new and disruptive ways of
engagement”

With the rise of new channels and online experiences,
customer habits and journeys are shifting. In order to
understand the rising demands of its customers, JG Summit’s
(JGS) data analytics unit, Data Analytics Ventures Inc. (DAVI),
is able to capture customer behavior that flows through
Robinsons Retail, Cebu Pacific, Robinsons Land, and Robinsons
Bank through its loyalty programs and a best in class data hub.

With an integrated base of over 7 million profiled members,
DAVl is able to understand retail and travel behavior and how
this influences new customer journeys and habits. With this
wealth of data and a unified loyalty program, DAVI is able to
unlock new customer insights leading to new product offers
and business models that are designed to provide growth for
JG’s business units, driving more traffic to retail points and
deliver more purchases, creating more and more value for the
conglomerate.
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More than just the size of the base, it’s the depth of understanding and
analysis of the customers that matter. DAVI’s data hub and advanced data
models, artificial intelligence and machine learning capabilities allow a
deeper view of each member’s purchase patterns and habits. Through its
customer 360 personas, DAVI has an end-to-end view of customer habits
and transactions across JGS’ various retail and travel points. To date, DAVI
has over 60,000 attributes per member allowing us to understand distinct
shopper personas and track down to conversion and purchases.

Creating a robust data ecosystem and continuously unlocking new
customer insights will allow JGS to maximize its value chain and enter into
new and emerging markets. Apart from the data that flows through JGS,
DAVI will also create new data collaborations with different companies

in the region, allowing it to further enrich its data and open up new
opportunities to further understand customers across different value
chains such as e-commerce, lending, healthcare, payments and other
emerging customer touchpoints that are now a part of new customer
journeys.

DAVI’s ability to derive the right insights from data will unlock new paths of

monetization and data-driven programs that will lead business units to new
growth and more customized and personalized offers for its customers.
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Industry: Logistics

“With our diverse business
portfolios and local networks,

JG Summit is committed to help
homegrown and international
companies in the Philippines
achieve their next phase of growth.
Working with DHL is the ideal move
for us, as we leverage their global
footprint and tap onto their expert
knowledge to provide integrated
industry-leading services”

— Lance Gokongwei, JG Summit
President and CEO

profiled members

has over
attributes per member
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in partnership with
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JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC.

DHL Summit Solutions, Inc. (DSSI) is a joint venture
between JG Summit and DHL Supply Chain, the global
market leader for contract logistics solutions. Expected
to start commercial operations in July 2020, DSSI

shall engage in the business of providing domestic
transportation, logistics, warehousing and distribution
of cargoes, and other supply chain management
activities.

The newly-formed company leverages the strengths

of both parties to enhance domestic transportation
operations to improve safety, compliance and customer
experience in the Philippines. DSSI combines JG Summit
Group’s intimate knowledge of the market with DHL
Supply Chain’s specialized logistics expertise. With an
initial focus to deliver world-class domestic transport
operations, it will support JG Summit and external
customers to capitalize on growth opportunities in the
Philippines.

In the coming years, DSSI will also be one of the drivers
in transforming JG Summit’s supply chain capabilities
with the deployment of global-leading practices as well
as cutting edge end-to-end logistics and supply chain
technologies.
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MERALCO

Manila Electric
Corporation

GLOBAL BUSINESS POWER

Global Business
Power Corporation
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JGS’ equity stake:

Net income attributable to parent:

vs last year

Dividends paid to JGS:

JGS’ equity stake:

Net income attributable to parent:

vs last year

Dividends paid to JGS:

Manila Electric Corporation is
the largest private sector electric
distribution utility company in the
Philippines and has been serving
the Filipinos for over 116 years.
Today, the company provides
electricity to 6.6 million customers
in 36 cities and 75 municipalities
in a 9,685 km? franchise area

that includes Metro Manila, Rizal,
Cavite, Bulacan, and portions of
Pampanga, Laguna and Quezon.

Global Business Power
Corporation (GBPC)

is the leading independent power
producer in the Visayas region and
Mindoro Island given its combined
gross maximum capacity of 854
MW. It has 11 power generation
facilities located in lloilo, Aklan,
Cebu and Oriental Mindoro.

United Industrial Corporation

(UIC) is a Singapore-based real
estate company and is one of the
leading diversified developer of
commercial and retail properties. It
has a portfolio of 2.5 million square
feet of office space and 1 million
square feet of retail premise, which
includes some of Singapore’s well-
known landmarks such as Singapore
Land Tower, The Gateway and
Marina Square. It also has overseas
investments in Shanghai, Beijing and
Tianjin, China, and London, UK.

PLDT, Inc. (PLDT) is the leading
telecommunications and

digital services provider in the
Philippines offering a wide range of
telecommunications services across
the country’s most extensive fiber
optic backbone and fixed line, and
cellular networks. As of December
2019, the company has over 73.1
million mobile, 2.8 million fixed
line, and 2.2 million broadband
subscribers nationwide.
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JGS’ equity stake: F—3
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et income attributable -~
to parent:

United Industrial
vs last year Corporation

JGS’ equity stake:

2 PLDT

Dividends paid to JGS:
PLDT, Inc.

JG Summit’s current effective ownership
vs 8.0% as of December 31, 2019
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Strategy Enablers

In order for JGS to succeed with our portfolio strategy and adequately support our
Strategic Business Units (SBUs) to propel overall conglomerate growth, we will have to
strengthen our capabilities as a parent and help transform the organization as a whole.
Using a group-wide, inclusive and collaborative approach while keeping in mind our
new purpose, values and long-term ambition, we will drive positive changes across
the group, focusing on the following critical strategy enablers: leadership and people
development, digital transformation, sustainability, and customer-centricity.

Leadership and People
Development

We will build a leadership that creates conditions for
employee engagement and high performance. This
involves building a culture around purpose, values

and critical leadership attributes for the future;
targeted attraction and retention of key talents; further
development of leadership and functional capabilities;
and building resilient and highly collaborative teams
upholding continuous improvement and integrity.

Digital Transformation

We will harness new ways of working and technology to
maximize core growth and productivity, and generate
value through ecosystem technologies. This involves
maximizing productivity via digitalization of the core, as
well as pursuing new business opportunities by fusing

technology, the JG Summit’s eco-system and data.
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Customer-centricity

We will have a stronger focus on the external
customer and employees through enhanced
employee and customer experience. This involves
streamlining processes and driving robust innovation
across businesses, optimizing synergies between

the Corporate Center Units (CCUs) and the different
SBUs, as well as making SBUs and CCUs work faster
and more responsive to customer needs and wants.

Sustainability

We will accelerate the definition of sustainability
philosophy, policy, programs and practices that

are integrated into all businesses and stakeholder
engagements across the group. This involves
developing an inclusive Environmental, Social

and Governance Program and Risk Management
Framework, and institutionalizing people and planet
friendly culture.
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“Using a group-

wide, inclusive and
collaborative approach
while keeping in mind
our new purpose,

values and long-term
ambition, we will drive
positive changes across
the group”
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Board of Directors

Antonio L. Go
Independent Director

Jose T. Pardo
James L. GO Independent Director
Chairman

\
Renato T. De Guzman
Independent Director

Lance Y. Gokongwei
Director, President and CEO

Director

Lily G. Ngochua :
Director

, K
Robina Y. Gokongwei-Pe

Director
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Johnson Robert G. Go, Jr.
Director

Patrick Henry C. éo
Director

70

71



ANNUAL REPORT

Corporate Center Heads

After having laid out the 5-year roadmaps for JG Summit and its subsidiaries, we revisited the parenting role of our Corporate
Center and its relationship with the Strategic Business Units (SBUs), ensuring that the parent company is appropriately designed
and structured to support and enable the SBUs towards the achievement of both their financial and non-financial goals, which
in turn facilitates the realization of JGS’ 5-year ambition. Considering the size, nature and maturity of the different businesses
in our portfolio, we determined that the parenting strategy should be more focused on Synergy Creation for core businesses,
Strategic Guidance for growth businesses and Functional Leadership for new builds.

As a holding company, JGS’ parenting role is principally to provide access to capital markets and resourcing. In addition, the
parent company can add value to the SBUs by (1) becoming a Center of Excellence and Knowledge, (2) supporting them in
building essential capabilities, (3) driving cross-BU synergies, (4) managing risk and ensuring compliance with laws, regulations
and best practices, and (5) challenging business strategies and financial targets.

With these in mind, the Corporate Center Units’ (CCU) primary purpose is to be an enabler to the holding company and to the
SBUs for the achievement of our ambitions. The CCU’s need to shift its focus to business results delivery, ecosystem leverage, as
well as business and organizational sustainability. Hence, we are evolving the corporate center organization design in line with
JG Summit’s enterprise transformation. As we move towards an optimal structure, the CCUs are currently organized as follows:

CCuU Leader
Corporate Strategy Lance Y. Gokongwei, President & CEO
Corporate Strate Cornelio S. Mapa, Jr., Senior Vice President
P 8Y for Investments and New Builds
Bach Johann M. Sebastian, Senior Vice President
Corporate Strategy

for Strategic Investments Group

Office of the Chief of Staff and

. Michael P. Liwanag, Senior Vice President and Chief of Staff
Investor Relations

Corporate Human Resources Nicasio L. Lim, Senior Vice President

Alan D. Surposa, Senior Vice President and

C teP t
orporate Procuremen Chief Procurement Officer

Digital Transformation Office Lisa Gokongwei-Cheng, Head

Corporate Information Technology Carlos G. Santos, Chief Information Officer

Francisco M. Del Mundo, Senior Vice President

Office of the Chief Financial Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Aldrich Richard T. Javellana, Senior Vice President

Corporate Treasury
and Treasurer

Corporate Affairs and Sustainability Renato T. Salud, Senior Vice President

Maria Celia F. Estavillo, Senior Vice President

General Counsel Group & General Counsel

Emmanuel B. De Pano, Vice President,

Corporate Internal Audit Corporate Internal Audit

Corporate Secretary Rosalinda F. Rivera, Corporate Secretary

Compliance Arlene S. Denzon, Compliance Officer
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Strategic Business Unit Heads
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Frederick D. Go

President and Chief Executive Officer,
Robinsons Land Corporation

Irwin C. Lee

President and Chief Executive Officer,
Universal Robina Corporation

A?&

Michael B. Szucs Patrick Henry C. Go

President and Chief Executive Officer,
JG Summit Petrochemicals Group

Chief Executive Adviser, Cebu Air, Inc.

Elfren Antonio S. Sarte

President and Chief Executive Officer,
Robinsons Bank Corporation
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Leadership and People Development

John Gokongwei Institute for Leadership and Enterprise
Development (JG-ILED) was spurred by the vision of Mr. John
Gokongwei to (1) demonstrate the enterprise commitment

to continued learning, organizational growth and career
development; (2) enable leaders to develop strategies for
competitiveness of the company; and (3) develop our employees
and create a deep bench.

The Learning and Development programs under JG-ILED are
crafted to help employees in different levels to advance their
skills in effectively managing themselves (leading self), managing
teams (leading teams) and being able to contribute significantly
to the organization (leading the business/enterprise).

As JG Summit (JGS) transitions from being founder-led to

a professionally-managed, Purpose, Values and Ambition-

led empowered organization, we began with top-leadership
development to further equip our leaders, and help them
become better role models and change catalysts to inspire as
well as influence the rest of the group. Moving forward, new,
advanced and tailored-fit programs being carefully designed and
procured by our Leadership and People Development team will
be implemented across various levels in the organization.

“The targeted programs
enhance leaders’ agility
to anticipate and respond

to current and emerging
changes brought about by
disruptive environments”
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Executive Development
Program (EDP)

EDP was developed as we saw the need to
proactively respond and reshape the organization
given the accelerated pace of change JGS faces with
globalization, digitalization, business disruption,
and rapidly changing consumer expectations. This
program builds on the senior leaders' wealth of
experiences, while honing their skills in articulating
a strategic vision, developing an authentic and high
performing culture, and increasing stakeholder
engagement. The targeted programs enhance
leaders’ agility to anticipate and respond to current
and emerging changes brought about by disruptive
environments such as innovation and digitalization
while it remains rooted to our most espoused core
values.

The current JGS Leadership Team is composed of
eight (8) Presidents and CEOs of our business units
and sister companies, with a good mix of family
members and professionals having varying skill sets
and capabilities. The EDP was facilitated by top notch
leadership development providers such as the Center
for Creative Leadership (CCL) and INSEAD, one of

the world's leading and largest business schools.

The 10-month long program which ended last
January 2020 aimed to increase both self and team
awareness, as well as help transform our JGS leaders
to reach their full potentials to new ways of thinking,
acting and learning in the changing and complex
business environment.

NG THE BUSINESS MODULE - INSEAD

Learning Pathway of JGS Leaders

JGS partnered with the CCL for the Leading Self and
Teams modules of the group. CCL is a top-ranked, global
provider of leadership development based in Singapore.
They offer an exclusive focus on leadership education
and research and unparalleled expertise in solving the
leadership challenges of individuals and organizations
everywhere.

The learning journey started with thirty-two (32)
participants who attended the two-day program on
February 12-13, 2019 at Dusit Thani Mactan Cebu Hotel.

The learning pathway of JGS leaders started with self-
awareness and an assessment of how each one relates
effectively with others. The leaders took a variety of
assessments and tools such as the Leadership Culture
Assessment (LCA), 360 Benchmarks for Executives,
Fundamental Interpersonal Relations Orientation-
Behavior (FIRO-B) and SBI (Situation, Behavior, Impact
Model). These allowed each leader to be mindful of
those areas where they are strong and those which
need work, and deftly unveil unspoken behaviors,
mindsets, and social patterns of our leaders. Being
honest about these strengths and limitations puts
leaders in a position for improvement and growth.

JGS followed up with another intervention by engaging
the leaders into an eight-day program strategically
interspersed over a ten-month period on Leading the
Business and the Enterprise. The group has partnered
with INSEAD Singapore in creating and supporting the
leadership development of our leaders while they lead
and transform the enterprise.
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Thirty-five (35) participants attended the
Leading the Business and the Enterprise
module. The program was designed into
four (4) modules incorporating relevant
thrusts and challenges that JGS leaders face
namely:

——————— Module 1: Corporate Strategy and

Entrepreneurial Thinking

Module 2: Digital Strategy, Business Model
Innovation and Customer Centricity

Module 3: Stakeholder Management and
Leading Successful Change

Module 4: Business Decision Making in the
JGS Context

The 10-month program was attended by
the group’s President and CEOs, senior
leaders, Corporate Center Unit Heads and
Strategic Business Units Critical Talents.

These initiatives are just the beginning of
our leadership and people development
strategy. This will be an ongoing endeavor
across all levels in the organization to
further expand JGS’ leadership and
functional capabilities and build a
continuous learning environment for our
employees.

“An effective leaderis a learning and evolving person; just like the enterprise
which needs to continuously learn and evolve in order to achieve good

sustainable growth.”
- _Mr. James L. Go
Chairman; JG Summit Holdings, Inc.
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Leadership and People Development

“CEB’s robust training programs are composed
of comprehensive and specialized learning

“URC University is lining up new programs to modules across job functions and roles

strengthen critical skills and competencies via
its functional academes”

In 2019, CEB was inducted into the International Air
Transport Association (IATA), the trade association of the
global airline industry. With this, we became one of more
than 290 member-airlines from 117 countries all over
the world. CEB is IATA’s largest member among Philippine
carriers. Our formal membership is preceded by the
airline’s compliance with the IATA Operational Safety
Audit (IOSA), a globally recognized evaluation system.

We established URC University which houses the
learning management system that facilitates the
continuous learning and growth of our people. Our
brand on people development inspires personal
mastery, encourages servant leadership and
collaboration, and ensures operational excellence.

Moreover, CEB is committed to the personal and
professional development of all employees. CEB’s robust
training programs are composed of comprehensive and
specialized learning modules across job functions and
roles, including specialized technical training for safety
and security, cabin crew, and pilots. In 2019, CEB invested
in over 24,000 basic, people management, and leadership

For several years, URC has partnered with JG . A
training hours for its employees.

Summit Corporate Human Resources team in
delivering training to an estimated 800 leaders
on core programs such as integrated business
communication, customer service excellence,
project management, and coaching.

We also uphold diversity and inclusion, to drive

In 2018, URC University launched customized As we end 2019, URC University is lining up innovation and long-term success. CEB provides
leadership development programs based on the new programs to strengthen critical skills and equal opportunity. As of end 2019, CEB is home to
needs and requirements of our leaders and of competencies via its functional academes in 39 nationalities. In leadership positions (managers
our business. Its flagship executive development Sales, Marketing, Integrated Supply Chain and and up), there are as many males as females (162).
program, namely “Excellerate”, was designed to Human Resources. It is rolling out new programs Out of its 771 pilots, 41 are female, and of over 1,800
inspire leaders to be “at their very best”, while customized for its middle managers and line cabin crew, 266 are male. In 2019, CEB, through its
building their capacity to inspire others to higher managers, building management essentials subsidiary Cebgo, made history with the first two
levels of performance. It is a six (6) month learning critical to their success. In preparation for transgender cabin crew in the Philippines. They
journey of self-discovery, giving them a holistic the year to come, it will continue to create graduated in November 2019, along with 12 other
view of who they are and what they can be —as more exciting, engaging and relevant learning Cebgo cabin crew trainees.

“individuals”, as “leaders of teams” and as “leaders experiences for our employees, enabling them

of the business”. It reinforces enterprise thinking, to meet head-on the challenges of the business

team collaboration and the pursuit of operational and the ever-evolving external environment we

excellence using multiple methodologies including operate in.

360-degree assessments, personal and team
coaching, structured learning experiences and
action learning projects. More than 50 leaders have
been enrolled in the program, with 37 of them
successfully completing the same over a period of
18 months.
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Our leadership and people development strategy focuses on increasing the functional

Leadership/ Executive
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capability of staff and creating well-rounded leaders, who are self-aware, able to manage a

team, as well as the business.

Structured Onboarding
Program

RLC’s onboarding program (First 100 Days)
was revitalized. There was a shift in focus from
the classroom learning component to a more
robust on-the-job training to ensure that new
employees are equipped with the necessary
skills required of their roles. In Robinsons Ho-
tels, the process is aptly called the Onboarding
Journey, which goes beyond 100 days. The line
managers take an active part in the process
instead of relying on the HR department. The
onboarding also introduces the one-minute
training videos called Minute-to-Learn-It.
These videos were well-received by the em-
ployees, new and old, the latter considering
them as refreshers.

Focus on Functional
Training

With fresh employee intake, there is a need
to strengthen functional capabilities. Several
functional learning tracks were created—En-
gineering and Operations, Marketing, Leasing,
and Sales. The following are some of the
functional/technical training programs:

Engineering and Operations:

Fundamentals of Electricity, Fire Hazards, and
Troubleshooting of Escalators and Elevators;
Basic Occupational Safety and Health;
Emergency Response Training; First Aid

Leasing and Sales:

Negotiation Skills

Marketing:
Social Media Analytics and Marketing

Finance:

Finance for Non-Finance

Specialized (Hotel):

Executive Housekeeping

E}'nergene?ics

RLC RHomes Leadership Team

Development

The development of leaders in RLC
follows the model: Managing self,
Managing Others, and Managing the
Business. Whilst finalizing the integrat-
ed and laddered program in this area,
identified key leaders have attended
the following:

e Leading Self and Teams by CCL

e Leading the Business by INSEAD
includes four (4) modules on 1)
Corporate Strategy and Entre-
preneurial Thinking, 2) Digital
Strategy, Business Model Inno-
vation, and Customer Centricity,
3) Stakeholder Management and
Leading Successful Change, 4)
Business Decision Making in the
JG Summit Context;

e Leadership in Transition and The
Future of Work — by HBR

e  Better Conversations Everyday by
CCL, where RLC conducted one
pilot batch of 24 managers. RLC
likewise, sponsored the trainer’s
training of one BCE facilitator, to
ensure the roll-out of the program
in 2020.

In addition, we contracted the
Emergenetics Assessment Profile for
Leaders, which provides an overview
of a leader’s thinking and behavioral
preferences through a quantifiable
brain-based format. This allows the
leader to be more self-aware to better
understand themselves and their
team, empowering them to interact
more effectively with each other. Two
pilot batches of Emergenetics were
conducted.

JGSPG is home to highly engaged and inspired individuals who
are driven to contribute to the attainment of our vision to be-
come the market-leading and preferred supplier of innovative,
world-class petrochemical products and solutions in the Philip-
pines. Our top of the line technology is partnered with equally
world-class human resources, which we continuously cultivate
through various leadership and skills development programs
implemented across all levels of the JGSPG organization. Some
of these programs include:

Leadership Training

such as Foundations of Leadership Training

Soft Skills Development

such as Problem Solving and Decision
Making, Critical Thinking, High Performing
Teams and Resilience Training

Function-specific Courses

such as Effective Communications,
Petrochemical Training Courses, On-The-
Job Trainings, and Product Applications
Training

JGSPG is highly focused in ensuring that the manpower and
leadership complement of the organization also evolves with the
expanding needs of the petrochemicals business. As such, the
group is aggressively recruiting for all levels to help bring in the
necessary skills bench and experience required for the business.
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Strong leadership empowers performance-based
integration to the institution and catalyzes influence to
employees. The Bank invested in capacity development
to increase competency, skills, and efficiency. This
commitment to bring the Bank to the next level of
organization maturity is a constant endeavor.

RBank Academy is recognized as the bank’s learning and
development partner. Aligned with the Bank’s direction
of going digital, RBank Academy continued to increase
the number of its e-learnings in 2019, launching in-house
designed ABC'’s of Agile Leadership and CX Fortified and
leveraging on coursera freeware on specialized topics on
Finance, Sales and Leadership. RBank Academy likewise
continued to offer new facilitator-led trainings on finance
to agile scrum foundation workshops. This paved the way
towards efficient learning with a 1:3 employee learning
ratio across the bank, which benefited 17,333 learners.

Aligned with customer-centricity, RBank Academy launched
three (3) process enhancements in 2019 to provide better
customer-user experiences thru online training enrolments,
QR code adoption in online exams, and establishment of
learning centers in Cebu and Davao for virtual learnings.
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To deepen and widen the Bank’s leadership pool,
yearly career track programs were offered such

as the Officer Development Program (now on its
12th Batch) and the Sales Officer Development
Program (now on its 2nd Batch), that brings to date
a total of 160 graduates. Ongoing as well is the
Supervisory and Management workshop, which
has been attended by a total of 192 leaders across
the Bank.

Indeed, RBank Academy stands true to RBank’s
vision to fulfil RBankers’ changing learning needs,
and live out its mission to be better every day thru
a strong learning culture.

“In 2019, in the first full year of its existence,
the JG Summit Digital Transformation Office
(DTO) worked with several business units to

launch and market products using new ways
of working like design thinking and agile
project management.”

In 2019, in the first full year of its existence, the JG
Summit Digital Transformation Office (DTO) worked
with several business units to launch and market
products using new ways of working like design
thinking and agile project management.

Among these products were an end-to-end hotel
management portal for Robinsons Hotels & Resorts;
digital sellers and buyers’ portals for Robinsons Land
Corporation’s Residential Division; a digital employ-
ee loan platform for Robinsons Bank; and order
management platforms for both Global Exports and
Agro-Industrial Group of Universal Robina Corpora-
tion. Many other projects across the conglomerate
are in various stages of completion, enabled by the
DTO.

A key milestone was the Launchbox, a 5-month
training program that teaches participants from
various business units how to launch innovative
digital products, from the discovery phase all the
way to product delivery. The participants not only
learn new skills but also bring a product to market
at the end of the process. Among the products are
a homeowner management platform to improve
homeowner experience in Robinsons Land residen-
tial developments as well as a QR payment product
for Robinsons Bank.

Furthermore, the DTO helped launch new digital
initiatives to improve experiences for employees
and suppliers.

ANNUAL REPORT
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Digital Transformation

“As soon as the orders
are confirmed and clicked
on the tablet, they are
transmitted to enter the
system immediately, en-
suring fast and accurate
delivery of products—in
some cases as soon as
the next day.”

Seamless customer digital experience is key to maintain CEB’s
position as the country’s best low-cost carrier. In line with
this, CEB has initiated the Agility Platform project, the heart of
digital transformation which focuses on developing software
applications through microservices - suites of independently
deployable services via the Agility framework. The initiative
aims to significantly enhance the organization’s online pres-
ence to fully embrace customers and their journeys such

as from flight searches and booking, to arrivals. The Agility
platform using microservices simplifies everything to provide
airline travelers the best digital experience.

CEB also started implementing various Robotic Process
Automation (RPA) initiatives in 2019, including modules that
automate form filling and report generation. The success that
RPA enjoyed served as a springboard for the development of
an RPA System that allowed employees to create, run, and
manage their respective high-volume task and workflow auto-
mations.
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The implementation of Sales Force Automation has been
instrumental in driving our vision of leapfrogging our
distributor capabilities through digitization. This allowed
our distributors to reach out effectively to the market
and cover more stores in the most efficient manner. With
the app, salesmen no longer have to pitch a long list of
products as they can just show store owners a compre-
hensive product guide on a tablet, including the latest
URC merchandise and promotions. Store owners can also
check that the items he or she wants are correctly en-
tered in the ordering section of the app. As soon as the
orders are confirmed and clicked on the tablet, they are
transmitted to enter the system immediately, ensuring
fast and accurate delivery of products—in some cases as
soon as the next day.

The use of RPA technology has considerably enhanced
work quality and cycle times across the organization. It
has allowed CEB to maintain maximum possession, con-
trol and visibility of its businesses and interests, while re-
alizing significant cost savings in the process. Moreover,
RPA has empowered everyluan, freeing them up from
repetitive tasks for critical ones. With RPA, repetitive and
tedious tasks are now a thing of the past.

ANNUAL REPORT

RLC has pioneered a few digitization initiatives geared towards improving the customer experience.

One of the main goals of digitization was to find the pain points or problems that a customer experiences

and use technology to find solutions. To light the way for the conglome

rate’s successful adoption of an

agile framework and driving a customer-obsessed culture, RLC developed four such projects.

Buyers Portal for
smoother resident
transactions

Interactive directory
to help shoppers
navigate with ease

Sellers Portal to aid
agents with accurate
information

One of the first tools developed was for Robinsons Malls. One pain
point of customers when they enter a mall is when they can’t find a
store. So, the digital transformation team made an interactive direc-
tory that helps shoppers navigate RLC’s malls, finding shops, finding
restaurants, mall products, and services. After successful tests in select
malls, the interactive directories are now being rolled out nationwide.

For RLC’s Residential Division, two projects promise to simplify things
for both the sales agents and their clients. First is the Buyers Portal
which helps automate RLC buyers’ most common interactions. The
Buyers Portal allows them to view easily and update their account
information, manage their payments, view and download the latest
statement of accounts, and log requests and inquiries directly. Also,
through the Buyers Portal, customers/ buyers can electronically log
their queries and somebody will reply. And because they’re registered
in the Buyers Portal, RLC’s sales team knows who they are and will
know how to answer customers/ buyers’ concerns.

On the opposite side of the fence, sales agents’ lives have gotten
simpler with the Sellers Portal. For sales agents, when they are out in
the field and trying to sell a unit, their biggest issue is that they cannot
memorize all the details of the 4,000 condo units we are selling. They
have to carry a lot of brochures, papers, price lists, and payment

Hotel Property
Management System
(PMS) to provide
guests with a seamless
customer experience
throughout their stay

terms. Now, it’s all available through the Sellers
Portal. Aside from providing accurate information
at the touch of a button, the Sellers Portal enables
sales team members to see which units are avail-
able, in real time. If someone sells a particular unit,
another seller won’t make the mistake of selling it
also, because the portal immediately updates if a
unit has been sold.

The fourth project developed by RLC is a Hotel
Property Management System (PMS), another

tool meant to give hotel guests a perfect custom-
er experience, it’s an end-to-end solution - from
the time a customer books to the time he checks
out. The PMS is designed to help staff provide a
seamless experience for guests while managing the
hotel business effectively. For the returning guests,
the front desk team will know who the guest is and
his preferences. Before it was more manual. This
makes work easier for the hotel staff.
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JGSPG constantly drives digital transformation initiatives that enable business growth and operational improve-
ments, using technology to help address gaps in business processes. More than just IT-related projects, various
departments within the group have been undertaking respective digital transformation initiatives as appropriate
for their areas. Some examples of projects undertaken and/or completed in 2019 are described below.

An Enterprise
Resource Planning
(ERP) software
package meant to
cover all day-to-
day processes of an

Computer-based
training systems
to impart process
understanding and
operation skills

Digitalization of the
Incident Reporting
System

Vendor Invoice
Management System

Predictive
Analytics, Work
Flow Process and
Asset Management
Systems for
Maintenance

enterprise.

Migration to SAP S/4 HANA

SAP is an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software package meant to cover all day-to-day processes of an
enterprise. In March 2019, JGSPG became the first company in the JG Summit group and in the Philippines to
migrate to SAP S/4 HANA with full SAP functionalities.

« Financial & Controlling (FICO) « Financial Supply Chain Management (FSCM)
« Sales & Distribution (SD) ¢ Investment Management (IM for BMS)

¢ Production Planning & Control (PP) ¢ Quality Management (QM)

« Material Management (MM) ¢« HCM Integration

« Plant Maintenance (PM)

We are also the first petrochemical company in South East Asia to implement full functionalities of S/4 HANA.

In-house Development of Operator Training Simulator

able to provide in-house training to the plant operators of
these two plants.

In 2019, JGSPG developed in-house the Operator Training
Simulators (OTS) for the upcoming new aromatics and
butadiene extraction units. OTS are computer-based
training systems which aim to impart process understanding
and operation skills by replicating process dynamics
behavior over a wide range of operations, including

plant startup, shutdown, and emergency situations. With
engineering done in-house, an estimated savings of around
USD 1 million was realized. More importantly, JGSPG is now

As these plants are the first of their kind in the country,

the operators can now also be trained in advance of the
actual plant’s commissioning and start-up, thereby ensuring
operational preparedness for these upcoming facilities once
they come on-stream by 2020.
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Automation of Paper-Based Workflows
Digitalization of the Incident Reporting System

In 2019, JGSPG converted its paper-based Incident
Reporting (IR) System into an automated workflow system.
Transferring to an automated system rather than the
previous paper-based system helped accelerate information
sharing and approvals, thus providing a more efficient,
consistent and systematic IR process and the corresponding
investigation.

The organization is now able to focus more on the actual
investigation and implementation of solutions rather

than consume unnecessary man-hours on progressing
paper-based IR approvals. The centralized IR database
with corresponding preventive and corrective actions are
now also accessible to all employees for more transparent
sharing of learnings.

Automation of Paper-Based Workflows

Vendor Invoice Management System

In an effort to automate time-consuming manual processes
such as invoice processing, the online Vendor Invoice
Management (VIM) System was started to be developed
using OpenText with SAP integration. With the VIM system,
it is estimated that productivity for invoice processing

will improve by around 30% through the use of a more
streamlined and automated process, as well as the
additional benefit of helping achieve on-time payment to
suppliers to avoid penalties and surcharges.

Development of Efficient Support Systems

Predictive Analytics, Work Flow Process and
Asset Management Systems for Maintenance

To help avoid costly downtime, reduce maintenance
costs and improve operational efficiency, the JGSPG
Maintenance, Operations, and IT teams are currently
developing the use of Predictive Analytics towards the
more efficient conduct of preventive and/or corrective
maintenance prior to anticipated or predicted failure.
This project aims to achieve higher asset utilization

and availability and therefore contribute to improving
overall operational efficiency. Within the SAP system,
functionalities involving Maintenance Work Flow Process,
asset registries and asset reliability requirements are

also being explored as the group pivots towards ensuring
100% site reliability, given the increased maintenance
requirements of the expanded complex.
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Digital transformation changes the way RBank delivers products and services. Today, the Bank has more capabilities
to deliver personalized service and to fulfill customer satisfaction. In 2019, the Bank’s digital transformation, which
are all driving cost-savings opportunities, can be summarized in four major initiatives: (1) products and services, (2)

digital marketing, (3) digital meetings, and (4) robotics.

Products and Services

RBank launched a fully digital payroll loan application
process for the employees of its payroll corporate custom-
ers. With the digital payroll loan process, borrowers can
now fill up a web-based digital form accessible in their own
devices. The Bank also introduced an alternative banking
channel through agency banking. BSP approved RBank to
pilot in five (5) stores to serve as bank agents. With agency
banking, RBank customers can now go to authorized third
party agents and perform banking activities such as cash
deposit, cash withdrawal, bills payment, and funds transfer.
More banking agents will be introduced in 2020. Further-
more, the Bank introduced three (3) new 24-hour “hybrid”
branches that provide both traditional with digital banking
channels that provide banking services even when after
bank business hours. These digital banking services include
cash acceptance, account opening, personal online bank-
ing, and bills payment.

Digital Marketing

In 2019, Robinsons Bank redefined its marketing efforts by
strengthening its online presence in the digital space, utiliz-
ing high reach platforms like Facebook and Waze, establish-
ing relevance through Knowledge Bank, and owning organic
search results through Search Engine Optimization. In Jan-
uary, Robinsons Bank launched a pilot campaign for Simple
Savings Online, its first foray into digital account opening.
With the success of the pilot campaign, a more expanded
campaign was relaunched with expanded platforms and
with optimized targets, resulting to higher conversion rates
with lower costs.
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Digital Meetings

For executive meetings, materials are now generated in
digital form, securely stored in online repositories, and
accessible only to authorized attendees. In addition, RBank
rolled out Microsoft Teams to assist in online trainings and
meetings.

Robotics

Various robotic process automations were also implement-
ed across areas of the Bank to improve operational efficien-
cy and increase capacity to handle greater transaction vol-

ume. Some initiatives include a robot that automates the

monitoring and reporting of ATM status nationwide, a robot

that helps in the processing of ATM cards to newly opened
accounts, and a robot that automates several manual credit
validations for auto loans.
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JG Summit Holdings, Inc. recognizes that our employees’ day-to-day
experiences play a crucial role in their productivity and engagement,
which in turn leads to organizational performance. As we strive to
innovate continuously to deliver great customer experience, we
believe that starting from within by providing a fulfilling employee
experience is key. In support of that objective, we have formally
created an Employee Experience department under Corporate Human
Resources with the mandate of enhancing key touchpoints in the
employee journey by gathering continuous feedback, addressing
employee pain points, and in turn drive efficient processes and
systems to provide a more fulfilling employee experience.

“As we strive to innovate
continuously to deliver
great customer experience,
we believe that starting
from within by providing

a fulfilling employee
experience is key.”

The roles in this department are multidisciplinary.
Change Management, Technology, and Digital
Transformation are key skills in this group to
successfully drive the changes needed. The group
champions continuous improvement projects by
working with different teams to remove redundant
steps in our processes and innovate ways of doing
things, which leads to the reduction of processing
time and greater efficiency. One of its major
projects launched is the Employee Service Portal
that transformed how employee services are
requested and processed, such as loans, benefit
claims, and certificates. The platform paved the
way for employees to track their requests digitally,
access information in one central location and
facilitate self-service where possible. The intent is
to further widen the scope and integrate our key
systems to this platform to make experiences more
seamless for our employees. Because of these
interventions, we received very positive feedback
from our employees so far.

One of the big factors in this initiative’s success
is the agile methodology that this department
has adopted. Continuous and incremental
improvements aligned to a defined roadmap
has been established to innovate constantly.

In 2020, our organization intends to continue
the momentum it has gained. By improving

the employee experience with a number of
integrated projects, our employees will maximize
their productivity and increase engagement
while reducing attrition to support our business
objectives.
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Customer-centricity

Innovation Process
Management (IPM)

Last year, we institutionalized URC’s IPM
which aims to increase the chances of
commercial success. The IPM focuses

In January, CEB’s chatbot, Charlie was launched to address
customer concerns in real-time. Charlie can be messaged via

the official Facebook page or the Cebu Pacific website. He has
been programmed to answer various issues and frequently

asked questions, can assist in checking in for flights and provide
itineraries or boarding passes. His ability to address the majority of
passenger concerns has garnered positive feedback.

In partnership with Big Sky Nation, the CEB WiFi Kit was made so
travelers can enjoy unlimited data up to 4G/LTE speeds in over
100 countries. The pocket WiFi device can connect up to five (5)

Charlie the
Chatbot
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on a more in-depth understanding gadgets and serve as a power bank.

of consumer insights as a feed for
brand renovation and/or new product
launches. The relaunch of Great Taste
White with additional variants which
is Caramel and Crema is a result of this
insight assessment process from the
customers’ lens. With our learnings
from what happened in coffee, it gave
us a realization to revisit all our core
brands to sustain the competitiveness of
all of our categories.

“CEB Flexi was launched to address the
need of passengers to rebook flights due to
some unforeseen reasons”

Joint-Business Planning with Key Accounts

A new menu was also made for in-flight services, which now include options for vegetarians. All meals
are Halal-certified and compliant with the Hazard Analysis Critical Control Points (HACCP) system for
international food safety.

CEB Flexi was launched to address the need of passengers to rebook flights due to some unforeseen
reasons, such as disapproved vacation leaves, late release of or disapproved visas, political upheavals, or
health concerns. This flight add-on allows passengers to rebook their flights up to twice for free, with only
minimal fare differences to be paid for. Now, every Juan has the power and option to move flights at their

Strengthen Strategic partnership COnVenience, and no ticket will have to go to waste with CEB Flexi.

with Key Accounts

Resulted to better growth

Drove joint business planning Develop better shopper plans

We have re-engaged our key customers and drove strategic partnerships through Joint Business
Planning. We are reaping the benefits of aggressive growth rates in our key customers as we plan
and execute better shopper plans with them.
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Robinsons Hotels and Resorts’ (RHR) journey towards having

a customer- centric environment started with major initiatives
taking into consideration our internal and external customers.
For our internal customers, RHR invested in our people with

the objective of increased job satisfaction with the belief that
having satisfied employees translates to satisfied customers.

It starts with our NCORE, which stands for New Colleague
Onboarding and Re-Orientation Experience. This is RHR’s
Onboarding Program designed to acclimate and welcome new
employees for their seamless transition to their new roles in

the organization. Keeping the employees engaged is also key
for this customer- centric journey, the introduction of Quarterly
Town Hall Meetings, helps ensure everyone is up to date on
latest developments and important information. These Town
Hall Meetings provide an avenue for employees to give raw,
unfiltered feedback to RHR management. Apart from the Town
Hall Meetings, Monthly Huddles are now being held to promote
collaboration and employee discussions to develop positive
work culture success. Our monthly E-Newsletter, FRONTLINE,
also another channel of communication to our employees, talks
about RHR highlights, achievements and employee milestones
creating sense of belonging and appreciation within the RHR
community. To reach out to the RHR Millennial, which compose
80% of the RHR workforce, we have the RHR Facebook Employee
Engagement Page. In addition, we have the RHR Minute-to-
Learn It, a one-minute training E-Videos that are regularly shared
to engage employee learning in a quick and fun way.

For our external customers, RHR focused on the improvement
of its overall guest experience. The recent switch from Lotus
Notes to the Djubo System has benefited the hotel guests
with the check-in process’ reduction by half. Mac Desktops are
now visible in our properties as well. Another new initiative
worth mentioning is the Self Check-in Kiosks feature which was
introduced in our newly launched Summit Greenhills Hotel last
September 2019. To further support the improvement of the
guest experience, Online Reputation Management or ORM
was rolled out across all properties. The ORM program covers
the tracking of Net Promoter Score of the Hotels, sending
regular positive, negative, neutral alerts to the hotels to ensure
that guest issues are followed through and commendations
are recognized. In addition, the Minimum Quality Standards,
Designed Guidelines, and Brand Manuals were created and
rolled out this 2019.

Internal RHR invested in our people with the objective of
customers increased job satisfaction with the belief that having

satisfied employees translates to satisfied customers.

External RHR focused on the improvement of its overall
customers guest experience.
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Meanwhile, our Residential Division implemented
an improved customer-centric process in the design
and brand identity development of its new projects.
This process involved more in-depth analyses of the
sales take-up of existing RLC projects vs competitor
data. This enabled the team to have a deeper
understanding of what units the market is receptive
to in relation to factors such as time launched, price,
amenities, and unit sizes among others.

Interviews with RLC’s key front-liners like the
Property Specialists, Sales Managers, and Sales
Directors as well as prospective buyers were also
done and added as a mandatory layer to the design
phase. This allowed the team to gather additional
insights and address possible pain points that future
homeowners might have. Moreover, research tools
such as surveys and focus group discussions were
redesigned to add the customer perspective into the
discussion. For projects launched in 2019, consumers
were consulted in the development of potential
names, logos, and product offerings of new projects.

In the same year, we also embarked on a rebranding
initiative to support the division’s growth strategies
amid the booming Philippine real estate industry and
increased competition. It kicked-off with extensive
customer research, which provided relevant and
unique product recommendation improvements,
such as the incorporation of smart home features,
storage-solutions, and provision of venues for
daycare, study halls, and co-working spaces. All

of which were added to the value offering of the
projects launched in 2019.

EVALENE® PE AND pp.
Innovations for Imnroved“ mp
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In our efforts to be truly responsive to our polymer
customers’ needs and armed with a desire to be top-
of-mind in terms of product quality, innovation and
customer service, JGSPG in 2019 established a Market
and Product Development Division (MPD), which
combines the existing Product R&D, Product Management
and Customer Technical Services function with a new
proactive Market Development complement. Now with
an expanded technology portfolio, MPD’s mandate is to
innovate on products and services that make our polymer
offering better than competitors’, explore and co-develop
with the Sales team on new polymer markets and
businesses, and therefore help improve overall topline for
JGSPG’s polymer sales.

Notable customer-centric initiatives undertaken in 2019 were:

Joint packaging development work with various films customers

to address sealing concerns and help develop more sustainable mono-material flexible
packaging.

Improvement of current slate and development of new EVALENE® PP
injection molding grades

for various applications, such as to help meet customers’ higher part stiffness requirements and
allowing production on multi-cavity lines of both small and large part clear containers.

Development of a new barefoot EVALENE® LLDPE grade

that is now more suitable for the blown film process versus previous blown film grade.

Conducting beta-trials with target customers of prototype samples of
upcoming PE grades

to be made in the new PE Plant.

Design and performance of small-scale experiments with converters’ inputs

that replicate expected end-use conditions, so as to aid converters in selecting the most suitable
EVALENE® grade and formulation for their requirements.

Recommending the adoption of ISO 4427:2007 to the Bureau of Product
Standards

which shall allow continued qualification for sale of EVALENE® natural HDPE pipe grades, which
is an established product already being used by most local pipe manufacturers.
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The Bank carried out vital strategies that revolve on delivering convenience and top-notch banking experience
to its customers. Numerous products and services were launched. Spurred by technology, digital initiatives were
implemented to reach out to clients and offer quality services. Across the Bank, employees are empowered in
the journey to embody customer-centricity by providing training sessions.

Global Business Outlook names
Robinsons Bank DOS Mastercard

as the Most Innovative Credit Card
Product for 2019 in the Philippines.

Products and Services

Global Business Outlook, a UK-based publication, names
Robinsons Bank DOS Mastercard as the Most Innovative
Credit Card Product for 2019 in the Philippines. This is

a testament that Robinsons Bank can deliver products

and services with hallmark value and convenience to its
customers. In October, the Bank launched another credit
card in partnership with Robinsons Retail Holdings, Inc.,
Robinsons Cashback Card. This co-brand card allows
customers to earn up to 3% cashback or rebate when

they use the card at Robinsons Stores and affiliate brands.
Robinsons Bank responds to our clients’ ever-changing
needs, and as of December 2019, the card product suite
of the Bank expanded to the following: (1) Robinsons Bank
UNO® Mastercard; (2) Robinsons Bank DOS® Mastercard;
(3) Robinsons Cashback Card; (4) Robinsons Bank Visa Debit
Card; and (5) Robinsons Bank Simple Debit Card.

To help promote credit card loyalty, Robinsons Bank

introduced the Balance Transfer (BT) and Convert to Cash
(C2C) features of the credit card products. BT is a credit

92

card feature that allows a cardholder to transfer the
balance from their other credit card/s to their Robinsons
Bank credit card, while C2C allows the cardholder to
convert the available balance of their Robinsons Bank
credit card to cash. Both BT and C2C can be availed with
a one-time fee and be paid back in installment for up to
24 months at 0% interest.

Robinsons Bank and JCB inked an agreement that will
allow acceptance of JCB-issued cards in our Point-
of-Sale (POS) machines. By April 2019, the Bank has
reprogrammed its POS machines to start accepting JCB
cards. By December 2019, JCB was made available online
through Cebu Pacific. This opens our business to millions
of JCB cardholders worldwide.

CX Fortified

With an unrelenting commitment to achieve a culture of
customer-centricity, the CX Fortified (CXF) program was
launched in Y2019. CXF is a leader-led and inspired program
that intends to deepen and intensify a customer-centric
culture within RBank. Starting with the program design by
itself, it embodies a customer-centric approach as it responds
to the employees’ changing needs and new ways of learning.
Designed as a massive bank-wide campaign on customer
centricity, CXF was unveiled by RBank’s President and CEO
with the full support of its Chairman, Lance Gokongwei, who,
through a video message, rallied every RBanker to embrace
customer-centricity.

RBankers embraced customer-centricity as shown by relevant
initiatives that leverage multiple channels:

e The Kamustahan program aims to engage and support
new hires by checking on their onboarding experience and
knowing the support they needed at the onset of their
employment.

e  The 15-minute Branch Daily Morning Huddles discussed
both positive and negative customer experiences as well
as product briefings. Later, this expanded to the head
office’s Weekly Morning Huddles as a conversation on
relevant customer service topics.

e  Online CXF Quick Tips series were broadcasted. Basic,
yet relevant, customer-centric topics such as Etiquettes
on Telephone, Email, and Business Meeting, as well as
Corporate Image form part of the series, each of which
was capped with a learning check to promote continuous
self-development and fun.

e Chat Time with HR was also launched as an avenue for HR
to reintroduce itself to its internal customers and discuss
the support extended and may be needed by the partici-
pating teams. This has not only resulted in the resolution
of issues between and amongst different teams, but it also
became a breakthrough for collaboration.

Beyond learning, one
real proof of the ef-
fectiveness of this
initiative was through

employee testimoni-
als captured in 440
customer-centricity
stories.

Beyond learning, one real proof of the effectiveness of this
initiative was through employee testimonials captured

in 440 customer-centricity stories. These heart-warming
stories featured RBankers who ‘live and breathe’ customer-
centric behaviors in their day-to-day lives by upholding
RBank’s core values and the seven (7) disciplines of
customer-centricity. Because stories are strong culture
influencers, these stories are digitally shared weekly across
the bank to inspire RBankers to replicate the same mindset
and behaviors, promoting a culture of recognition.
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A Pledge to the Generations

JG Summit Holdings, Inc. (JGS) stands by its unrelenting
commitment to provide better choices and create shared
success with its stakeholders. Under the leadership of JGS
Founder and Chairman Emeritus John L. Gokongwei, the
company has built a network of companies from different
industries, such as food and beverage, real estate, aviation,
financial services, and petrochemicals, providing goods and
services that have become part of the Filipinos’ daily lives.

At present, with the constantly changing business landscape
brought about by the evolving needs of the public and

the looming risks posed by climate change, sustainability

is @ must for businesses to thrive. Recognizing this, the
sustainability agenda is put forefront as the company
ventures into new directorship with Lance Gokongwei as
new Chairman. “For JGS, doing our business sustainably not
only means protecting our operations from external risks but
also continuing the Gokongwei legacy of service,” explains
Gokongwei.

With this, JGS created the Gokongwei Group Sustainability
Framework to serve as the company’s proposition in

the years to come as it continues to thrive with greater
sustainability through future generations. The Framework
consists of six key focus areas presenting what sustainability
is for JGS, why it is important, and how we would move
forward with our sustainability journey. These key focus
areas are Shared Success, Climate Impact Management,
Resource Efficiency & Circularity, Better Choices, Leadership
& People Development, and Corporate Governance.

Under the Shared Success focus area, JGS works to achieve
growth that is shared with our closest stakeholders

through equitable distribution of economic wealth. Within
the company, we ensure the provision of competitive
compensation to our employees. Externally, JGS empowers
local communities as demonstrated by Robinsons Bank’s
(RBank) microfinance loans which provides financial
assistance to small business owners and Cebu Pacific’s (CEB)
growth in domestic destinations which helps boost local
tourism. In doing so, the company ensures that investments
delivered are directed for the good of the nation.
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However, the business is also faced with challenges
presented by the continuing threat of climate change.
Not only are there physical risks to our infrastructure
and sources of natural capital, there are also socio
economic implications to our supply chains and the
working conditions of our people. Recognizing that we
can help mitigate the effects of climate change through
improvements in our operation, JGS seeks to address
these risks through two of our focus areas, Climate
Impact Management, and Resource Efficiency and
Circularity.

With the goal of reducing emissions, Robinsons Land
(RLC) has been investing in solar rooftops while CEB has
begun transitioning to more fuel-efficient planes. On
the aspect of optimizing natural resource consumption,

Universal Robina Corporation (URC) is currently increasing

the proportion of recyclable materials in its packaging,
RLC is building more LEED-certified infrastructures. In the
long run, JGS aims to create circular economy initiatives
across its business units, improve waste management
systems, and explore collaborative projects engaging local
communities and recyclers.

While maintaining resilience despite the climate risks,
JGS continues to provide accessible and high quality
products and services through its SBUs. With Better
Choices as a focus area, JGS ensures that we contribute
to improving the quality of life and addressing the needs
of the common Filipino. For instance, URC has committed
to meet its Health and Wellness Criteria by 2030 and JG
Summit Petrochemicals Group (JGSPG) continues to be a
pioneer by providing local essential industries with a key
upstream resource at par with world-class standards.

As our primary partners in delivering shared success

and providing better choices, our employees are also
given vast opportunities for growth and safeguarded

by stringent health and safety measures. Our strategic
business units demonstrate these principles of Leadership
and People Development, our fifth focus area, through
their respective programs. CEB’s Cadet Pilot Program
offers Filipinos chances to become pilots despite financial
constraints. JGSPG also has high standard safety policies
and implementation procedures.

Lastly, our focus towards Corporate Governance serves as
our foundation in delivering the ambitions from the focus
areas mentioned through our senior leadership team and
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champions across the JG Summit group. Our thrust
towards Corporate Governance will also emphasize
strengthening our group-wide risk management that will
ensure business continuity in the coming decades.

With the Sustainability Framework in place, the
company’s initiatives can be better streamlined and
synergized with its business units allowing impact to

be appropriately managed throughout the Group. It
also promotes improved transparency, as JGS publishes
its maiden sustainability report disclosing baseline
sustainability performance to monitor the effectiveness
of JGS' sustainability programs from here on out.

%9 Thriving through Generations

Better Choices

Our portfolio will continue
to drive innovative and
accesible products and
services that improve
quality of life.

Climate Action

We will reduce and/or
offset our carbon emissions
and strengthen our
climate-related risk
management.

Leadership
and People
Development

We invest in our
people to thrive
in the workplace
of the future.

Resource Efficiency
and Circularity

We will optimize
our use of natural
resources

and promote
circularity.

Shared Success

We will continue to
grow and invest in
business to enable
shared success
across our different
stakeholders.
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Sustainability
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The results of our 2018 baseline gave us the basis to develop
our 2030 commitments. Irwin Lee involved the different
country heads and division heads in the program to align their
support in delivering our commitments. In the second quarter
of 2019, we released our 2030 sustainability commitments
aligned to the UN Sustainable Development Goals.

With regards to our executions, we are pleased to announce
that we’ve done several initiatives in the areas of our

materiality which are People, Products, and Natural Resources.

In People, we launched a new campaign towards a better safe
working environment ensuring we promote zero lost time
injury in the workplace. We also engaged our communities
through volunteer programs to work community engagement
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focused on education, nutrition (feeding programs), and
Environment (coastal cleanup drive). In our Products, we
executed another sustainable agriculture project through
our sustainable potato program in partnership with the
Department of Agriculture.

Lastly, in Natural Resources, we collaborated with different
stakeholders in the FMCG industry through the formation of
Philippine Alliance for Recycling and Material Sustainability
(PARMS) to recycle PET and address a bigger issue in solid
waste. Internally, we started our drive towards circular
economy through our program called War on Waste. In
2019 we’ve started our waste analysis & characterization
assessment.
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CEB'’s efforts for its sustainability programs are recognized in the public relations and business spheres
with awards in Public Relations Society of the Philippines Anvil Awards, the International Association of
Business Communicators Quill Awards, PR Asia, and the Department of Social Welfare and Development
Salamat Po Awards. These endeavors were also recognized by the conglomerate-wide JG Pride in

Performance.

In 2019, CEB flew an average of 61,500 passengers a day. As CEB continues to grow with more aircrafts
in its fleet, and more destinations and routes in its network, it is imperative to integrate sustainable
business practices in core operations, keeping in mind the welfare and well-being of staff, the

environment and the communities served.

Environmental stewardship among others

As a mover of people and products, Cebu Pacific

is @ main contributor to economic growth through
tourism and transport. However, this growth can also
come at a cost to the environment. CEB mitigates

its impact by streamlining operations and making
investments accordingly.

The heart of these investments is on the CEB fleet,
exerting extra effort on efficient fuel use and keeping
carbon emissions in check. The CEB fleet is one of
the youngest in the world, with an average of five
years in 2019. The current aircraft order supports a
plan to have, by 2024, a fleet of all new-generation
aircraft, designed to be quieter, more fuel efficient
and less harmful to the environment.

In 2019, CEB'’s total carbon emissions from
flights was 2.01 million tons of CO, for
143,897 domestic and international flights.
On the current fleet, this translated to CEB
generating approximately 80.42 grams of
carbon for each kilometer travelled by a
passenger (gCO,/pk). Despite having more
flights from 2018 to 2019, the younger fleet
age and efficiency of planes enabled CEB
to lower the carbon emissions intensity per
passenger by 5.6% from 2018’s intensity of
85.21g CO,/pk.




ANNUAL REPORT

Renewable Energy: Mall Solar Facilities

RLC values energy management to promote sustainable growth

for the organization. To integrate this in the company’s operations,
RLC embarked on a renewable energy project to install off-grid
rooftop solar photovoltaic (PV) panels in its malls nationwide.

This demonstrates RLC’s commitment to protect the environment
from the adverse effects of carbon emissions, and to be an

industry leader in efficient energy use, alongside its other energy
conservation and efficiency programs. RLC still holds the record of
having the world’s largest solar-powered facility installed on a mall’s
rooftop for self-consumption.

To date, RLC has completed 21 solar projects for a total of
approximately 21,682.46 kWp (21.68 MWop) of solar panels
installed. This is equivalent to about 306,774 trees planted and
18,554.10 tons of carbon dioxide avoided. Malls with solar facilities
are located in Palawan, lloilo, Dumaguete, Roxas, Antique, San

Wastewater Recovery Program

Fernando Pampanga, Angeles
Pampanga, Novaliches, Tacloban,
Bacolod, Jaro, Tagum, Galleria Cebu,
Cybergate Cebu, llocos, Pangasinan,
Pavia, and Ormoc.

For 2020, RLC targets to install solar
panels in 8 more commercial centers
in different locations nationwide
including General Santos, Naga,
Santiago, lligan, Butuan and North
Tacloban. Aside from this, plans to
roll out even more solar PV systems
in both existing and future malls are
already in the pipeline.

RLC recognizes the importance of the intelligent use of water resources. Through the “Wastewater Recovery
Program”, wastewater is treated, filtered, and reused resulting in zero wastewater discharge to public sewers.
Several RLC hotels and malls now use 100% recycled wastewater for their toilets and irrigation requirements.
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Robinsons Malls Recycling Market

The Robinsons Malls Recycling Market and “Shoot Your PET Bottles” project provide waste-
recovery systems through a once-a-month recyclable-buying fair involving Robinsons
tenants, customers, other business establishments, schools, religious groups, and city
residents. The project aims to instill environmental stewardship amongst city residents and
businesses, while providing additional income for households and organizations. Through
this project, waste-to-landfill diversion is achieved through segregation campaigns, recycling
practices, and the trash-for-cash incentive mechanism.

Robinsons Place llocos, Robinsons Place Malolos, Robinsons Town Mall Malabon, and
Robinsons Novaliches actively promoted the initiative. More than 140 tons of solid waste
recyclables consisting of cartons, PET bottles, papers, tin, aluminum, cans and even old
appliances were brought to the Weekend Recycling Market to prevent landfill pollution. The
project was executed in partnership with the respective Local Government Units and DENR-
Environment Management Bureau.

Robinsons Malls Weekend Recycling Market contributes to the multiple solution approach in
waste management by creating public awareness on the importance of the preservation of
the environment through promotion of the REUSE, REDUCE, RECYCLE attitude in the malls’
respective communities. It is RLC’s way of creating shared value for all involved stakeholders
— the local businesses, customers, local organizations, and neighboring communities.

Aside from the Weekend Recycling Market, Robinsons Place Novaliches also partnered with
Tetra Pak Philippines to launch the “Panalong Easy sa UBC” project. The project promotes
proper waste management and carton recycling through the collection of used beverage
cartons from junk shops and mall customers. It likewise aims to educate the public on

the positive impact of waste recycling activities and to impart lifestyle changes that may
contribute to environmental preservation.

Bote Ko, Palit Ko

Robinsons Malls lloilo partnered with the local government and the Provincial Environment
and Natural Resources Office (PENRO lloilo) for “Bote Ko, Palit Ko”, an eco-brick project

that champions the adoption of the Alternative Recycling Technology (ART) through plastic
bottle redemption activities. The campaign targeted schools and universities, including mall
customers who donated collated plastic bottles or “trash in a bottle” in exchange for eco-
friendly items from the mall. Collected plastic bottles were used to create planter boxes, and
low non-load bearing walls for schools.
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JGSPG believes sustainability should be at the core of our business, and we strive to embed sustainability not just in our
programs and initiatives but as part of overall business strategy. Below are some of the initiatives given particular attention in
2019 as the company contributes towards helping protect the planet while also ensuring that the business operates sustainably.

Boracay Wetland No. 8 Rehabilitation Project: Partnering
with Government for Biodiversity Sustainability

On March 7, 2019, JG Summit Petrochemical Corp. (JGSPC)
partnered with the Dept. of Environment and Natural

Resources (DENR) to revive Wetland No. 8 in Boracay Island.

The partnership is part of the Adopt-a-Wetland Program of
the DENR - Biodiversity Management Bureau (BMB), where
the private sector commits to rehabilitate and restore
Boracay’s wetlands at no cost to the government. Wetland
No. 8, a 1.8-hectare swamp and marshland located in Brgy.
Manocmanoc, is home to 39 species of trees and 20 faunal
species of birds, fish, mammals and gastropods, and is one
of the nine wetlands in Boracay identified for the DENR-
BMB program.

Dubbed as Para sa Atong Cagban Bobon, JGSPG launched
the 3-year program aimed to restore the environmental
sustainability of Wetland No. 8 and prevent further

degradation of its ecosystem, through espousing a
private-public sector collaborative approach with active
involvement of other stakeholder communities.

Anchored on environmental stewardship and community
engagement, Para sa Atong Cagban Bobon is centered on
contributing to Goal 15 of the United Nations’ Sustainable
Development Goals which is to “Protect, restore and
promote sustainable use of terrestrial ecosystems,
sustainably manage forests, combat desertification, and
halt and reverse land degradation and halt biodiversity
loss.” The partnership between DENR and JGSPG likewise
contributes to Goal 17 that aims to “strengthen the means
of implementation and revitalize the Global Partnership for
Sustainable Development.”

Artificial Reef Project: Improving Biodiversity along

Verde Island Passage

Since 2002, JGSPG has been maintaining a marine
biodiversity project along the coast of one of its host
communities, Brgy. Simlong, located in Batangas Bay
which is within the Verde Island Passage, a 1.14-million
hectare marine ecosystem that covers the coastlines

of the provinces of Batangas, Romblon, Marinduque,
Occidental Mindoro and Oriental Mindoro. To date, JGSPG
has deployed a total of 683 artificial reef blocks that
cover an area of 312.5 square meters. Based on the latest
monitoring survey of the faunal communities of the area
conducted in January 2019, fish species richness of 38
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species / 20 m? and fish biomass of 13.9 kg / 20 m? were
recorded, proof of “remarkable positive changes in diversity
and abundance.” Total number of fish species is distributed
among 19 families, and composed of 24 major species and
14 target species.

Through the artificial reef project, JGSPG contributes to Goal
14 of the UN SDG’s which is to “Conserve and sustainably
use the oceans, seas and marine resources for sustainable
development.”
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Abot Kamay: JGSPG’s Flagship Program for Education and

Community Development

Aside from a strong focus on environment, JGSPG's
sustainability thrust is also firmly centered on education
and community development through its flagship Abot
Kamay program which has been ongoing since 2000. In
2019, the engagement was evident more than ever through
several education- and community-related activities that
were rolled out for the students and residents of JGSPG’s
host communities, Brgys. Simlong and Pinamucan lbaba.

Under the Abot Kamay program, JGSPG participated in the
Dept. of Education’s Balik Eskwela and Brigada Eskwela
programs to help prepare schools and students for opening
of classes. Responding to the need for improved nutrition,
JGSPG sponsored a feeding program for more than 100 pre-
school children of the Simlong Child Development Center.
Recognizing the need for better access to technology,
JGSPG donated 38 units of personal computers to the

Simlong Elementary School. To help instill a safety mindset
among the youth, JGSPG organized awareness trainings on
fire and traffic safety, in partnership with the Batangas City
local government. For the community, residents’ health and
well-being were prioritized through medical missions and
improvement of water system in Brgy. Pinamucan Ibaba. A
multipurpose facility was also donated to Brgy. Pinamucan
Ibaba for sports, recreational, events and other uses.

With Abot Kamay, JGSPG is able to give back to its host
communities and contribute further to several UN SDG'’s -
reducing hunger (Goal 2), improving health and well-being
(Goal 3), ensuring quality education (Goal 4), and providing
clean water (Goal 6).

Polymer Products’ Alignment Towards Sustainability: Moving towards
creating and shaping future markets for our PE and PP polymers

JGSPG is aligning with the four most important sustainable
development goals (SDG’s) according to the World Council
for Sustainable Development - Food Security, Water
Security, Energy for All, and Climate Change. As such, the
most important markets to which JGSPC will sell PP and

PE products are for (1) food and beverage packaging, to
help in meeting the 30% increased requirement for food
from 2015 to 2050, (2) infrastructure needs, to help in
meeting the 50% increased requirements for water, 45%

increased requirement for energy and 100% increased
requirement for roads needed from 2015 to 2050; and (3)
for sustaining urban lifestyles, as 70% of world population
is projected to be living in cities by 2050. Future product
and applications developments are to be geared towards
sustainably serving these markets with the commencement
of JGSPG’s expanded polymers production capacity from
2020 onwards.
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Robinsons Bank ensures future readiness. The Bank’s sustainability measures are built upon economic,
environmental, social, and governance (ESG) framework. RBank supports the United Nations SDGs.
Sustainability is incorporated in the way RBank delivers value, products and services, and business. The
sustainability report of the Bank is prepared in accordance with the GRI Standards. As a commitment to
uphold the principles of sustainability, the Bank’s officers underwent rigorous GRI trainings.

Financial Inclusion

The Bank utilized digital financial services tailored to
customers’ needs and developed Simplé Savings to

address the pain points of Filipinos who are unbanked and
underserved. This product allowed millions of unbanked
Filipinos to have a formal bank account and build productive
relationship with a formal financial institution. Simplé
Savings offers no maintaining balance, just P100.00 initial
deposit, interest earning, simplified KYC (Know-Your-Client)
requirements, and just one (1) ID from the client to open
an account. Simplé Savings introduced a simpler and easier
path towards customer engagement and achieve higher
satisfaction. Simplified requirements opened gateways of
easily obtaining formal savings account due to the MADALI,
MABILIS, & SIMPLE (Easy. Fast. Simple) process.

*au*iiJ#ww‘V’
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Simplé Savings Online was the first online savings account
opening platform launched by the Bank. Without needing
to go to a branch, clients can open online and receive
email confirmation including a virtual VISA card that may
be used for online purchase, as well as, the regular online
banking transactions like balance inquiry, bills payment
and fund transfer. Though just a drop in the bucket, RBank
has started a journey of engaging unbanked Filipinos
(77.4% of adult population) to be financially included to a
safe, secured, and guaranteed financial environment.
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Financial Literacy

In Robinsons Bank, we teach families that every peso,
through good money management skills, has a potential
to grow and create more value in their lives. Robinsons
Bank’s CSR program - RBank Creates Value, instills the
value of saving and teaches money management skills to
students and their families. These are lessons reinforced in
the three-year program that Robinsons Bank engaged the
entire family: the student, the mother, and the father. The
student and their parents were given easy-to-digest “bite-
sized” lessons on the value of saving and were formed to
develop the habit of saving.

On the first year of the program, RBank volunteers
organized a program at the beneficiary schools. Grade 3
students were taught the importance of saving through
the fable “Si Langgam at si Tipaklong”. These students
were challenged to save and were provided the piggy
banks. The Bank promised to help them open their very
own bank accounts the following year, using the money
that they will be able to save.

On year two, the Bank volunteers returned to the same
schools and gathered the same group of students who
are now in Grade 4. The lesson this time was on knowing
the difference between wants and needs introduced
through an exciting game. The volunteers explained the
importance of focusing on the “needs” and reiterated the
value of delayed gratification to the 494 students who
joined the program. As promised, the Bank assisted the
students in opening their very first savings account and
as a reward, the Bank added P2,000.00 to the account

of students who were able to save more than the other
students. To develop the habit of saving, new coin banks
were distributed once again to the students.

While the students continue to engage in the program,
their mothers were invited to a livelihood skill training
uniquely identified to match the prospective market
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of each of the 16 beneficiary schools’
community. The training includes
production of hair accessories, dishwashing
detergent, doormat, rags, and peanut
butter. 204 mothers attended this program
organized by 176 RBank volunteers.

In the last year of the program, the same
set of students were taught how to budget
their money. This activity also taught the
students appreciation in the budgeting
decisions that their parents do and how, as
children, they can help their parents in the
allocation of the family’s income to their
needs.

Concurrent sessions for the 194 fathers
were conducted to provide livelihood skill
training for possible sources of additional
income. 171 RBankers organized sessions
on haircutting, aquaponics, citronella spray-
making, and candle-making. PremiumBikes
presented a sub-agent program to earn
through referrals and offered registration
assistance to Grab’s food delivery services
to those with motorcycles.

RBank creates value as it brought together
17 CSR Teams, represented by 209 RBank
volunteers, who connected with 20 schools
nationwide to serve 912 beneficiaries.
Through Robinsons Bank’s CSR Program,
“RBank Creates Value”, we were able to
create value in the lives of the families in
our partner communities - the type of value
that will make their future even brighter.
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Gokongwei Brothers Foundation (GBF) was established in 1992 with
the goal of having a lasting impact on education in the Philippines.
Guided by its mission of building the future through education,

GBF works toward advancing Science, Technology, Engineering, and
Mathematics (STEM), believing this is the driving force for sustainable
national development.

Key 2019
Milestones

Institutional Support

GBF inaugurated two facilities envisioned to empower the workforce for
future and existing STEM-enabled industries: the De La Salle University
John Gokongwei, Jr. Innovation Center (DLSU JGIC) and the new GBF
Technical Training Center (TTC).

Unveiled in January at the DLSU Laguna Campus, JGIC aims to be a major
hub of multimedia gaming revolution and interactive entertainment in
the ASEAN region. Presently hosting DLSU’s bachelor’s degree programs
focusing on game development and game art and design, JGIC is
envisioned to hone the leaders of industries of the future.

In September, GBF TTC relocated to a new 100-million-peso facility in
Calamba City, Laguna. The move to Laguna from its 1999 founding site in
Litton Mills, Pasig City gives GBF TTC the center space to expand further in
the future without being far away from Metro Manila. GBF TTC continues
to be home of Iskolar ni Juan, the Foundation’s flagship technical-
vocational scholarship for high school graduates who aspire to become
maintenance technicians and productions operators at Universal Robina
Corporation. It also serves as venue for continuous technical training of JG
Summit employees.

STEM Advocacy

In May, GBF recognized the pioneer recipients of the GBF Young Scientist
Award (YSA). Established to promote excellence in STEM among the youth,
GBF YSA is given to high school and college students who demonstrate
global competence through their achievement in highly-competitive and
reputable STEM competitions.

The first batch of GBF YSA recipients are the 12 Philippine student-
delegates to the Intel International Science and Engineering Fair (ISEF)
2019, the world’s largest pre-college science research competition. The
students, all from public high schools, earlier earned top recognition in the
Department of Education’s National Science and Technology Fair (NSTF)
2019. As NSTF’s sponsor, GBF provided promotional support to DepEd and
funded the Philippine delegation’s trip to Phoenix, Arizona for ISEF 2019.
To encourage them to pursue STEM in higher education, the GBF YSA
recipients were granted college scholarships.
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Student Access

As of year-end 2019, GBF has supported 814 scholars

through graduation. Of which, 28% graduated in
2019. Among GBF’s 475 enrolled scholars, more
than half are pursuing STEM courses in college. GBF
offered ten scholarship programs in 2019.

The GBF NextGen Scholarship for Excellence
provides financial support to outstanding children
and siblings of JG Summit Holdings, Inc., Subsidiaries
and Affiliates employees.

Year Launched: 2010 | Graduates: 115| Enrolled
Scholars: 98

In partnership with URC Branded Consumer Foods
Group (URC-BCFG), GBF grants the fully-subsidized
one-year Iskolar ni Juan Technical-Vocational
Scholarship to high school graduates interested

in industrial machine operation. Boarded at the
GBF TTC, scholars undergo GBF’s signature TESDA-
registered courses followed by on-the-job training
and employment at URC-BCFG.

Year Launched: 2014 | Graduates: 332 | Enrolled
Scholars: 75

The GBF STEM Scholarship for Excellence supports
outstanding STEM undergraduate students with
strong leadership potential and enrolled in top-
ranked Philippine universities. Only students at

the top 30% of the course batch qualify for this
program. To help ensure quality on-the-job training
and employment for scholars, GBF works with
partner JG Summit Business Units such as JG Summit
Petrochemicals Group, South Star Drug, Robinsons
Land Corporation, URC Agro-Industrial Group, URC
Flour and Pasta Division, URC Sugar and Renewables
Group, Robinsons Bank, and Cebu Pacific.

Year Launched: 2011 | Graduates: 201 | Enrolled
Scholars: 196

As part of GBF’s endowment to DLSU, the DLSU
Gokongwei College of Engineering Grant is awarded
to outstanding students taking any undergraduate
course offered by DLSU GCOE. Scholars are
supported from first year to graduation.

Year Launched: 2012 | Graduates: 58 | Enrolled
Scholars: 48

Similarly, the Ateneo John L. Gokongwei Scholarship
is granted to academically excellent but financially
needy students of the Ateneo John Gokongwei
School of Management. Scholars are supported from
first year to graduation.

Year Launched: 2006 | Graduates: 24 | Enrolled
Scholars: 8
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Meanwhile, GBF awards the St. Stephen’s High
School Scholarship to exemplary but indigent high
school students at the Chinese school. Scholars are
supported from Grades 7 to 12.

Year Launched: 2012 | Graduates: 10 | Enrolled
Scholars: 9

GBF also grants the merit-based and need-based
GBF-Go Family Association College Scholarship. It
is offered to members of the Go family pursuing any
bachelor’s degree and demonstrating leadership
potential.

Year Launched: 2019 | Enrolled Scholars: 6

To encourage youth with exceptional aptitude

in STEM to pursue further studies in the field,
GBF grants the GBF Young Scientist Award STEM
Scholarship for Excellence to recipients of the
recognition.

Year Launched: 2019 | Enrolled Scholars: 5
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Teacher Development

GBF sponsors outstanding students taking bachelor’s
degree in Education specializing in science or
mathematics through the Philippine Business for
Education’s (PBEd) 1000 Teachers Program. With

the GBF-PBEd TeachSTEM College Scholarship, GBF
partakes in ensuring a pool of quality Filipino science
and mathematics teachers.

Year Established: 2018 | Enrolled Scholars: 15

Further, GBF also supports agents of change in K
to 12 science and mathematics education through
the GBF TeachSTEM Graduate Scholarship.
Supporting K to 12 science and mathematics public

e

school teachers pursuing master’s degree in their
respective disciplines, the scholars are expected

to champion a STEM-oriented culture in basic
education. GBF’s academic partners for this program
are top teacher education institutions: University of
the Philippines, Philippine Normal University, and
West Visayas State University.

Year Established: 2019 | Enrolled Scholars: 14
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Outlook for 2020 and Beyond o

The new decade brings a lot of changes, but what remains true for GBF is its mission
and vision to give every Filipino youth the access to education that has the power to
improve not just their lives, but their family’s as well. Aside from this, all initiatives
are centered on improving the quality of STEM education in the country—a vital
element that leads to a developing country’s industrialization. These serve as the STEM Advocacy
guiding light that steers the foundation to the right direction when creating its 1
newest programs for 2020 and the years to come. GBF and JG Summit also partnered with the business-technology :
platform, SAP, for the GBF-SAP University Alliance Program. Its
primary goal is to prepare young professionals for jobs that require —
the tech know-how of modern computer tools and software like @ ¥ 5 v
SAP. This specialized curriculum will be integrated in various courses
in Accountancy, Business Administration, and Computer Science
being offered among partner schools and universities such as De La

EXpa nsion of SChOIarShip Salle University — Dasmarinas and University of San Carlos.

Scholarships is expected to increase by 60% enrolled scholars across the various
scholarships by end 2020 with an emphasis on improving scholars’ journey from
selection to alumni engagement. Some highlights will be the offering of more
holistic developmental programs to our scholars to ensure future work readiness.

Institutional Support

This year also marks the first-ever collaboration between GBF,

GBF’s Iskolar ni Juan Tech-Voc Scholarship Program will be adding an IT-Digital the Ateneo de Manila John Gokongwei School of Management,
course to its roster of scholarships this year. This newest offering was developed and NTUitive Pte Ltd, the Innovation and Enterprise company of

in partnership with iTech Global Solutions, Inc. and Microsoft. In today’s industries Nanyang Technological University of Singapore for E-nnovate—
where the integration of the latest technologies becomes necessary, the demand an innovation and entrepreneurship workshop. This two-week

for digitally-trained employees increases; this is the gap that the program wants accelerated course is for Filipino teachers and students who

to bridge. INJ-IT-Digital will train scholars on installation, configuration, and want to learn how to transform innovative ideas to sustainable
maintenance of computer parts, software and operating systems. enterprises. The workshop will help participants to acquire the vital

skills and learn methodologies needed from ideation to product
development of the enterprise they want to put up.

GBF is also working on the newest digital platform that aims
TeaCherS Development Prog ram to increase students’ awareness on the potential STEM career
opportunities that they can pursue in the future. The website will
feature reliable and relevant content that will educate students
about the various industries where they can thrive as next-
generation engineers, mathematicians, scientists, or technicians.
The website will serve as a guide to help students understand
and decide which career path is right for them based on skills
assessment and psychometrics that can be done in the platform.

In early 2019, GBF partnered with the University of the Philippines National Institute
for Science and Mathematics Education Development (UP NISMED) to help improve
its KaSaMa Teachers Community website—an online community for Filipino K to

12 Science and Math educators. After months of development under the expertise
of Summit Media, a fresher and better KaSaMa website was introduced in January
2020. This platform was designed to become a one-stop hub for communication,
collaboration, learning and development; a tool for teachers to be the best of
themselves, not only for their students, but the entire teaching community as well.
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Sustainability

JG Summit Holdings, Inc. (“JGS” or “The Company”) recognizes that
good corporate governance is essential to build an environment

of trust, transparency and accountability necessary for fostering
long-term performance, financial stability, business integrity and
sustainability of the company for the protection of the interests of its
shareholders and other stakeholders.

Corporate governance is the framework of rules, systems and
processes of the corporation that governs the performance by
the Board of Directors and Management of their respective duties
and responsibilities to the stakeholders. The Revised Corporate
Governance Manual was adopted to institutionalize corporate
governance principles as a guide for the daily conduct of business.

“JGS acknowledges that sound and effective
corporate practices are fundamental to the smooth,

effective and transparent operation of the company”

10

The Company continuously strives to strengthen

and improve its corporate governance practices

by adopting best practices that includes building

a competent board, aligning strategies with goals,
managing risk effectively, adhering to high standards
of ethics and integrity, and promoting accountability
by defining roles and responsibilities.

JGS acknowledges that sound and effective corporate practices are fundamental to
the smooth, effective and transparent operation of the company, its ability to attract
investment and enhance shareholder value. This includes the Company’s commitment
to ensure fair and equitable treatment of all shareholders, including the minority, and

the protection of their rights that include:

Right to vote on all matters
that require their consent
or approval

Right to inspect corporate
books and records

Right to information

JGS is transparent and fair in the conduct of its annual
and special Shareholders’ meetings. To foster active
shareholder participation, the Board sends the Notice

of Annual and Special Shareholders’ Meeting with
sufficient and relevant information at least fifteen (15)
business days before the meeting, which also complies
with the Securities Regulation Code. The Shareholders
are encouraged to personally attend such meetings.
Shareholders who are unable to attend are apprised
ahead of time of their right to appoint a proxy. Subject
to the requirements of law, rules and regulations and the
By-Laws, the exercise of that right shall not be unduly
restricted and any doubt about the validity of a proxy shall
be resolved in the favor of the shareholder.

Right to dividends

Appraisal right

Guided by the principles of fairness,
accountability and transparency to

the shareholding public, the Company
ensures that the result of the votes taken
during the most recent Annual or Special
Shareholders’ Meeting are made available
by the next working day. In addition,

the Minutes of the Annual and Special
Shareholders’ Meeting may be accessed
through the Company Website within
five (5) business days from the end of the
meeting.
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Duty to Other Stakeholders

The Company recognizes and places importance on the interdependence
between business and society, and promote a mutually beneficial relationship
that encourages the Company’s sustainable growth, while contributing to the
advancement of the society where it operates. The Company employs value
chain processes that take into consideration Economic, Environmental and
Social Governance (EESG) issues and concerns.

12

Customers’ Welfare

The Company adopts customer relations policies and procedures to protect
customer’s welfare. This includes providing and making available the
customer relations contact information empowered to address and attend to
customer questions and concerns.

Supplier/Contractor Selection

The Company follows the Supplier Accreditation Policy to ensure that the
Company’s suppliers and contractors are qualified to meet its commitments.
Apart from the accreditation process, suppliers and contractors also undergo
orientation on Company policies and ethical practices.

Employees

The Board also establishes policies, programs and procedures that encourage
employees to actively participate in the realization of the Company’s goals
and its governance including but not limited to:

Health, safety and welfare;
Training and development; and

Reward and compensation.

1. Performance-enhancing mechanisms for employee
participation

The Company abides by the standards and policies set by the Department

of Labor and Employment. Likewise, the Company has Security and Safety
Manuals that are implemented, reviewed and regularly updated to ensure the
security, safety, health, and welfare of the employees in the workplace.

“The Company
continuously provides
learning and development
opportunities for its

employees through the
John Gokongwei Institute
for Leadership and
Enterprise Development”

The Company continuously provides learning and
development opportunities for its employees through
the John Gokongwei Institute for Leadership and
Enterprise Development (JG-ILED), the leadership
platform for systematic and sustained development
programs across the conglomerate. Its mission is

to enable a high performing organization that will
facilitate the learning process and develop the
intellectual and personal growth of all employees
through targeted and customized trainings and
development programs.

2. Anti-corruption programs and procedures

The Company is committed to promoting transparency
and fairness to all stakeholders. The Board sets the
tone and makes a stand against corrupt practices

by adopting anti-corruption policies and programs.
Some of the Company’s Anti-Corruption programs

are embodied in the Code of Business Conduct

and Ethics, Conflict of Interest, Offenses Subject

to Disciplinary Action (OSDA), among others. The
same are disseminated to all employees across the
Company through trainings to embed them in the
Company'’s culture. New employees are oriented
regarding policies and procedures related to Business
Conduct and Ethics and similar policies. All employees
are given periodic reminders. Further, all concerned
employees of the Conglomerate are required to
comply with the Self-Disclosure Activity on Conflict

of Interest and Declaration of Gifts Received on an
annual basis.

The Company also has an established suitable
framework for whistleblowing and ensure its
enforcement to allow employees and other
stakeholders to freely communicate their concerns
about illegal or unethical practices, without fear

of retaliation and to have direct access to an
independent member of the Board or a unit created
to handle whistleblowing concerns.

13




ANNUAL REPORT

The anti-corruption programs and procedures of the Company are summarized below:

Business Conduct & Ethics

Conflict of Interest

Policy Statement

The Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policy require
employees to make a conscious effort to avoid conflict of interest situations; that
his judgment and discretion are not influenced by considerations of personal
gain or benefit. A conflict of interest may also occur because of the actions,
employment, or investments of an immediate family member of an employee.

Business Conduct & Ethics

Employment and Labor Laws
and Policies

Policy Statement

The Company ensures the observance, strict implementation and compliance
with employment and labor laws and policies with regards to recruitment,
employment, retention and benefits of the employees.

. —

Conduct of Business
and Fair Dealings

The Company’s employees who recommend, endorse, or approve the
procurement or sale of goods and services should make a conscious effort to avoid
any conflict of interest situation in transactions they are involved in.

/

Disciplinary Action

Violation of any provision of the Code of Business Conduct may result to
disciplinary action, including dismissal and reimbursement for any loss to the
Company that resulted from the employee’s actions. If appropriate, a violation
may result in legal action against the employee or referral to the appropriate
government authorities.

@

Receipt of Gifts
from Third Parties

The Company discourages the acceptance of gifts. However, gifts like advertising
novelties may be given or accepted during the Christmas season. There is no
restriction in the value of the gift that may be accepted. However, accepted gift
with estimated value over Php2,000.00 must be disclosed to the Conflicts of
Interest Committee.

}

Compliance with Laws
and Regulations

The Company ensures that all transactions comply with relevant laws and
regulations. Any deficiencies are immediately rectified.

Respect for Trade Secrets/
Use of Non-public Information

The Company has policies that ensure proper and authorized disclosure of
confidential information. Disclosures to the public can only be done after the
disclosure to SEC and PSE by the Company’s authorized officers.

Whistleblowing

The stakeholders may discuss or disclose in writing any concern on potential
violation of the Code of Business Conduct with the Conflicts of Interest
Committee. Reports or disclosures can be made in writing or by email using the
following contact details:

a. email address: cicom@jgsumit.com.ph
b. fax number: 8395-3888
c. mailing address

Must be sent in a sealed envelope clearly marked
“Strictly Private and Confidential-To Be Opened by Addressee Only”

CicoM

JG Summit Holdings, Inc.

40th FIr. Robinsons Equitable Tower
ADB Avenue, Cor., Poveda Road
Pasig City

The complaint shall be filed usig the Complaint/Disclosure Form (CDF) available in
the company website.

All Information received in connection with the reports or disclosures shall be
strictly confidential and shall not be disclosed to any person without prior consent
of CICOM.

The Company commits to protect those who report in good faith from retaliation,
harrassment and even informal pressures. It will take the necessary and
appropriate action to do so in enforcing the policy.

e
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Use of Company Funds,
Assets and Information
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Employees are required to safeguard Company resources and assets with
honesty and integrity. Employees must ensure that these assets are efficiently,
effectively, and responsibly utilized.

Conflict Resolution

The Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policy require
employees to make a conscious effort to avoid conflict of interest situations; that
his judgment and discretion are not influenced by considerations of personal
gain or benefit. A conflict of interest may also occur because of the actions,
employment, or investments of an immediate family member of an employee.

ANNUAL REPORT
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Corporate
Governance
Highlights

Consistent with the Revised Corporate
Governance Manual and pursuant to the
recommendations provided in the Code

of Corporate Governance for Publicly

Listed Companies (PLCs), the Company
strengthened its policies on Board Diversity,
Board Nomination and Election, Succession
Planning and Remuneration, Material Related
Party Transactions and Whistleblowing to
reinforce the governance framework of the
Company. These policies may be accessed in
the Company’s website, in the Governance
section, https://www.jgsummit.com.ph/
corporate-governance/policies

The Company submitted the Integrated
Corporate Governance Report (I-ACGR) to

the Securities and Exchange Commission

(SEC) and Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) on
May 30, 2019. The I-ACGR is a reportorial
requirement under SEC Memorandum Circular
No. 15 series of 2017 to all PLCs to disclose
the Company’s compliance/non-compliance
with the recommendations provided under
the Corporate Governance Code for PLCs.
With the “comply or explain” approach,
voluntary compliance to recommended CG
best practices is combined with mandatory
disclosure. The Company also submitted the
Material Related Party Transactions (MRPT)
Policy to SEC on October 28, 2019 as required
under SEC Memorandum Circular No. 10 series
of 2019.

The Company’s I-ACGR may be accessed

through the Company website by clicking this
link, https://www.jgsummit.com.ph/I-ACGR
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The Board
of Directors

The Board of Directors (“The Board”) is primarily responsible
for the governance of the Company and provides an
independent check on management. It has the duty to foster
the long-term success of the Company and to ensure that the
Company’s competitiveness and profitability will be sustained
in a manner consistent with its corporate objectives for the
best interest of the company and its stakeholders.

“The Board exercises
care, skill and judgment
and observes good faith

and loyalty in the conduct
and management of the
business and affairs of the
Company.”

The Board formulates the Company’s vision, mission, strategic
objectives, policies and procedures that guide its activities,
including the means to effectively monitor Management’s
performance. It provides direction and approval in relation to
matters concerning the Company’s business strategies, policies
and plans, while the day-to-day business operations are
delegated to the Executive Committee.

The Board exercises care, skill and judgment and observes
good faith and loyalty in the conduct and management of
the business and affairs of the Company. It ensures that all
its actions are within the scope of power and authority as
prescribed in the Articles of Incorporation, By-Laws, and
existing laws, rules and regulations. To uphold high standards
for the Company, its Shareholders and other Stakeholders,
the Board conducts itself with honesty and integrity in the
performance of its duties and responsibilities.

Board Duties and
Responsibilities

The Company’s Corporate Governance Manual specifies the
roles, duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors
in compliance with relevant laws, rules and regulations. In
adherence to the principles of corporate governance, the
Board is tasked to perform the following:

Duties and Functions

ANNUAL REPORT

General
Responsibilities

It is the Board’s responsibility to foster the long-

term success of the Corporation, and to sustain its
competitiveness and profitability in a manner consistent
with its corporate objectives and in the best interest of the
Corporation, its Shareholders and Stakeholders, as a whole.

To ensure high standard for the Corporation, its Shareholders and other Stakeholders, the Board shall conduct itself with honesty
and integrity in the performance of, among others, the following duties and responsibilities:

Act on a fully informed basis, in good faith, with
due diligence and care, and in the best interest of
the Company and all Stakeholders;

Oversee the development of and approve the
Company’s business objectives and strategy,
and monitor their implementation, in order to
sustain the Company’s long-term viability and
strength. The Board shall review and guide
corporate strategy, major plans of action, risk
management policies and procedures, annual
budgets and business plans; set performance
objectives; monitor implementation and
corporate performance; and oversee major capital
expenditures, acquisitions and divestitures;

Oversee the adoption of an effective succession
planning program and remuneration policies;

Adopt policies on board nomination and election
that will ensure diversity in board composition in
terms of knowledge, expertise and experience;

Oversee the implementation of a policy and
system on RPTs which shall include the review and
approval of material or significant RPTs and ensure
fairness and transparency of the transactions;

Oversee the adoption of policies on the selection
of Management and Key Officers and the
assessment of their performance;

Oversee the establishment of an internal control
system to monitor and manage potential conflicts
of interest and an ERM framework to identify,
monitor, assess and manage key business risks;

Annually review, together with Management, the
Company’s vision and mission;

Ensure the Corporation’s faithful compliance

with all applicable laws and regulations, and best
business practices;

stablish and maintain an Investor Relations
Program that will keep the Shareholders informed
of important developments in the Corporation.
The Corporation’s CEO shall exercise oversight
responsibility over this program;

Identify the Corporation’s Stakeholders in the
community in which it operates or are directly
affected by its operations and formulate a
clear policy of accurate, timely, and effective
communication with them;

Adopt a system of check and balance within the
Board. A regular review of the effectiveness of
such system should be conducted to ensure the
integrity of the decision-making and reporting
processes at all times;

Ensure that the Corporation has an independent
audit mechanism for the proper audit and review
of the Corporation’s financial statements by
independent auditors;

Ensure that the Corporation establishes
appropriate Corporate Governance policies and
procedures pursuant to this Manual and the
Governance Code, including but not limited to,
policies on conflict of interest, and oversee the
effective implementation thereof; and

Consider the implementation of an alternative
dispute resolution system for the amicable
settlement of conflicts or differences between the
Corporation and its Shareholders, if applicable.
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Balanced Board Composition

The Company recognizes the benefits of having a diverse
Board and its value in maintaining sound corporate
governance while achieving strategic objectives and
sustainable growth. The Board Member’s biographical
details are set out in the succeeding section and may
also be found in the Information Statement. The Board
is diverse in terms of expertise, gender and professional
experience. The Board of Directors is composed of 11
members. Currently, the Board has 10 directors, 9 of
these directors are non-executive and 3 of which are

Board Independence

The Board has three independent directors that
possess all the necessary qualifications and none of the
disqualifications to hold the position. The Company
reinforces proper mechanisms for disclosure, protection
of the rights of shareholders, equitable treatment of
shareholders, and the accountability of the Board and

independent directors”. The Board also has 2 women
forming part of the non-executive directors. Furthermore,
the posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of

the Company are separate to ensure a clear distinction
between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the
Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility

to manage the Company’s business. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer is clearly established and set out in the

Revised Corporate Governance Manual.

Management are in place. In cases of conflicts of interest,
Directors with a material interest in any transaction with
the Company abstain from participating in the deliberation
of the same.

Board Training and Orientation

The Company ensures that directors are able to perform
their functions effectively in this rapidly changing
environment to cope with heightened regulatory
policies, foreign and local demands, and the growing
complexity of the business. Orientation programs are
conducted for first-time directors to ensure that new
members are appropriately apprised of their duties and
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responsibilities. This includes overview of the Company’s
operations, Code of Conduct, Corporate Governance
framework and other relevant topics essential in the
performance of their functions. As a matter of continuous
professional education, the Company facilitates the training
opportunities provided for the Directors and Key Officers.

Board Meetings

The Board schedules meetings at the beginning of the
year, holds regular meetings in accordance with its By-
Laws and convene special meetings when required by
business exigencies. The notice and agenda of the meeting
and other relevant meeting materials are furnished to

the Directors at least five (5) business days prior to each
meeting. Meetings are duly minuted. The Independent
Directors shall always attend Board meetings. Unless
otherwise provided in the By-Laws, their absence shall not
affect the quorum requirement. However, the Board may,

Attendance of Directors

January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019

Date of
Election

Director, Chairman
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to promote transparency, require the presence of at least
one (1) Independent Director in all its meetings.

To monitor the Directors’ compliance with the attendance
requirements, the Company submits to the Commission an
advisement letter on the Directors’ record of attendance in
Board meetings.

No. of
Meetings

No. of
Meetings

Held during Attended

the year

E . John L. Gokongwei, Jr.+ May 30,2019 7 5* 100%
meritus

Director, Chairman JamesL. Go May 30, 2019 7 7 71%
Director, President | .., oy Gokongwei ~ May 30,2019 7 7 100%
and CEO

Director Lily G. Ngo-Chua May 30, 2019 7 7 100%
Director Patrick Henry C. Go May 30, 2019 7 6 85%
Director Johnson Robert G. Go, Jr. May 30, 2019 7 7 100%
Director Robina Gokongwei-Pe  May 30,2019 7 7 100%
Director Cirilo P. Noel May 30, 2019 7 100%
Independent Jose T. Pardo May 30, 2019 7 100%
Director : Yy b, °
Independent

Director Renato T. De Guzman May 30, 2019 7 100%
Independent AntonioL.G May 30,2019 7 100%
Director ntonio L. Go ay 30, o

Note: *Mr. John L. Gokongwei, Jr. passed away on November 9, 2019.
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The Board Committees

To enable better and more focused attention on the affairs of the Company and aid in the optimal
performance of its roles and responsibilities, the Board delegates particular matters to the Board Committees
set up for the purpose mainly (a) Audit Committee, (b) Corporate Governance Committee and (c) Board Risk

Oversight Committee (BROC).

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee provides oversight over the Company’s
financial reporting, Internal Control System, Internal and
External Audit processes, and monitor compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. It ensures that systems and
processes are put in place to provide assurance in areas
including reporting, monitoring compliance with laws,
regulations and internal policies, efficiency and effectiveness
of business operations, and proper safeguarding and use of the
Company’s resources and assets.

Chairman Antonio L. Go (ID)
Members Lance Y. Gokongwei
James L. Go

Jose T. Pardo

Renato T. De Guzman

Chairman Jose T. Pardo

Members James L. Go
Renato T. De Guzman

Antonio L. Go

Corporate Governance
Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee oversees

the development and implementation of Corporate
Governance principles and policies and recommends a
formal framework on the nomination, remuneration and
evaluation of the performance of the Directors and key
Management Officers consistent with the Company’s
culture, strategies and the business environment.

Board Risk Oversight Committee

The Board Risk Oversight Committee oversees the
establishment of ERM framework that effectively identify,
monitor, assess and manage key business risks and assess

the effectiveness of risk management strategies. The BROC is
responsible for defining the Company’s level of risk tolerance
and providing oversight over its risk management policies and
procedures to anticipate, minimize, control or manage risks or
possible threats to its operational and financial viability.
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Chairman Renato T. De Guzman

Members James L. Go
Lance Y. Gokongwei
Jose T. Pardo

Antonio L. Go

The Corporate Secretary

The Corporate Secretary assists the Board and the Board
Committees in the conduct of their meetings, including
preparation of the annual schedule of Board and Committee
meetings and the annual Board calendar. She also assists the
Board Chairs and its Committees in setting agendas for the
meetings, safekeeps and preserves the integrity of the minutes
of the meeting of the Board and its Committees, as well as other
official records of the Company.

The Corporate Secretary keeps herself abreast on relevant

laws, regulations, all governance issuances, relevant industry
developments and operations of the Company, and advises the
Board and the Chairman on all relevant issues as they arise. She
works fairly and objectively with the Board, Management and
Shareholders and contributes to the flow of information between
the Board and Management, the Board and its Committees, and
the Board and its Stakeholders, including Shareholders.

The Compliance Officer

The Compliance Officer monitors, reviews, evaluates and
ensures the compliance by the Company; its Officers and
Directors with the provisions and requirements of the
Corporate Governance Manual and the relevant laws, the
Corporate Governance Code, rules and regulations and

all governance issuances of regulatory agencies. She also
ensures the integrity and accuracy of all documentary
submissions to the regulators; identifies possible areas of
compliance issues and works towards the resolution of the
same. She assists the Board and the Corporate Governance
Committee in the performance of their governance
functions, including their duties to oversee the formulation
or review and implementation of the Corporate Governance
structure and policies of the Company.

Arlene S. Denzon is the current Compliance Officer and Vice
President of the Corporate Governance and Management
Systems (CGMS) of JGSHI. She also serves as the Compliance
Officer of Universal Robina Corporation and Robinsons Land
Corporation. Prior to rejoining JGS in February 2013, she
was the Senior Vice President and Chief Risk Officer (SVP

Atty. Rosalinda F. Rivera is the current
Corporate Secretary of the Company. She was
appointed as Corporate Secretary on August
6, 2003 and has been Assistant Corporate
Secretary since May 2002. She is also the
Corporate Secretary of Robinsons Land
Corporation, Universal Robina Corporation,
Cebu Air, Inc., Robinsons Retail Holdings, Inc.
and JG Summit Petrochemical Corporation.
Prior to joining the Company, she was a Senior
Associate in Puno and Puno Law Offices.

She received a degree of Juris Doctor from the
Ateneo de Manila University School of Law
and a Masters of Law in International Banking
from the Boston University School of Law.

and CRO) in charge of the Enterprise-wide
Risk Management Group of Digitel Mobile
Philippines, Inc. (DMPI, more popularly
known as Sun Cellular) until December,
2012. Ms. Denzon started her career in the
Gokongwei Group in 1991 and performed
various roles including Accounting Manager
of JGSHI until 1997, Assistant Vice President -
Special Assistant to the Chairman until 2001,
Vice President — Treasurer and Acting Chief
Financial Officer of URC International until
2003 before she was seconded to DMPI in
2004. Prior to JGSHI, Ms. Denzon had three
years working experience as external auditor
in Sycip, Gorres, Velayo & Co.

She is a Certified Public Accountant Board
top-notcher and obtained her Bachelor of
Accountancy degree, Magna Cum Laude, from
the Polytechnic University of the Philippines.
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Enterprise Risk
Management,
Accountability
and Audit

The Company recognizes the increasing importance of sound risk management
practices to drive business growth and sustainability. The Company implemented
systems and processes to facilitate proper risk identification, monitoring and control,
which are key to effective corporate governance. Timely and accurate management
and financial reporting systems, internal controls, and audits are also employed to
protect and maximize stakeholders’ value.

The Board oversees Management’s adoption and implementation of a sound risk
management framework for identifying, monitoring and managing key risk areas.
The Board of Directors reviews Management reports with due diligence to enable
the company to anticipate, minimize, control and manage risks or possible threats to
its operational and financial viability.

Enterprise Risk
Management

Through a sound Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework,
the Company effectively identifies, monitors, assesses and
manages key business risks. The framework guides the Board

in identifying units/business lines and enterprise level risk
exposures, as well as the effectiveness of risk management

strategies.
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The ERM framework revolves around the following eight interrelated
risk management approaches:

2. Objective Setting

The Company’s Board mandates Management to set the overall annual targets through strategic
planning activities, in order to ensure that management has a process in place to set objectives that are
aligned with the Company’s goals.

WKL

basis for determining how the risks will be managed. The risks are further assessed as to which risks are
controllable and uncontrollable, risks that require management’s action or monitoring, and risks that
may materially weaken the Company’s earnings and capital.

4. Risk Assessment
| The identified risks are analyzed relative to the probability and severity of potential loss that serves as

6. Control Activities

o Policies and procedures are established and approved by the Company’s Board and implemented to

ensure that the risk responses are effectively carried out enterprise-wide.

8. Monitoring

The Internal Control Group of the respective Company and BUs as well as Corporate Internal Audit
constantly monitor the management of risks through audit reviews, compliance checks, revalidation of
risk strategies and performance reviews.
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Risk Assessment Tool

To help BUs in the Risk Assessment Process, the Risk Assessment Tool, which is a database driven
web application, was developed for departments and units to facilitate the assessment, monitoring

and management of risks.

The Risk Assessment Tool documents the following activities:

1. RiskIdentification -
is the critical step of the risk management
process. The objective of risk identification is
the early identification of events that may have
negative impact on the Company’s ability to
achieve its goals and objectives.

1.1. RiskIndicator - is a potential event or action
that may prevent the continuity of operation

12, OF business

Risk Driver - is an event or action that
13 triggers the risk to materialize

Value Creation Opportunities - is the
positive benefit of addressing or managing
the risk

2.  |dentification of Existing Control Measures -
activities, actions or measures already in place
to control, prevent or manage the risk.

3. Risk Rating/Score -

is the quantification of the likelihood and impact
to the Company if the risk materializes. The
rating has two (2) components:

3.1. Probability - the likelihood of occurrence of risk

3.2. Severity - the magnitude of the consequence of risk

Risk Management Strategy -
is the structured and coherent approach to
managing the identified risk.

Risk Mitigation Action Plan -
is the overall approach to reduce the risk impact
severity and/or probability of occurrence.

Results of the Risk Assessment Process is summarized in a Dashboard that highlights the risks that
require urgent actions and mitigation plan. The dashboard helps Management to monitor, manage

and decide a risk strategy and needed action plan.
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With the leadership of the Company’s Chief Financial Officer (CFO), internal control is embedded in the
operations of the company and in each BU thus increasing their accountability and ownership in the execution
of the BU’s internal control framework. To accomplish the established goals and objectives, BUs implement

robust and efficient process controls to ensure:

Compliance with
_— policies, procedures,
laws and regulations

Economic and efficient
'n' use of resources

Check and balance and
proper segregation of
duties

Adequate and Timely Information

Identification and
remediation control
weaknesses

Reliability and integrity of
information

Proper safeguarding of
company resources and
protection of company
assets through early
detection and prevention of
fraud.

To enable the Directors to properly fulfill their duties and responsibilities, Management provides the Directors
with complete, adequate, and timely information about the matters to be taken up in their meetings.
Information may include the background or explanation on matters brought before the Board, disclosures,
budgets, forecasts, and internal financial documents. If the information provided by Management is not
sufficient, further inquiries may be made by a Director to enable him to properly perform his duties and
responsibilities. The Directors have independent access to Management and to the Corporate Secretary.

The Directors, either individually or as a Board, and in the performance of their duties and responsibilities,
may seek access to independent professional advice within the guidelines set by the Board.
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Accountability and Audit

The Board ensures that its Shareholders are provided with a balanced and comprehensible
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects on a quarterly basis. Interim and
other reports that could adversely affect its business are also made available in the Company website
including its submissions and disclosures to the SEC and PSE. Management formulates the rules and
procedures on financial reporting and internal control for presentation to the Audit Committee in
accordance with the following guidelines:
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The extent of its responsibility in the
preparation of the financial statements
of the Company, with the corresponding
delineation of the responsibilities that
pertain to the External Auditor, should be
clearly defined;

An effective system of internal control
that will ensure the integrity of the
financial reports and protection of the
assets of the Company for the benefit of
all Shareholders and other Stakeholders;

On the basis of the approved Internal
Audit Plan, Internal Audit examinations
should cover, at the minimum, the
evaluation of the adequacy and
effectiveness of controls that cover the
Company’s governance, operations
and information systems, including the
reliability and integrity of financial and
operation information, effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, protection of
assets, and compliance with contracts,
laws, rules, and regulations;

The Company consistently complies with
the financial reporting requirements of
the SEC;

The External Auditor shall be rotated
or changed every five (5) years or
earlier, or the signing partner of the

External Auditing firm assigned to the
Company, should be changed with

the same frequency. The Corporate
Internal Audit Head should submit to
the Audit Committee and Management
an annual report on the Internal Audit
department’s activities, responsibilities,
and performance relative to the Internal
Audit Plan as approved by the Audit

and Risk Committee. The annual report
should include significant risk exposures,
control issues, and such other matters
as may be needed or requested by the
Board and Management. The Internal
Audit Head should certify that he
conducts his activities in accordance
with the International Standards on the
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.
If he does not, the Internal Audit

Head shall disclose to the Board and
Management the reasons why he has not
fully complied with the said documents;
and

The Board, after consultations with the
Audit Committee shall recommend to
the Shareholders an External Auditor
duly accredited by the SEC who shall
undertake an independent audit of the
Company, and shall provide an objective
assurance on the matter by which the
financial statements shall be prepared
and presented to the Shareholders.
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Internal Audit

The Corporate Internal Audit is focused on delivering its mandate of determining
whether the governance, risk management and control processes, as designed
and represented by management, are adequate and functioning in a manner that
provides reasonable level of confidence that:

Employees’ actions are compliant with policies, standards,
procedures, and applicable laws and regulations;

Quality and continuous improvement are fostered in the
control processes;

Programs, plans, and objectives are achieved,;

Resources are acquired economically, used efficiently, and
protected adequately;

Significant financial, managerial, and operating information
is accurate, reliable, and timely;

Significant key risks are appropriately identified and
managed; and

Significant legislative or re
gulatory issues impacting the Company are recognized and
properly addressed.

Opportunities for improving management control, profitability and the Company’s
reputation may be identified during audits.
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Elected Officers for the calendar year 2019

Other Matters

Number % to Total

External auditor and their fees Name of Officer Position/Designation of Outstanding
Shares Shares
Name of Auditor Audit Fee Non-Audit Fee

: Senior Vice President, Corporate o

1.C lioS. Mapa, Jr. ’ 0 0.00%
SyCip, Gorres, Velayo & Co. Php 3,610,000 None ornetio apa, Jr Strategy for Consumer Businesses °

: Senior Vice President, Digital and o

. 2.Bach Joh M. Sebast ; 0 0.00%
Ownershi P structure achJohann ehastian Strategic Investment Groups °

Holding 5% shareholding or more (as of December 31, 2019) Senior Vice President. C ¢
enior vice rFresident, Corporate

o 3. Nicasio L.Lim 0 0.00%
Shareholder Number of Shares Percent Beneficial Owner Resources Group ’
. . . Senior Vice President and
Gokongwei Brothers 1,997,076,451 27.8881% Same as record owner 4.Maria CeliaH. Fernandez-Estavillo /0 | 5,000 0.00%
Foundation Inc.
Senior Vice President
i i ici 5.Renato T. Salud . ’ 0 0.00%
PCD !\lomlnee Corporation 1,650,813,319 23.047% PCI? Pa!rtlmpants & €nato |.Salu Corporate Affairs o
(Filipino) their clients
. Senior Vice President and
Robinsons Savings Bank-Trust 1.033.319.225 14.426% Trustee’s designated 6. AldrichT. Javellana Treasurer 0 0.00%
& Investment Group e ) officers
Senior Vice President and
H O,
PCD Nominee Corporation o PCD Participants & 7. Francisco M. Del Mundo Chief Financial Officer 0 0.00%
e . 949,528,917 13.256% .
(Non-Filipino) their clients
- - Senior Vice President and Chief of o
8.Michael P. Liwanag Staff to the Chief Executive Officer o BiLEES
Dealing in riti han in shareholdin f dir rs and k fficer
ealing in securities (changes in shareholdings of directors and key officers) o Senlor Vice President, Chief o
-Alan D. Surposa Procurement Officer 0 wese
(o)
Name of Director Number of Shares % To Tota!
Outstanding Shares 10. Rosalinda F. Rivera Corporate Secretary 0 0.00%
John L. Gokongwei, Jr.+ 0 0.00%
11.ChonaR. Ferrer Deputy Treasurer 0 0.00%
James L. Go 148,679,656 2.08%
Lance Y. Gokongwei 541838575 7.56% 12. Arlene S. Denzon Compliance Officer 0 0.00%
Lily Ngo-Chua 388,018 0.01% 13. lan Pajantoy Data Protection Officer 0 0.00%
Patrick Henry C. Go 93,500 0.00% o o
Dividends
Robina Y. Gokongwei-Pe 179,460,000 2.51% The Board of Directors of the Company approved on May 30, 2019 the declaration of a regular cash dividend in the
. amount of Thirty Three Centavos (Php0.33) per common share from unrestricted retained earnings of JGS as of Decem-
Johnson Robert G. Go, Jr. 1 0.00% ber 31, 2018 to all stockholders of record as of June 20, 2019 and which was paid on July 16, 2019.
Cirilo P. Noel 1 0.00% The Company further approved on May 30, 2019 the declaration of a special cash dividend in the amount of Four Centa-
vos (Php0.04) per common share from unrestricted retained earnings of JGS as of December 31, 2018 to all stockholders
Jose T. Pardo 1 0.00% of record as of June 20, 2019 and which was paid on July 16, 2019.
Renato T. De Guzman 21,751 0.00% compa ny website
Antonio L. Go 1 0.00% The Company updates the public with operating and financial results through timely disclosures filed with SEC and PSE.

Note: Mr. John L. Gokongwei, Jr. passed away on November 9, 2019, These are available on the company’s website: https://www.jgsummit.com.ph/
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JG SUMMIT
HOLDINGS, INC.

43 FLOOR ROBINSONS EQUITABLE TOWER ASBE AVE. COR. POVEDA RD. ORTIGAS CENTER, PASIG CITY
TEL. NO.: 6337631, 637-1670, 240-8801 FAX NO.: 633-9387 OR 633-9207

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of JG Summit Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the Group) is
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements including the
schedules attached therein, for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, in accordance with the
prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors (BOD) is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors (BOD) reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. (SGV), the independent auditors, appointed by the stockholders, has audited the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its
report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upgy completion of such aydit.

Lance Y. G

President

isco V.\Del Mundo
ief Financial Officer

Subscribed and Sworn to before me in the City of _this April __, 2019 affiants(s) exhibiting to
me his Residence Certificates/Passport, as follows:

Names CTC No. Date of Issue Place of Issue

James L. Go 14503308 01/21/2020 Pasig City

Lance Y. Gokongwei 14503307 01/21/2020 Pasig City

Francisco M. Del Mundo Passport No. P9624564 A

Doc. No.
Book No.
Page No.
Series of
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SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. Tel: (632) 891 0307 BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001,
6760 Ayala Avenue Fax: (632) 819 0872 October 4, 2018, valid until August 24, 2021
1226 Makati City ey.com/ph SEC Accreditation No. 0012-FR-5 (Group A),

Building a better Philippines

& November 6, 2018, valid until November 5, 2021
working world

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
JG Summit Holdings, Inc.

43rd Floor, Robinsons-Equitable Tower

ADB Avenue corner Poveda Road, Pasig City

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of JG Summit Holdings, Inc. and its
subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated
statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2019, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2019 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

131




ANNUAL REPORT

132

SGV

Building a better
working world

Real Estate Revenue Recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition process, policies and procedures are significant to our audit because
these involve application of significant judgment and estimation in the following areas: (1) assessment of
the probability that the entity will collect the consideration from the buyer; (2) determination of the
transaction price; (3) application of the input method as the measure of progress in determining real estate
revenue; and (4) determination of the actual costs incurred as cost of sales .

In evaluating whether collectability of the amount of consideration is probable, the Group considers the
significance of the buyer’s initial payments in relation to the total contract price (or buyer’s equity).
Collectability is also assessed by considering factors such as past history with the buyer, age and pricing
of the property. Management regularly evaluates the historical sales cancellations and back-outs if it
would still support its current threshold of buyers’ equity before commencing revenue recognition.

In determining the transaction price, the Group considers the selling price of the real estate property and
other fees and charges collected from the buyers that are not held on behalf of other parties.

In measuring the progress of its performance obligation over time, the Group uses input method. Under
this method, progress is measured based on actual costs incurred on materials, labor, and actual overhead
relative to the total estimated development costs of the real estate project. The Group uses the cost
accumulated by the accounting department to determine the actual costs incurred. The estimation of the
total costs of the real estate project requires technical inputs by project engineers.

In determining the actual costs incurred to be recognized as cost of sales, the Group estimates costs
incurred on materials, labor and overhead which have not yet been billed by the contractor.

The disclosures related to the real estate revenue are included in Notes 2, 3 and 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Audit Response
We obtained an understanding of the revenue recognition process.

For the buyers’ equity, we evaluated management’s basis of the buyer’s equity by comparing this to the
historical analysis of sales collections from buyers with accumulated payments above the collection
threshold. We validated the analysis through examination of the list of cancelled sales and sales listing.

For the determination of the transaction price, we obtained an understanding of the nature of other fees
charged to the buyers. For selected contracts, we agreed the amounts excluded from the transaction price
against the expected amounts required to be remitted to the government based on existing tax rules and
regulations (e.g., documentary stamp taxes, transfer taxes and real property taxes).

For the application of the input method in determining real estate revenue and for determining cost of
sales, we obtained an understanding of the Group’s processes for determining the percentage of
completion (POC), including the cost accumulation process, and for determining and updating of total
estimated costs, and performed tests of the relevant controls on these processes. We assessed the
competence and objectivity of the project engineers by reference to their qualifications, experience and
reporting responsibilities. For selected projects, we traced costs accumulated, including those incurred but
not yet billed costs, to the supporting documents such as purchase order, billings and invoices of

SGV
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contractors and other documents evidencing receipt of materials and services from contractors. We visited
selected project sites and made relevant inquiries with project engineers. We performed test computation
of the percentage of completion calculation of management. For selected projects, we obtained the
approved total estimated costs and any revisions thereto and the supporting details such as capital
fulfillment plan, capital expenditure requests and related executive committee approvals. We likewise
performed inquiries with the project engineers for the revisions.

Recoverability of Goodwill and Intangible Assets

As of December 31, 2019, the Group’s goodwill attributable to the acquisition of Consolidated Snacks,
Pty. Ltd., Griffin’s Food Limited and other entities amounted to £32.0 billion. The Group’s intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives pertaining to trademarks and product formulation amounted to

£9.4 billion and £0.4 billion, respectively. These items are significant to the consolidated financial
statements. Under PFRS, the Group is required to test annually the amount of goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives for impairment. Accordingly, management has performed an
impairment test on its goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. Management’s
assessment process requires significant judgment and is based on assumptions, specifically revenue
growth rate, discount rate and the long-term growth rate in determining value-in-use, as well as EBITDA
multiples in estimating fair value less cost to sell.

The disclosures in relation to goodwill and intangible assets are included in Notes 3, 18 and 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Audit response

We reviewed the value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell (FVLCTS) calculations prepared by
management. We involved our internal specialist in evaluating the methodologies and the assumptions
used. These assumptions include revenue growth rate, discount rate and the long-term growth rate in
determining value-in-use, as well as EBITDA multiples. We compared the key assumptions used, such as
revenue growth rate against the historical performance of the cash generating unit, industry/market
outlook and other relevant external data. We tested the parameters used in the determination of the
discount rate against market data. For FVLCTS calculations, we evaluated the reasonableness of the
valuation by comparison with recent comparable market transactions. We also reviewed the Group’s
disclosures about those assumptions to which the outcome of the impairment test is most sensitive,
specifically those that have the most significant effect on the determination of the recoverable amount of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

Accounting for Investment in an Associate

The Group has an investment in Manila Electric Company (Meralco) that is accounted for under the
equity method. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group’s share in the net income of Meralco
amounted to £6.7 billion and accounts for 16% of the Group’s consolidated net income.

The Group’s share in Meralco’s net income is significantly affected by Meralco’s revenues from the sale
of electricity which arise from its service contracts with a large number of customers that are classified as
either commercial, industrial or residential, located within Meralco’s franchise area. The revenue
recognized depends on (a) the complete capture of electric consumption based on the meter readings over
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the franchise area taken on various dates; (b) the propriety of rates computed and applied across customer
classes; and (c) the reliability of the IT systems involved in processing the billing transactions. In
addition, Meralco is involved in certain proceedings and claims for which Meralco has recognized
provisions for probable costs and/or expense, which may be incurred, and/or has disclosed relevant
information about such contingencies. The determination of whether any provision should be recognized
and the estimation of the potential liability resulting from these assessments require significant judgment
by management. The inherent uncertainty over the outcome of these matters is brought about by the
differences in the interpretation and implementation of the relevant laws and regulations.

The disclosures in relation to investments in associates are included in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Audit response

We obtained an understanding and evaluated the design of, as well as tested the controls over, the
customer master file maintenance, accumulation and processing of meter data, and interface of data from
the billing system to the financial reporting system. In addition, we performed a test recalculation of the
bill amounts using the Energy Regulatory Commission-approved rates and formulae, as well as actual
costs incurred, and compared them with the amounts reflected in the billing statements. We involved our
internal specialist in understanding the IT processes and in understanding and testing the IT general
controls over the IT system supporting the revenue process.

We also examined the bases of management’s assessment of the possible outcomes and the related
estimates of the probable costs and/or expenses that are recognized, and involved our internal specialists
when necessary. We discussed with management the status of the claims and/or assessments and obtained
correspondences with the relevant authorities and opinions from internal and external legal counsels. We
evaluated the position of the management by considering the relevant laws, rulings and jurisprudence.

We obtained the financial information of Meralco for the year ended December 31, 2019 and recomputed
the Group’s share in total comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2019.

Adequacy of Allowance for Credit Losses on Finance Receivables from the Banking Segment

The Group’s adoption of the expected credit loss (ECL) model for loans receivables of its banking
business is significant to our audit as it involves the exercise of significant management judgment. Key
areas of judgment include: segmenting the Group’s credit risk exposures; determining the method to
estimate ECL; defining default; identifying exposures with significant deterioration in credit quality;
determining assumptions to be used in the ECL model such as the counterparty credit risk rating, the
expected life of the financial asset and expected recoveries from defaulted accounts; and incorporating
forward-looking information (called overlays) in calculating ECL.

Refer to Notes 3 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements for the disclosures on the details of the
allowance for credit losses using the ECL models.

Audit response

We obtained an understanding of the methodologies and models used for the Group’s different credit
exposures and assessed whether these considered the requirements of PFRS 9, Financial Instruments,
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to reflect an unbiased and probability-weighted outcome, and to consider time value of money and the
best available forward-looking information.

We (a) assessed the Group’s segmentation of its credit risk exposures based on homogeneity of credit risk
characteristics; (b) tested the definition of default and significant increase in credit risk criteria against
historical analysis of accounts and credit risk management policies and practices in place, (c) tested the
Group’s application of internal credit risk rating system by reviewing the ratings of sample credit
exposures; (d) assessed whether expected life is different from the contractual life by testing the maturity
dates reflected in the Group’s records and considering management’s assumptions regarding future
collections, advances, extensions, renewals and modifications; (e) reviewed loss given default by
inspecting historical recoveries and related costs, write-offs and collateral valuations; (f) tested exposure
at default considering outstanding commitments and repayment scheme; (g) checked the reasonableness
of forward-looking information used for overlay through statistical test and corroboration using publicly
available information and our understanding of the Group’s lending portfolios and broader industry
knowledge; and (h) tested the model through backtesting of prior year loss rates versus actual observed
default rates.

Further, we checked the data used in the ECL models by reconciling data from source system reports to
the data warehouse and from the date warehouse to the loss allowance analysis/models and financial
reporting systems. To the extent that the loss allowance analysis is based on credit exposures that have
been disaggregated into subsets of debt financial assets with similar risk characteristics, we traced or re-
performed the disaggregation from source systems to the loss allowance analysis. We also assessed the
assumptions used where there are missing or insufficient data.

We recalculated impairment provisions on per portfolio basis. We reviewed the completeness of the
disclosures made in the financial statements.

We involved our internal specialists in the performance of the above procedures.
Adoption of PFRS 16, Leases

Effective January 1, 2019, the Group adopted PFRS 16, Leases, under the modified retrospective
approach which resulted in significant changes in the Group’s accounting policy for leases. The Group’s
adoption of PFRS 16 is significant to our audit because the Group has high volume of lease agreements;
the recorded amounts are material to the consolidated financial statements; and adoption involves
application of significant judgment and estimation in determining the lease term, including evaluating
whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise options to extend or terminate the lease, and in
determining the incremental borrowing rate. This resulted in the recognition of right-of-use assets and
lease liability amounting to £18.6 billion and £19.3 billion, respectively, as of January 1, 2019, and the
recognition of depreciation expense and interest expense of £6.6 billion and £715.2 million, respectively,
for the year ended December 31, 2019.

The disclosures related to the adoption of PFRS 16 are included in Notes 2, 3 and 42 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Audit response

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s process in implementing the new standard on leases,
including the determination of the population of the lease contracts covered by PFRS 16, the application
of the short-term and low value assets exemption, the selection of the transition approach and any election
of available practical expedients.

For selected lease contracts with renewal and/or termination option, we reviewed the management’s
assessment of whether it is reasonably certain that the Group will exercise the option to renew or not
exercise the option to terminate.

We tested the parameters used in the determination of the incremental borrowing rate by reference to
market data. We test computed the lease calculation prepared by management on a sample basis,
including the transition adjustments.

We reviewed the disclosures related to the transition adjustments based on the requirements of PFRS 16
and Philippine Accounting Standard 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors.

Impairment Testing of Property, Plant and Equipment

As of December 31, 2019, the Group’s property, plant and equipment relating to its petrochemicals
business amounted to £40.7 billion. In 2014, an impairment provision was recorded to reduce the
carrying values of machinery and equipment, and building and improvements to their recoverable values.
In 2019, the Group made a capital investment amounting to £17.0 billion to the petrochemical business to
fund its turnaround maintenance and reliability improvements in its building and expansion projects with
the goal of introducing new products in 2020. Following a review of the business, the outlook for the
industry and operating plans, management has assessed the carrying values of machinery and equipment,
and building and improvements and a reversal of impairment loss of 2.3 billion has been recorded to
adjust the carrying values of certain machinery and equipment, and building and improvements to their
estimated recoverable values, which is the higher of fair value less cost of disposal and value-in-use.
Management’s assessment process requires significant judgment and is based on assumptions,
specifically revenue growth rate and discount rate.

The disclosures in relation to property, plant and equipment and the related reversal of impairment losses
are included in Notes 3, 16 and 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Audit response

We involved our internal specialist in evaluating the methodologies and the assumptions used. These
assumptions include revenue growth rate and discount rate. We compared the key assumptions used such
as revenue growth rate against the historical performance of the cash generating unit, industry/market
outlook, and other relevant external data. We tested the parameters used in the determination of the
discount rate against market data. We also reviewed the Group’s disclosures about those assumptions to
which the outcome of the impairment test is most sensitive; specifically those that have the most
significant effect on the determination of the recoverable amount of property and equipment.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report
for the year ended December 31, 2019 but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and
Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2019 are expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audits, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
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not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Vicky Lee Salas.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Vicky LEe Salas

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 86838

SEC Accreditation No. 0115-AR-4 (Group A),
April 16, 2019, valid until April 15, 2022

Tax Identification No. 129-434-735

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-53-2018,
February 14, 2018, valid until February 13, 2021

PTR No. 8125248, January 7, 2020, Makati City

April 13,2020
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JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31

2.
December 31
2019 2018
Equity
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company:
Paid-up capital (Note 25) £30,755,866,814 P£30,755,866,814
Retained earnings (Note 25) 267,972,795,556 239,101,689,440
Equity reserve (Note 25) 30,870,148,859 29,573,169,046
Other comprehensive losses (Note 36) (24,787,168,710) (22,844,854,470)
304,811,642,519 276,585,870,830
Non-controlling interests (Note 25) 103,835,500,348 90,891,989,709
Total Equity 408,647,142,867 367,477,860,539

£928,309,518,677  P819,287,015,834

140

2019 2018
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 7) P64,343,249,162 £49,194,676,441
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 9) 4,384,644,970 3,650,524,523
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (Note 10) 22,259,890,046 23,915,670,876
Receivables (Note 11) 47,712,909,823 43,675,353,273
Inventories (Note 12) 68,513,876,509 63,472,037,028
Biological assets (Note 17) 733,435,525 741,719,637
Contract assets (Note 26) 3,007,038,670 5,088,356,660
Other current assets (Note 13) 23,200,634,578 24,566,599,212
Total Current Assets 234,155,679,283 214,304,937,650
Noncurrent Assets
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (Note 10) 24,050,346,528 19,457,411,625
Receivables (Note 11) 60,913,547,800 49,851,486,164
Investment securities at amortized cost (Note 10) 11,357,261,241 12,597,089,717
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Note 14) 151,691,572,588 144,914,597,233
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) 259,242,816,964 218,273,655,227
Investment properties (Note 15) 99,000,246,036 93,816,970,875
Right-of-use assets (Note 42) 20,531,421,297 -
Contract assets (Note 26) 7,843,135,383 6,444,995,326
Goodwill (Note 19) 32,005,604,356 32,005,604,356
Intangible assets (Note 18) 13,898,390,399 13,954,424,592
Biological assets (Note 17) 224,128,072 366,184,414
Other noncurrent assets (Note 20) 13,395,368,730 13,299,658,655
Total Noncurrent Assets 694,153,839,394 604,982,078,184
£928,309,518,677 £819,287,015,834
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Notes 21 and 42) P146,327,371,857 P132,655,835,417
Short-term debts (Note 23) 54,047,410,004 35,453,723,993
Current portion of long-term debts (Note 23) 6,819,093,642 30,962,269,832
Contract liabilities (Note 26) 14,184,663,585 12,931,513,843
Income tax payable 1,771,270,985 1,776,773,241
Other current liabilities (Note 22) 21,989,131,302 15,639,061,129
Total Current Liabilities 245,138,941,375 229,419,177,455
Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debts - net of current portion (Note 23) 212,116,441,065 179,286,697,516
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 38) 8,318,082,154 7,877,223,942
Contract liabilities (Note 26) 2,958,482,166 2,378,690,953
Other noncurrent liabilities (Note 24) 51,130,429,050 32,847,365,429
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 274,523,434,435 222,389,977,840
Total Liabilities 519,662,375,810 451,809,155,295
(Forward)

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2.
Years Ended December 31
2019 2018 2017
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Net losses on financial assets at FVOCI (equity securities)
(Note 10) (22,403,711,068)  (P5,897,064,704) P-
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability
(Note 37) (588,565,201) 312,977,712 116,814,170
Share in remeasurements of the net defined benefit
liability of associates (Note 14) (1,170,380,505) 387,758,074 (326,973,548)
Share in the net unrealized losses on financial assets at
FVOCI of associates (equity securities) — (3,913,766) -
(1,114,224,381) (5,896,013,982) 378,512,165
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P41,551,287,468 $£22,001,483,461 P39,897,546,273
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO
Equity holders of the Parent Company P31,285,246,332 £19,186,040,273 £29,369,537,456
Non-controlling interests (Note 25) 11,380,265,517 8,711,457,170 10,149,496,652
P42,665,511,849 £27,897,497,443 P39,519,034,108
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
Equity holders of the Parent Company £29,342,932,092 P£12,843,653,219 £30,338,629,205
Non-controlling interests (Note 25) 12,208,355,376 9,157,830,242 9,558,917,068
P41,551,287,468 £22,001,483,461 P39,897,546,273
Earnings Per Share Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Parent Company (Note 39)
Basic/diluted earnings per share P4.37 P2.68 P4.10

Years Ended December 31
2019 2018 2017
REVENUE
Sale of goods and services (Note 26):
Foods P134,174,527,579 £127,769,949,329  £125,007,824,013
Air transportation 84,806,810,363 74,113,776,885 68,029,131,426
Real estate and hotels 30,210,187,210 29,467,564,096 22,448,257,224
Petrochemicals 29,053,982,086 42,351,966,134 41,406,489,496
Banking 8,121,662,955 6,132,382,567 4,475,828,582
Equity in net earnings of associates and joint ventures
(Note 14) 13,357,511,170 10,181,841,883 9,908,717,906
Dividend income (Note 28) 1,348,711,916 1,227,572,942 1,451,837,755
Supplementary businesses 749,175,892 670,963,828 717,368,505
301,822,569,171 291,916,017,664 273,445,454,907
COST OF SALES AND SERVICES
Cost of sales (Note 30) 122,977,293,487 129,734,114,999 119,176,312,217
Cost of services (Note 30) 66,804,207,760 63,858,758,345 52,378,128,769
189,781,501,247 193,592,873,344 171,554,440,986
GROSS INCOME 112,041,067,924 98,323,144,320 101,891,013,921
NET OPERATING EXPENSES
General and administrative expenses (Note 31) 57,983,100,861 52,912,530,779 49,910,047,737
Provision for (reversal of) impairment losses and others
(Note 34) (2,144,968,452) 145,801,581 248,080,372
55,838,132,409 53,058,332,360 50,158,128,109
OPERATING INCOME 56,202,935,515 45,264,811,960 51,732,885,812
OTHER INCOME (LOSSES)
Financing costs and other charges (Note 35) (10,965,846,901) (9,635,374,773) (7,836,137,934)
Finance income (Note 27) 2,096,212,143 1,745,547,717 1,243,424,967
Foreign exchange gains (losses) 828,657,682 (2,854,338,888) (902,717,961)
Market valuation gains (losses) on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss - net (Note 9) 703,885,932 (683,102,223) 696,406,991
Market valuation losses on derivative financial
instruments - net (Note 8) (63,352,472) (336,784,218) (155,230,460)
Others (Notes 21 and 29) (764,665,540) (459,468,426) 241,871,584
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 48,037,826,359 33,041,291,149 45,020,502,999
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 38) 5,372,314,510 5,143,793,706 5,501,468,891
NET INCOME 42,665,511,849 27,897,497,443 39,519,034,108
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS), NET
OF TAX (Note 36)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Cumulative translation adjustments 1,200,011,485 1,486,465,748 (1,183,796,363)
Net gains (losses) on financial assets at FVOCI
(debt securities) 1,496,992,980 (2,041,409,693) -
Share in the net unrealized gains (losses) on financial
assets at FVOCI of associates (debt securities) 176,256,150 (137,490,800) -
Net gains (losses) from cash flow hedges (Note 8) 175,171,778 (3,336,553) (11,359,660)

Share in net unrealized gains on available-for-sale
investments of an associate (Notes 10 and 14)
Net gains on available-for-sale investments
(Note 10)

(Forward)

24,394,385

1,759,433,181

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Years Ended December 31
2019 2018 2017
Available-for-sale investments (Note 10) B P- (R15,996,196,225)
Held-to-maturity investments (Note 10) - - (14,828,885) -
Proceeds from sale of business without loss control (Note 44) 7,204,512,000 - - Corporate Information
Dividends received on investments in associates and
D'quim ‘(’jemure? (1(\11(33 14)28) g’ggg%ﬁ’g% ?ag;‘a;gg’ggg ?’Zg‘l‘aégga;‘s‘g JG Summit Holdings, Inc. (the Parent Company) was incorporated in the Philippines on November 23,
ividends received (Note ,348,711, ,227,572, ,451,837, . . .
Decrease in the amounts of other noncurrent assets (Note 20) (1,810,085,103) (11,147,232,124) (2,011,128,916) 19,90 with a corporate term of 50 years from the date_ of incorporation. On, May 8, 2014, the Board of
Proceeds from sale/maturity of: Directors (BOD) of the Parent Company gpproved its amendment to Article Three of the Amended
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive Articles of Incorporation to change the principal office address of the Parent Company from “Metro
income . 24,243,072,327 2,808,442,571 - Manila, Philippines” to “43rd Floor, Robinsons-Equitable Tower, ADB Avenue corner Poveda Road,
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) 4,453,351,444 4,783,915,239 8,948,396,503 Pasig City” in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Memorandum Circular
Investment property 50,004,269 - 22,529,110 No. 6. Seri £2014
Investment securities 1,498,635,579 171,000,000 - 0. b, Ser1es o :
Investment in subsidiary - 56,079,593 -
Available-for-sale investments - - 13,145,035,547 The Parent Company, a holding company, is the ultimate parent of the JG Summit Group (the Group).
Held-to-maturity investments (Note 10) - - 308,928,275 The Group has business interests in branded consumer foods, agro-industrial and commodity food
Iéis"gsg]‘isg‘l;g ?ngj[li iCNtX;lgSING S CTIVITIES (58.220,875,665)  (86,028,108.356)  (38.746,500.909) products, real property development, hotels, banking and financial services, telecommunications,
Net availments (payments) of: petrochemicals, air transportation and power distribution.
Short-term debts 85,967,968,788 127,722,440,023 91,848,238,085
Long-term debts 47,449,632,216 62,986,402,288 31,243,531,210 The Group conducts business throughout the Philippines, but primarily in and around Metro Manila
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (Note 25) (5,768,961,389) (5,068,481,993) (4,245,057,809) where it is based. The Group also has branded food businesses in the People’s Republic of China, in
g;céfeﬁz;‘:soé%er noncurrent liabilities (Note 24) 5,114,680,765 7,405,661,745 10,326,258,863 the Association of Southeast Asian Nations region, New Zealand and Australia and an interest in a
Short-term debts (67,145,701,321)  (138,428,074,125)  (108,257,955,312) property development business in Singapore and People’s Republic of China.
Long-term debts (Note 23) (35,529,183,139)  (37,019,495,036)  (11,710,904,401)
Principal portion of lease liabilities (6,738,059,926) - - The principal activities of the Group are further described in Note 6, Segment Information, to the
Dividends paid on: consolidated financial statements.
Common shares (Note 25) (2,650,251,413)  (2,148,852,497)  (2,005,595,664)
Preferred shares (Note 25) (14,800,000) (12,000,000